Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
take no responsibility for the contents of this announcement, make no representation as to
its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
announcement.
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ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANNUAL RESULTS
FOR THE FIFTEEN MONTHS ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Director(s)”) of Orient Securities International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased
to announce the audited consolidated results of the Group for the fifteen months ended 31
March 2023 (the “Annual Results”). This announcement contains the full text of the annual
report of the Group for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 (the “Annual Report”) and
the contents were prepared in accordance with the relevant disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Annual Report will be published on the website of the
Company (www.orientsec.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and despatch
to the shareholders of the Company in due course.

By order of the Board
Orient Securities International Holdings Limited
Lee Nga Ching
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 June 2023

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises (i) Mr. Shiu Shu Ming, Ms. Lee
Nga Ching, Ms. Suen Tin Yan and Mr. Chung Kar Ho Carol as the executive Directors; and
(ii) Mr. Siu Kin Wai, Ms. Chan Man Yi and Ms. Luk Huen Ling Claire as the independent
non-executive Directors.

This announcement, for which the Directors collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this announcement is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this announcement misleading.

*  For identification purpose only



This announcement will remain on the “Latest Listed Company Information” page of the GEM
website at www.hkgem.com for a minimum period of 7 days from the date of its publication
and on the Company’s website at www.orientsec.com.hk.



CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM (“GEM") OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk
profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market
more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and
mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take
no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Orient
Securities International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Ms. Lee Nga Ching

Mr. Shiu Shu Ming'

Ms. Suen Tin Yan?

Mr. Chung Kar Ho Carol?
Mr. Lam Shu Chung*
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Mr. Siu Kin Wai

Ms. Chan Man Yi
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Mr. Tang Chung Wai¢
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Resigned as an executive director with effect from 19 August 2022.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit
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from 17 February 2023.
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6 Resigned as an independent non-executive director with effect from 17 February 2023.
7 Resigned as joint company secretary and authorised representative with effect from 15
June 2022.
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Executive Director’s Statement
HITESZHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Director(s)”) of
Orient Securities International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am
delighted to present to you the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the period ended 31 March
2023.

In the reporting period, the Group recorded a slight increase in revenue of
approximately HK$2.4 million or 5.18% to approximately HK$49.1 million
compared with 2021. Such an increase was mainly attributable to (i) the
increase of interest income of money lending business by approximately
HK$9.1 million or 26.74%; (ii) the decrease of service income from
underwriting and placing service by approximately HK$2.4 million or
77.19%; and (iii) the decrease of interest income from margin financing
service by approximately HK$3.9 million or 49.85%.

In 2022, global economic growth is decelerated markedly from 5.5%
to 4.1%, the economic environment suffered from slowing growth,
rapid tightening of finances, and the ending of the low-interest rate
environment. The uncertain global financial environment impacted
Hong Kong’s IPOs activities in 2022, the fund raising through IPOs was
experienced a substantial decrease of 72%, to HK$7.1 billion in 2022,
compared with HK$28 billion in 2021.

Facing the challenges from the changes in Hong Kong and global financial
environment, the Group adopted a more prudent approach. The Group
recorded an operating profit/loss before and after the provision of loan and
interest receivables for the period of approximately HK$17.4 million and
HK$125.7 million respectively, compared with the net profit of HK$17.9
million in 2021.

From the liquidity and operational perspective, the global, PRC and
Hong Kong financial environment was continuously heavily affected
by COVID-19 and geopolitical tension, the Group took a more prudent
approach on the money lender operation and taking necessary action
to recover the loan receivables to ensure the operating working capital
is adequate, and able to fulfil requlatory requirements over securities
business.
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OUTLOOK

Hong Kong’s key advantages as an international financial centre remain
stable and solid, with a low tax rate and a simple tax regime. Being one of
the major capital markets in Asia, the management believes Hong Kong
continue to provide a crucial corporate finance service for the investors in
the capital market and act as a bridge between the Mainland China and
the rest of the world.

To prepare for the opportunities and challenges ahead, the Group
continues to rationalize costs to reduce the operation burden, and explore
new cooperation with other financial service providers. Through such
exercises, the Group is targeted to merge and consolidate the businesses
resources among the cooperation partners and fully expanding the
clientele network at the same time, and to improve the cost effectiveness
and profitability of the Group and expand the clientele.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere gratitude to the Group’s shareholders, bankers, customers, and
business partners for their continuous support, and to our management
and staff members for their diligence, dedication, and contribution to the
growth of the Group.

On behalf of the Board,

Lee Nga Ching
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 June 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE S BT

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

In 2022, most major markets fell on uncertainties about the pace and
extent of monetary tightening by major central banks amid persistent
global inflationary pressures and the continuing impact of the COVID-19
pandemic. For most of 2022, the Hong Kong market fell amid the global
market correction. Turnover in the Hong Kong stock market declined,
while in October 2022, the Hang Seng Index even hit its 13 years low and
recorded its largest monthly declines in percentage terms since October
2008. While the Group was not immune to the impact of these, the
Group’s financial service business was suffered and only recorded a slight
increase in overall revenue for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 by
approximately HK$2.4 million as compared to the financial year ended 31
December 2021, while impairment allowances on margin loans receivable
and loans receivable for the period increased in line with the deteriorating
market environment and expectation.

The management of the Group has been working hard and through
various channels to develop the business. Nevertheless, the Group’s
performance relied on external factors, including Hong Kong and global
economic environment, interest rate movement and the turnover of
the Hong Kong securities market and demand for market fund raising
activities, as well as the development and impact of COVID-19 and its
effect over customers’ investment and financing needs. They are beyond
the Group’s control and the Group’s financial performance is susceptible to
fluctuation as a result.

Given the challenges in the economic outlook and the capital-intensive
nature of the Group’s existing principal business, the Group’s management
believes that the key to future growth of the Group hinges on the
expansion of the range of services provided by the Group, where each
additional business segment adds to the synergistic effect of the Group’s
current service offerings. The Group plans to expand into financial services
regulated under Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset
management) which will allow the Group to broaden its source of income,
explore new markets with growth potential and capture new business
opportunities which may create substantial value for the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”). With an aim of reaching out for
collaboration with other market players, the Group is considering acquiring
a company licensed under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")
(Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) to conduct Type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) regulated activity. Specifically, it is the intention of the
Directors to identify potential targets with particular priority given to those
that have an established network of clients and have a number of deals in
the pipeline, which the Group would be able to immediately capitalise on.
The Group expects that through the potential acquisition, it could leverage
on the existing client base of the target company to further expand the
underwriting and placing business cared by the Group through potential
placing and underwriting opportunities currently being explored by the
target company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year 2022, the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC")
approved Orient Securities Limited (“OSL"), being the wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, to continue to conduct Type 9 regulated
activities (asset management) under the SFO. It is the plan of the Group
to push forward the asset management business by enhancing the
capabilities of the Group’s management and building comprehensive
professional team. The Group shall make full use of its resources,
fully promoting its newly setup asset management business and the
comprehensive improvement of professional financial services capabilities.
The Group will continue to focus on building its core capacity in asset
management, expand the scale of asset management, enhance the
contribution of management fee income, and effectively improve its ability
to generate stable profits.

Further, in February 2023, the Company entered into a memorandum of
understanding with a well-established financial printing service provider
for the purpose of commencing its financial printing related value-
added services. The Directors are optimistic about the prospects of the
fund-raising activities through initial public offerings in Hong Kong after
considering the growing signs of a post-COVID-19 economic recovery.
Given the financial printing services industry is associated with the
number of listed companies as well as equity fund raising activities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
the development of such new business thereby broaden and diversify its
business, which is also expected to increase the Group’s profitability.

In April 2023, the Company also entered into a joint venture agreement
with Mr. Su Boping (%% 18 F), who is the founder of a well-established
information services provider in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), to explore the possibilities of diversifying the Group’s service
offerings by providing information technology (“IT") infrastructure
solutions services to end-customers. The Group has also connected with
certain authorised service providers for the supply of experienced IT
professionals with comprehensive know-how. By doing so, the Group
plans to provide IT services either by (i) developing its product based
on available IT resources; or (ii) acquiring products readily available in
the market, depending on the cost, the then market perception and
acceptance to the pricing of such products. As at the date hereof, the
Group has obtained certain requests from customers requesting for IT
infrastructure solution services relating to a development of an integrated
transport service platform as known as “Mobility-as-a-Service (MaaS)”
which is targeted to implement in different PRC cities. The Group intends
to utilise approximately HK$50 million for the development of IT projects
and it is believed that such IT business could further expand the Group’s
business portfolio, where such new business is highly supported by
the PRC government, and significantly improve the Group’s financial
performance by increasing the Group’s turnover by way of broadening the
Group's income source with solid customer base.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE S BT

Apart from the above, in order to further diversify its brokerage services,
the Group has also been kept negotiating with a software development
company, which is principally engaged in the provision of comprehensive
real-time online trading solutions, for a potential strategic cooperation
to collaborate and bring in mutual benefits for the parties which include,
among others, such software development company shall (a) provide
online security trading facilities, technical support, system maintenance,
accounting and back-office support to take care of the Group’s front-end
execution and back-office settlement sides of the clients; (b) integrate
the institutional professional clients to create an integrated client pool for
sharing of resources and (c) introduce institutional professional investors or
brokers clients to the Group to promote its securities dealing services. By
leveraging with the Group’s expertise, the Board is confident in the market
potential and commercial value of its securities trading operation.

It is believed that through diversification of the Group’s business by
way of organic growth and/or external acquisition, together with a
long-term perspective, the Group will adhere to its business model of
being an integrated financial service provider and promote high-quality
development to bring long-term growth returns to its shareholders and
investors. Currently, Hong Kong is witnessing a better recovery trend
after the COVID-19 but the balance in the relationship between steady
growth and prevention of financial risks is still facing challenges. It is the
direction of the Group to maintain its steady operation and ensure risks
are detectable and controllable amid business expansion. The Company
will continue to address its shortcomings with an aim to outperform them,
and pursue business diversification, broader customer base and higher
competitiveness in the competitive capital market.

Last but not least, the Board has resolved to establish a loan receivables
recovery committee (the “Committee”) in November 2022 to enhance
the efficiency in decision-making on, and implementation of, matters in
relation to the recovery of the Group’s outstanding loan receivables and
constantly keeps the Board update on the recovery process. Members of
the Committee, upon their appointment, have reviewed the operation of
the money lending business and obtained relevant documents to assess
its performance. The Directors had performed all necessary measures to
recover the outstanding loans including but not limited to (i) concluding
settlement plans with debtors; (ii) issuing demand letters; (iii) engaging
external debt collectors; (iv) seeking an expression of interest for acquiring
certain non-performing debts; and (v) obtaining legal advice on relevant
procedures, cost and timing to recover from collateral realisation. The
Board shall take all necessary measures to protect the interest of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the financial period under review (the “Period”), the Group’s principal
business remained to act as an integrated financial service provider licensed
to (i) conduct Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity under the
SFO; (ii) conduct Type 9 (asset management) regulated activity under the
SFO; and (iii) money lending business, through its subsidiaries.

Revenue

Over the years, the Group aims to establish a full-service platform for
its clients with integrated financial services tailored to their varying
needs. During the Period, the Group operates its business through its
main operating subsidiaries, namely Orient Securities Limited and Orient
Securities Finance Limited and its income mainly generated from (a)
brokerage services and relevant service income; (b) underwriting and
placing services; (c) asset management services; and (d) money lending
services.

Set out below is the breakdown of the Group’s total revenue for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2023:

B E S wm AT

5t % 1o

REESHAE ((HE)  AEENEEHE
BNBIEARECRRGHEER  BBEWE
NEVEEE () ETHEFRBERMETE 1
(BERS)ZHEETD  ()VETEHF LB K
BIETHEIOE(RHEETBE)IREITH &
(i EHEZET -

Wz

BEZF AREEEREEFPEY @2
R F A SHRETANFTLREREER
RS - REIEA - ARBEBBHETBLEN
BARIRIEMEFBRA B MRITEN RS
BERABKLEHER MEKRATERE (@)K
AT AR TS R AR BR TS WA+ (b) B2 35 B Fic & AR 75
(QBEEERS : R(d)BRERY -

ATEIAEEEEZE T _=F=A=+—H
ETREA AR ERA -

For the For the
fifteen months year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2023 2021
BE-®=-= HE-_T-—F
=A=+—-8A1k +=ZA=+—8H1
+HMEA FE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue recognised under HKFRS 9 REBBVHMELAE N
Rz W
— Interest income from margin financing ~ — ¥ & B & AR5 2 F B U A
services 3,905 7,786
— Interest income from money lending —ER®S 2R 2 WA
services 43,237 34,116
Revenue recognised at a point in time RIBE BT HHREERFE 1557
under HKFRS 15 PR — By ) B i 2R 2 W
— Commission income from brokerage — LR 2 A WA
services 1,119 1,672
— Underwriting and placement income — B REEWA 714 3,130
— Service income —BRFBUA 150 -
Total #Et 49,125 46,704
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()

(i)

(iii)

Brokerage and related financial services

During the Period, there was no significant improvement was seen
in the domestic economy and investment sentiment remained
bleak. According to the statistics released by the Stock Exchange,
the average daily turnover on the main board and GEM of the
Stock Exchange dropped by approximately 31% from HK$121.6
billion in 2021 to HK$83.9 billion in 2022 and the Hang Seng Index
had gone head over heels over the year 2022 by throwing off
15.5%, indicating that both stock market performance and trading
incentive were turning bad. Suffering from the aforementioned
factors, the Group’s securities brokerage income, which represented
approximately 2.28% of the Group’s total income, has dropped
to approximately HK$1,119,000 (for the year ended 31 December
2021: HK$1,672,000).

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 617 active securities accounts
as reported pursuant to SFO (31 December 2021: 634 active
securities accounts).

Underwriting and placing services

In addition to the traditional dealings in securities, the Group has
been paying effort in providing placing services. For the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2023, the Group recorded approximately
HK$714,000 placing commission income by completing two placing
exercises. However, given the sluggish market conditions, the
Group adheres to its prudent business strategies and stringent risk
management measures and therefore no underwriting services had
been offered during the Period.

Asset management services

The Group commenced to provide investment advisory and asset
management services after its SFC licence was reactivated during
the Period, in which OSL was allowed to carry on Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activity. The Group aims to develop its
asset management business by diversifying the types of investment
services to satisfy the needs of different clients. On 28 October
2022, OSL was appointed as the investment manager of an
investment fund to manage portfolio on its behalf under a non-
discretionary basis. During the Period, the Group recognised an asset
management fee of approximately HK$150,000.
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(iv)

Management Discussion and Analysis

On 9 February 2023, OSL signed another sub-management
agreement with a segregated portfolio company (the “SPC")
and was appointed as the sub-manager to provide assistance in
managing the investment of a designated fund. As at the date
hereof, OSL is still in progress of filing the necessary information
to the management of the SPC and is expected to start offering its
services early July 2023.

Further, the Group launched an open-ended fund, namely Orient
Global Master SPC, in August 2022. It is the objective of Orient
Global Master SPC to invest in a portfolio consisting primarily of
equities, bonds and other securities of companies in promising
industries with excellent management, business model, products and
sound financials for the long-term sustainable growth. It is currently
intended that this fund will target high net worth investors and
institutional investors seeking steady income and seed money will
also be invested into such fund when new capital is available to the
Group.

Money lending business

The money lending business is conducted by the Group’s wholly-
owned subsidiary, Orient Securities Finance Limited (“OSFL"), which
is a licensed money lender under the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Chapter 163 of the laws of Hong Kong).

During the Period, with the persistent slow-down of local economy,
uncertainty of the investment climate and the risk of its difficulties
in recovering certain debts, the Board has resolved to scale down its
money lending business by not approving any new loan application,
while focusing on extending the existing loan arrangement and/or
recovering from those non-performing outstanding debts.

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023, the interest
income from money lending services amounted to approximately
HK$43,237,000 and the expected credit loss allowance arising from
the Group’s money lending business aggregated to approximately
HK$143,107,000.

(iv)

B E S wm AT

RZZEZ=FZRANB RAEUZES
H— B EHAE AR ([SPC)) %5
F—oERE TEZTAIKEA
U EE—EETESHIEE - RA
FHAEH - RFENFEFHIELLMSPC
MERBRIMBAN  BHBERZ=Z
T=FEAVRKRREHRE -

PEAN  REEN T —F N\ AHERRER
I E & Orient Global Master SPC ° Orient
Global Master SPCH BRI EREE
HABTERAEEENERE HER
A EmERERMBARR 2 ARRRE -
EBEHEMEMBESEAKNREAS @ L&
BMRHBFERE - B ZESHEEZ
BEASKEFRANRFEEREER
WBIREE AAEEESHER &
FTEEMBRERZES °

HEXH

MEXBHASEE2ENBARRIE
MUBERLAR ((RFEMD K2 &
DA BEANGED (BEEDIF163F)
HTEFREREA °

REEA  ERAMCERFENRE R
BRSKATIBA KA T & e 2k A
WEl e - = e R A AR
EXEH  UEREREEY  RARE
EIRERBRBEERTH R HREZE
HAREENTRET

BE-_ZT-_Z—FZA=Z+—HIt+AE
A ER 2 F B U A L) A 43,237,000
BT MARENREEBEE CBHE
BEI8EEAE4 5 143,107,000 7T °
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(@) The existing business model and credit assessment procedures

Based on the existing business model, clients apply the loans
obtained from OSFL either for personal or corporate purposes.
The Group offers fixed-term loans to clients with maturity

periods up to sixty months.

To manage the associated credit exposure from the Group’s
money lending business, the Group has credit assessment and

internal control procedures.

The Group shall complete credit assessment for applicants for
its money lending services. In assessing their creditworthiness,
the Group primary focus is on the collateral and security (if
any) offered as well as the applicant’s background. The Group
evaluates collateral according to various matrices, such as their
liquidity, market value volatility and type. In addition to the
collateral, the Group’s credit assessment department takes into
account the client’s occupation, financial condition, reputation,
investment purpose, securities concentration, asset proof
and credit history, which facilitate the Group’s assessment on
the client’s repayment ability. Where necessary, the Group
may conduct credit search with external agencies to obtain
background information and credit history of its client.

(b) Assessment on expected credit loss and impairment

allowances

It is the policy of the Group to review the outstanding amount
of each loan at least yearly or in a more frequent manner
depending on individual circumstances or market condition.
Impairment allowances on individual assessed accounts are
determined by an evaluation of the incurred loss at balance
sheet date on a case-by-case basis, and are applied to all
individually significant accounts. Generally, impairment
allowances will be provided when clients’ collaterals are

insufficient to cover their outstanding loan balances.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 March 2023, the balance of the Group’s allowance
for impairment loss on loan receivables was approximately
HK$145,407,000. The Group’s allowance for loan impairment
losses is affected by various factors, including the quality of
the Group’s loan portfolio, the Group’s borrowers’ financial
condition, repayment ability and repayment intention, the
realisable value of any collateral, the extent of any guarantees,
the industry in which the borrower operates, as well as general
economic and business conditions. Many of these factors are
beyond the Group’s control.

As per the announcements published by the Company on
18 November 2022 and 13 January 2023, the Company has
established a loan receivables recovery committee to enhance
the efficiency in decision-making on, and implementation of,
matters in relation to the recovery of the Group’s outstanding
loan receivables and constantly keeps the Board update on the
recovery process.

On early January 2023, the Company engaged independent
legal advisers to have (i) a legal review of the existing loan
arrangements, which involves certain cross-border guarantee
or security provided by borrowers to guarantee or secure his/
her/its debts owed to the Group; and (i) an assessment on the
practicability of the enforcement procedures to take and cost
in case of a debt recovery.

By end of March 2023, the Board obtained legal opinion from
Beijing Jin Cheng Tongda & Neal (Guangzhou) Law Firm*
(bR &R E (BM) 8 E 5 FT), with the support of a
second legal opinion from Beijing Kangda (Guangzhou) Law
Firm (db = Bz iZ (B JN) £ Bl = 7 FT), both of which are
independent professional legal advisers, on matters relating to
the abovementioned, in particular, in relation to the followings
scope of services:

- advice on the PRC rules and regulations that is applicable
to the Group on cross-boarder security and guarantee
arrangements;

- advice on the necessary reporting and/or filling
procedures that is required to carry out before making a
cross-boarder financing transaction;

For identification purpose only
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B E R WA

- review and comment on last year PRC legal opinion

relating to the loan recovery procedures;

- advice on the rectification measures for issues arising
from deficiencies in the Group’s policies and procedures;

and

- advice on the enforcement process in the PRC and a
preliminary estimation on the successful rate, cost and
timing of liquidating or realising the value of collateral of

borrowers in the PRC.

In accordance with the said legal opinions, the Board realised
that the procedures for liquidating or otherwise realising the
value of collateral of borrowers in the PRC may be protracted
or ultimately unsuccessful, and the enforcement process in the
PRC may be difficult for legal and practical reasons. Moreover,
there is no assurance that the Group will be able to realise the

value of collateral in a timely manner.

Based the above legal assessment, the Company appointed
an independent professional valuer (the “Valuer”), to re-
access the respective expected credit loss (“"ECL") under the
ECL model in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 9 “Financial Instruments”. The valuation report
dated 23 June 2023 on loan receivables was issued by the

Valuer.

A probability of default approach was adopted in the said
valuation report to determine the ECL, that is, ECL = exposure
at default x loss given default x probability of default.
(Exposure at default is the amount of loan and interest
receivables that are exposed to credit risk; Loss given default
is the share of a financial asset that the lender shall lose if a
debtor defaults and is calculated as 1 minus recovery rate). A
default probability with a range of 34% to 52% were applied
by the Valuer after considering the external credit rating,
repayment history, past due and default status, financial
position of the debtors, as well as the progress of legal actions
taken by the Company for the recovery of the loan and interest

receivables (the “Factors”).

ORIENT SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2022

- YHEFAREREREFZ
FEAEERZERMEER

- BRAHHAKREZBREE
Fr R FE 5| 2 R Y BB
BZER &

- BRATENBRHAITEFZ
BERAERBEBREXERLE
RAERROEEZRDE
PR B B B H) P A ET o

Rig LAUERBR  EFSRRT
R BEE s A 77 B IR E K
ABRmHEEZIEF A REX
FEBY S AR - T AR A 58
TTI2Fr AT BE DA 2 K BRI oy 1 26
IAETT © esh - DMREAEE K AL
LR ERROEE-

ER LAUEREFE  ARBERE
BB R GER ([EEM]) RIE
EEVMBRELNFIORIEMT
HEIEHAEBEREERE (RS
FEBRDBEATEEZEMEE
E18 - (hERE LM E KB A
PR-T_=FA-_t+=HZMH
B#RE -

FiihEREFEAEROMEREET
TEHEEEE  NEAEEREE=
BRORKRBA X BHEEB X ELD
B (BEHREKRKOZEBEE
ERBzEWERRIRERS
T BYBEREEBARNE
BERABIEBLRZCBHEEMNE 7T
BRHERBIBRERER) - £ E &
HNEREE TR - ERGREE - @R
BHBER - BBAZTBARR - A
RARE A E ERER R AR
BReMERIVEETH 2 HE
(TRZE]) % HEMEEHR34% 2
52% 2 B HIBEE -



Management Discussion and Analysis

(c)  Actions taken by the Group to recover certain non-performing
loans

The Group further stepped up the collection of non-
performing loans and proactively notifying borrowers of due
dates and maturity dates. The Group re-allocated internal and
external collection resources and seek to recover those non-
performing loans through various means, including collection,
foreclosure on collateral, legal or proceedings, third-party
agent collection, waiver of interest or principal, loan restricting
and/or write-offs.

The Board has also considered, after obtaining opinion
from both Hong Kong and PRC legal advisers, the cost and
timing of the necessary procedures or otherwise realising
the value of collateral which may be protracted and difficult
to enforce claims in respect of such collateral. As a result, it
may be difficult and time or cost consuming for the Group
to take control or liquidate the collateral securing those non-
performing loans.

Further, the Group has already sent out invitations to several
professional institutions, including professional liquidators
and receivers, to seek an expression of interest for disposal
of its loan portfolio. Based on the preliminary feedback, it is
the intention of the Group to utilise the proceeds from the
disposal (if any) to settle the cost incurred by its ordinary and
usual course of business (i.e. IT new business). The Group is
committed to continuously improving its ability to manage
those non-performing loans and establishing and refining the
management system for loans collection or disposals.

The Group seeks to continue to improve its credit risk management
policies, procedures and systems, and has been able to effectively
control the level of its impaired loans, despite the financial turmoil in
the domestic markets.
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As at the date of this report, the overall management oversight is
provided by Ms. Lee Nga Ching, who is the executive Director. She
has over ten years of experience in the industry and is primarily
responsible for, among others, carrying out, supervising and
monitoring the daily money lending activities, reviewing and
implementing the company’s internal procedure and handling
recoverability of all outstanding debts.

Staff costs

The total staff costs for the Period was approximately HK$10.2 million
(2021: HK$9.3 million). The increase is mainly due to the recognition of
equity-settled share based expense approximately HK$1,987,000 during
the Period.

RAREEH  EBREREERMNTE
EFRELXTER - REFEBTFN
TEER T2 (EH8R)RA -
EEREZATRERD s kT
RAEAZABREFARRRBHAERESES
ZANEEEER -

BIREA

A B TR A4 5495 10,200,000 T (= F
Z—% :9,300,000/7T) © ZIBEEINEEZH
REAE AR ARE S E RN BERRR X
#91,987,000/8 ¢ °

2022 2021

—EB-—F —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

Commission paid to staff MEIXNz/AE 227 260
Directors’ emoluments and staff salaries, ZEZEME®ALRE IH S - E4L

bonus and allowances Ko RL 7,339 8,830

Equity-settled share based expense IR E AR AERARZ 1,987 -

Other staff costs including MPF and HtE IR (BRERES
insurance NARBR) 622 250
10,175 9,340

Administrative expenses

The total administrative expenses for the Period was approximately
HK$11.5 million (2021: HK$10.4 million). Such increase was mainly due
to the Period is covered fifteen months expenses, while 2021 is covered
twelve months only.

Income tax expenses

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the Group has no
assessable profit for the Period (2021: HK$5.3 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Profit for the year

The Group recorded a net loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$125.7 million for the Period (2021: profit HK$18.0
million). The increase in the loss attributable to owners of the Company
was primarily attributable to the recognition of an impairment for loan and
interest receivables of approximately HK$143.1 million.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$218.4 million (31 December 2021: HK$324.1 million), including
cash and bank balances of approximately HK$5.8 million (31 December
2021: HK$1.8 million). The current ratio, being the ratio of current assets
to current liabilities, was approximately 10.4 times as at 31 December
2021 (31 December 2021: 11.2 times). The change was relatively small.
The gearing ratio of the Group, being total interest-bearing debt (that is,
debentures) to total equity, was nil (31 December 2021: 0.29%).

The capital of the Group comprises only ordinary shares. Total equity
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$235.8 million as at 31 March 2023 (31 December 2021: HK$348.7
million).

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

Total employee costs for the Period was approximately HK$10.2 million
(2021: HK$9.3 million). The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated
on the basis of performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employee and make reference to the prevailing market conditions. Our
remuneration packages comprise monthly fixed salaries and discretionary
year-end bonuses based on individual performance, which are paid to
employees as recognition of, and reward for, their contributions.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

The Group did not have any charge arranged with any financial institution
in Hong Kong as at 31 March 2023 (2021: Nil).
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The revenue and business costs of the Group were principally denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and the Group’s financial statements are prepared
in Hong Kong dollars. As such the exposure to the risk of foreign
exchange rate fluctuations for the Group was minimal. Hence, no financial
instrument for hedging was employed.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 22 September 2022, OSL, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
as a defendant (the “"Defendant”) received a writ of summons (the
“Writ"”) issued in the Court of First Instance of the High Court of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region by a solicitor acting for Ms.
Dong Yun as a plaintiff (the “Plaintiff”) against the Defendant. As stated
in the statement of claim attached to the Writ, the Plaintiff, who was a
client of the Defendant, claim (the “Claim”) against, the Defendant, for
(i) damages for unlawful means conspiracy; (i) interest; (iii) costs; and (iv)
further and/or other relief in connection with a series of alleged unlawful
acts carried out by the Defendant with other defendants as stated in the
Writ.

After seeking professional advice from the legal advisor engaged by
the Company (the “Legal Advisor”), and to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
the Board believes that the Claim for conspiracy and/or fraud against
the Defendant is weak to the extreme and could hardly stand up to an
argument for overcoming the hurdle of time barred. By reason of the
facts and analysis conducted by the Legal Advisor, the Board is of the view
that the Claim will not have any material impact on the Group’s financial
position.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Change of Financial Year End Date

Pursuant to the resolution of the Board of the Company dated 13 January
2023, the financial year end date of the Company has been changed
from 31 December to 31 March. Accordingly, the next published audited
financial statements of the Group will cover 15 months’ period from 1
January 2022 to 31 March 2023. For more details, please refer to the
announcement dated 13 January 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Joint Venture Agreement

On 6 April 2023, the Company entered into a joint venture agreement (the
“Joint Venture Agreement”) with Mr. Su Boping (&#1AF), setting out
the arrangements relating to the formation of a joint venture to operate
an IT consulting services company with business portfolio including the
provision of IT infrastructure solution services, IT development solutions
services, and IT maintenance and support services.

To the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the Directors
having made all reasonable enquiry, Mr. Su Boping is an independent third
party and not connected with the Company and its connected persons (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules).

As all applicable percentage ratio (as defined under the Rule 19.07 of the
GEM Listing Rules) in respect of the Joint Venture Agreement is below
5%, the entering into of the Joint Venture Agreement does not constitute
any notifiable transaction under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Therefore, the formation of the JV Company as contemplated under the
JV Agreement is exempt from the requirements under Chapter 19 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

For particulars of the Joint Venture Agreement, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 6 April 2023.

The Master Services Subcontract Agreement

On 20 June 2023, Orient Securities IT Service Limited (“Orient IT"), being
the non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a master
services subcontract agreement (the “Master Services Subcontract
Agreement”) with Harvest Year Developments Limited (“Harvest
Year”), pursuant to which Orient IT agrees to appoint Harvest Year as its
subcontractor, and Harvest Year agrees to provide all necessary labour,
tools, software, machinery, equipment and other items and services for
the performance of the sequencing activities of IT infrastructure solution
services undertake by Orient IT under the contract(s) entered or to be
entered into between Orient IT and its client.

To the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the Directors
having made all reasonable enquiry, Harvest Year and its ultimate
beneficial owner are independent third parties and not connected with the
Company and its connected persons (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules).

As the transactions contemplated under the Master Services Subcontract
Agreement are in the ordinary course of business of the Group, therefore
the entering into of the Master Services Subcontract Agreement does not
constitute any notifiable transaction under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report
TrEREAWmE

Pursuant to Rule 18.44 and 18.81 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM (the "GEM Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the board (the “Board”)
of directors (the “Director(s)”) of Orient Securities International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
is pleased to present this corporate governance report for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2023. This report highlights the key corporate
governance practices of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining high standard
of corporate governance. The Directors believe that good and effective
corporate governance practices are essential for the growth of the Group
and for safeguarding the interests of shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) and the Group’s assets.

The Company'’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
"CG Code”) in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. Throughout the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this report, to
the best knowledge of the Board, the Company has complied with all the
applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code, save for the deviation
from code provision C.1.6 as explained below and the deviation from code
provision C.2.1 as mentioned in the section headed “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer” in this report.

Pursuant to C.1.6 of CG Code, the independent non-executive Directors,
as equal board members, should attend general meetings and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders of the Company.
Due to other unavoidable engagements, two independent non-executive
Directors was unable to attend annual general meeting of the Company
held on 6 June 2022.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted Rules 5.48 to 5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules
as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors (the “Required standard of Dealing”). Having made specific
enquiries of all the Directors, each of them has confirmed that they have
complied with the Required Standard of Dealings throughout the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2023. No incident of non-compliance was noted
by the Company during the fifteen months ended.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises seven Directors,
including four executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. Details of their composition by category are as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. Lee Nga Ching

Mr. Shiu Shu Ming'

Ms. Suen Tin Yan?

Mr. Chung Kar Ho Carol?
Mr. Lam Shu Chung*

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Siu Kin Wai

Ms. Chan Man Yi

Ms. Luk Huen Ling Claire®
Mr. Tang Chung Wai®

The biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out
under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this report.

The updated list of Directors and their role and function are
published at the Stock Exchange website and the Company’s website
(www.orientsec.com.hk).

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against the Directors since 18 February 2014.

! Appointed as a non-executive director with effect from 10 June 2022 and redesignated
to an executive director with effect from 5 July 2022.

Appointed as an executive director with effect from 18 November 2022.

Appointed as an executive director with effect from 17 May 2023.

Resigned as an executive director with effect from 19 August 2022.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee with effect
from 17 February 2023.

© Resigned as an independent non-executive director with effect from 17 February 2023.
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Corporate Governance Report
TrEREAWmE

Independent non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors representing more than one-third of the Board, and with at least
one of them possessing the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The independent
non-executive Directors, together with the executive Directors, ensure
that the Board prepares its financial and other mandatory reports in strict
compliance with the relevant standards. The Company has received an
annual confirmation of independence from each of the independent non-
executive Directors and believes that their independence is in compliance
with the Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board

The Board has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Group. They are collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising the Groups’ affairs. The Board is
accountable to Shareholders for the strategic development of the Group
with the goal of maximising long-term shareholder value, while balancing
broader stakeholder interests. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
responsibility to the executive Directors and senior management of the
Company who meet on a regular basis to review the financial results and
performance of the Group and make financial and operational decisions
for the implementation of strategies and plans approved by the Board.
The Board also communicates with shareholders and regulatory bodies
and makes recommendations to Shareholders on final dividends and the
declaration of any interim dividend.
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Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board meets in person or through other electronic means of
communication to determine overall strategic direction and objectives
and approve quarterly, interim and annual results, and other significant
matters. The Board held 23 meetings during the fifteen months ended
31 March 2023. Individual attendance records of each Director at the
respective Board and committee meetings are set out in the table on page
33 of this report.

The Board meets regularly on a quarterly basis. Notice of at least 14
days is given to all Directors for a regular Board meeting. Apart from
the regular Board meetings of the year, the Board also meets on other
occasions when a Board level decision on a particular matter is required.
For such, reasonable notice is generally given. All Directors have full
and timely access to all relevant information as well as the advice and
services of the company secretary, senior management and compliance
officer of the Company who are responsible for ensuring the compliance
of the Company with the GEM Listing Rules and advising the Board
on compliance matters. Directors are also provided with access to
independent professional advice, where necessary, in carrying out their
obligations as Directors. Any Directors and their associates who are
considered to have conflict of interests or material interests in the proposed
transactions or issues to be discussed in the Board meetings shall abstain
from voting on the relevant resolutions and are not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings.

At least 3 days (or such other period as agreed in advance) before each
Board meeting, a draft agenda is sent out to all Directors in order to allow
the Directors to include any other matters in the agenda that are required
for discussion and resolution in the meeting. To enable the Directors to
make informed decisions, Board papers together with all appropriate and
relevant information in relation to the matters of the meeting are sent
to all Directors 3 days or such other period as agreed before each Board
meeting such that the Directors have sufficient time to review the related
documents and be adequately prepared for the meeting.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
is responsible to keep minutes of all Board meetings and committees
meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to all Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
versions are available for inspection by the Directors.
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Relationships between the Board

Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report, none of the Directors have any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with
any other Director and chief executives of the Company.

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development Programme

Each Director receives comprehensive and formal induction and orientation
to ensure he/she adequately understand the operations and business of
the Group. The Company also provided detailed director’s responsibilities
and obligations statement pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules for the
Directors to review and study. In addition, materials in relation to regularly
update on latest development in relation to the GEM Listing Rules,
other applicable regulatory requirements and the Group’s business and
governance policies (the “Reading Materials in relation to Continuous
Professional Developments”) were circulated to the Directors.
Continuing briefings and seminars for the directors will be arranged as
necessary. The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional developments to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills periodically. The Company will continue to arrange training to the
Directors in accordance with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code.
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During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023, the Directors
participated in the continuous professional developments in the following
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manner:
Attending
seminars/
Reading courses/
Materials conferences
in relation in relation to
to Continuous Continuous
Professional Professional
Developments Developments
HERRBESHE
ERBESERR REZEHE
Name ®AH 2 BAE A R g8
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Lee Nga Ching THERT v/ -
Mr. Shiu Shu Ming' EECLEPE v -
Ms. Suen Tin Yan? BRRMRLZ 12 v -
Mr. Chung Kar Ho Carol? ERELE? -
Mr. Lam Shu Chung* IR o v -
Independent non-executive Directors B IEHITES
Mr. Siu Kin Wai BiREEE v/ 4
Ms. Chan Man Yi FREUEZ T v/ v
Ms. Luk Huen Ling Claire® BEEZ s v/ v
Mr. Tang Chung Wai® BRI A4S v -

! Appointed as a non-executive director with effect from 10 June 2022 and redesignated
to an executive director with effect from 5 July 2022.
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Appointed as an executive director with effect from 18 November 2022.

Appointed as an executive director with effect from 17 May 2023.

Resigned as an executive director with effect from 19 August 2022.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit

committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee with effect

from 17 February 2023.

6 Resigned as an independent non-executive director with effect from 17 February 2023.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(IICEO")

The Company has not yet adopted C.2.1 of the CG Code. Pursuant
to C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of Chairman and CEO should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEO should be clearly
established and set out in writing.

The Company currently has no Chairman or CEO. The daily operation and
management of the Company is monitored by the executive Directors as
well as the senior management.

The Board is of the view that although there is no Chairman or CEO, the
balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the Board,
which comprises experienced individuals who would meet from time to
time to discuss issues affecting operation of the Company and the Group.
This arrangement can still enable the Company to make and implement
decisions promptly, and thus achieve the Company’s objectives efficiently
and effectively in response to the changing environment.

The Company will, at the appropriate time, arrange for the election of the
new Chairman of the Board.

APPOINTMENT, RESIGNATION AND RE-ELECTION
OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are laid down in the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”). The nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”) is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-election
of Directors and succession planning for Directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors (“INED(s)").

Under the code provision B.2.2 and in accordance with the Articles,
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be
subject to re-election by Shareholders at the next general meeting of the
Company and any new Director appointed as an addition to the Board
should be subject to re-election by Shareholders at the next annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM") after their appointment.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity
Policy”) which set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognises the importance and the benefit of having a diverse
Board that fits its own business model and needs in order to achieve its
corporate goals and strategies. In designing the Board's composition,
board diversity has been considered from a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Company also sees diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage. The Company does not
discriminate on the grounds of race, gender, disability, age, religions or any
other factor. The Nomination Committee will review the Diversity Policy
and the measurable objectives at least annually to ensure the continued
effectiveness of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Diversity Policy and review the Board composition under diversified
perspectives annually to ensure the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs of the
businesses of the Company. The Nomination Committee would receive
nominations from Shareholders or Directors when such are tendered and
make recommendations to the Board on the candidacy of the nominees,
having regard to the Board’s compositional requirements and suitability
of the nominees. As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven
Directors. Three of them are INEDs, thereby promoting critical review and
control of the management process. The Company targets to maintain
a Board with female representation, and gender diversity is achieved in
respect of the Board. The Board currently has four female Directors and as
such has achieved gender diversity in respect of the Board. The Company is
conscious of gender diversity when considering potential successors to the
Board to achieve gender diversity, all appointments are ultimately made
on a merit basis taking into account available and suitable candidates. The
Board is also characterised by significant diversity, whether considered in
terms of gender, nationality, professional background and skills.

Our diversity philosophy including gender diversity was generally followed
in the workforce throughout the Group for the Period. As at 31 March
2023, the Company has 71% of male in the workforce while 29% of
female in the workforce. The Company is striving for gender equality in our
workforce and hire our employee only basis on their abilities.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the Nomination Committee and the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) (collectively “Board Committees”),
with defined written terms of reference which are in line with the code
provisions of the CG Code describing their respective authority and duties
and for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The terms
of reference of the Board Committees are published on the websites of
the Company (www.orientsec.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange (www.
hkexnews.hk). All the members of the Board Committees are INEDs. All
Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties, and upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense. Minutes of the Board Committees meetings recorded sufficient
detail of matters and the decisions reached were kept by the Company
Secretary and available for inspection by the respective committee
members.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and code
provision D.3.3 of the CG Code. The Audit Committee currently comprises
three independent non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Siu Kin
Wai. The other members are Ms. Chan Man Yi and Ms. Luk Huen Ling
Claire.

The primary duty of the Audit Committee are mainly to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditor, to approve their remuneration and terms of
engagement, to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards, to review the financial statements and material
advice in respect of financial reporting; and oversee financial reporting
system, compliance procedures, internal control, environmental, social and
governance matters, risk management systems, audit plan and relationship
with external auditor and arrangements to enable employees of the Group
to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company and monitor
continuing connected transactions. All members of the Audit Committee
are appointed by the Board.
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The Audit Committee has met its responsibilities to review the Group’s
quarterly reports for the three months and nine months ended 31 March
2022 and 30 September 2022 respectively, interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2022, second interim report for the twelve months
ended 31 December 2022 and the Group’s audited annual results for the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 and provided advice and comments
thereon. The Audit Committee also made recommendations to the Board
and the management of the Company in respect of the Group’s financial
reporting and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee held 8 meetings during the fifteen months ended 31
March 2023. Individual attendance records of each member of the Audit
Committee are set out in the table on page 33 of this report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established with written terms of
reference in compliance with code provision B.3.1 of the CG Code. The
Nomination Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Siu Kin Wai. The other members
are Ms. Chan Man Yi and Ms. Luk Huen Ling Claire.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on regular basis; identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members; to access the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and to make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning
for Directors. All members of the Nomination Committee are appointed by
the Board.

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023, the Nomination
Committee reviewed and discussed the structure, size and composition of
the Board and determined the policy for the nomination of Directors. In
recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the Nomination
Committee considers candidates on merit against objective criteria and
with due regards to the benefits of diversity to the Board. In designing
the Board's composition, the Board diversity is considered from a number
of perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, industry experience, technical and professional
skills and/or qualifications, knowledge, length of services and time to be
devoted as a director. The Company will also take into account factors
relating to its own business model and specific needs from time to time.
The Nomination Committee held 5 meetings during the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2023. Individual attendance records of each member
of the Nomination Committee are set out in the table on page 33 of this
report.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established with written terms of
reference in compliance with code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Siu Kin Wai. The other members
are Ms. Chan Man Yi and Ms. Luk Huen Ling Claire.

The primary duty of the Remuneration Committee is to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration structure and
policy, determining the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and the senior management as well as making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors with
reference to the corporate goals and objectives of the Board. The
Remuneration Committee is also to review and approve compensation
payable to executive Directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive; to review and
approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of
directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with contractual
terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate and to review and/
or approve matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 23 of the
GEM Listing Rules. No Director takes part in any discussion on his/her own
remuneration.

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023, the Remuneration
Committee determined the policy for the remuneration of executive
Directors, assessed the performance of executive Directors and approved
the terms of executive Director’s services contracts. The Group aims to
provide our employees with fair and equitable remuneration and benefits
based on individual performance, experience and the market benchmarks.
The Group have formulated our employee performance appraisal
mechanisms and makes appropriate salary adjustments in accordance with
employee performance and the employment market situation to reduce
the loss of talent. The Remuneration Committee adopted the model
which is described in the code provision E.1.2 (c)(ii) of the CG Code, it
makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee held 6 meetings during the fifteen months ended 31 March
2023. Individual attendance records of each member of the Remuneration
committee are set out in the table on page 33 of this report.
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Directors’ Attendance Record at Meetings

Details of the attendance of the Directors at the meetings of the Board and
its respective committees and general meeting during the fifteen months
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ended 31 March 2023 are as follows: FBEFBIT
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting

Attended/ Attended/
Eligible to Eligible to

attend attend
ENRZES
Exees =]

BHE/ BHiRE/

Attended/ Attended/ Attended/
Eligible to Eligible to Eligible to

attend attend attend
REZE8 FMZEES
=] 23 BRAE

Bt/ B/ B/

Name of Director EEfZ RERLE BRERLEE BERLE RERLE RERHE
Executive Directors HITEE

Ms. Lee Nga Ching FHRERT 23/23 N/A 73 A N/A 73 F N/A T8 212
Mr. Shiu Shu Ming' BRBALAE 16/16 N/A B N/A @ B N/A N F 7
Ms. Suen Tin Yan? N 777 N/A 7~ A N/A 7~ i F N/A T3 0/0
Mr. Chung Kar Ho Carol BRETES 0/0 N/A NE A N/A NE R N/A NEA 0/0
Mr. Lam Shu Chung? MBI 5 A 10/11 N/A i A N/A i N/A T 1/1
Independent non-executive BYFHTES

Directors

Mr. Siu Kin Wai REERE 22/23 8/8 5/5 6/6 22
Ms. Chan Man Yi BT 23/23 8/8 5/5 6/6 22
Ms. Luk Huen Ling Claire® BEEEZLS 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0
Mr. Tang Chung Wai® BRELES 0/23 0/8 0/5 0/6 0/2

1

o wooN

Appointed as a non-executive director with effect from 10 June 2022 and redesignated !
to an executive director with effect from 5 July 2022.

Appointed as an executive director with effect from 18 November 2022.

Appointed as an executive director with effect from 17 May 2023.

Resigned as an executive director with effect from 19 August 2022.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee with effect
from 17 February 2023.

Resigned as an independent non-executive director with effect from 17 February 2023. 6
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties in
accordance with code provision A.2.1 to the CG Code which are included
to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board and report to the
Board on such matters; to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management of the
Company; to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and
monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable
to employees and Directors; to review the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and
to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the Company’s
whistleblowing policy.

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023, the Board has
performed the corporate governance duties stated in code provision A.2.1
of the CG Code.

AUDITOR AND THEIR REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could
lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Company.

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023, remuneration paid and
payable to the auditor of the Group (the “Auditor”) are approximately
HK$540,000 (2021: HK$600,000) and nil (2021: HK$140,000) for audit
services and non-audit services respectively.

Director's Acknowledgement

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Auditor’s Statement
The statement of the Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on the
Company’s financial statements for the fifteen months ended 31 March

2023 is set out in the section “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this
report.
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Financial Reporting

The Management has provided to all Directors quarterly updates
with quarterly consolidated financial statements of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient details during the regular
Board meetings. In addition, the Management has provided all members
of the Board, in a timely manner, updates on any material changes to
the performance, position and prospects of the Company and sufficient
information for matters brought before the Board. The Management will
spare no effort to provide all members of the Board with more detailed
and promptly monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail in coming future.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with relevant requirements
could lead to adverse impact on business operation and financial position
of the Group.

The Board as a whole is responsible to ensure the Group is in compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group. To the best of knowledge of the Board, the Group has complied
with relevant laws and regulations during the fifteen months ended 31
March 2023.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for the establishment and
maintenance of an adequate and effective risk management and internal
control system to safeguard the Group’s assets against unauthorised use
or disposition, to ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
and compliance with relevant legislation and regulations and to protect the
interests of the Shareholders.

The risk management and internal control is also related to our
environmental, social and governance (“ESG"). Our risk management and
internal control system ensure the Company adheres closely to principles
of sustainable development, seeking to achieve required standards in the
areas of environmental protection, employment and labour practices,
operations practices and community service.
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The Group has engaged an external professional consultant to conduct
independent internal control review and report directly to the Audit
Committee. The review covering the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit, financial reporting functions, as well
as those relating to the Company’s ESG performance and reporting, is also
conducted annually. The Board and the Audit Committee have conducted
an annual review on the need of setting up an internal audit function
and having taken into account the scale of the Group, the Board and
the Audit Committee have considered that the setting up of an internal
audit function was not necessary for the time being and the Board might
consider engaging external services provider to perform the internal audit
function in future.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted an annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system, including, in
particular, financial, operational, compliance control and risk management
functions, environmental protection, employment and labour practices,
operations practices and community service for the fifteen months ended
31 March 2023 by considering written reports prepared by the external
professional consultant, covering the material financial, operational and
compliance controls, which are considered effective and adequate. The
Group’s system of internal controls includes a defined management
structure with limits of authority and the system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational
systems and achievement of the Group’s objectives. The Board will
continue to assess the effectiveness of internal controls by considering
reviews performed by the Audit Committee and executive management.

During the review, the Board also considered the resources, qualification/
experience of staff of the Group’s internal control, accounting and
financial reporting function as well as those relating to the Group'’s ESG
performance and reporting, their training and budget to be adequate.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Group has adopted its own information disclosure policy aiming
to provide a general guide to the directors and senior management of
the Company in handling of confidential information and/or monitoring
of information disclosure pursuant to applicable laws and regulations,
particularly the GEM Listing Rules and Securities and Futures Ordinance
("“SFO"). The Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information and has a system of internal procedures
for processing and publication of information in order to ensure the timely,
accurate and appropriate disclosure of relevant information to the public
and regulatory authorities. The Board authorised only the authorised
representatives registered in the Stock Exchange for responding on behalf
of the Company.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yip Yat Sing and Mr. Huen Felix Ting Cheung, the joint company
secretaries of the Company, are employees of the Company and accessible
by all Directors for advice and services with a view of ensuring that Board
procedures are followed. They support the Board and Board Committees
by ensuring good information flow and report to the Board and assist
the Board in functioning effectively and efficiently. Mr. Yip Yat Sing has
resigned as one of the joint company secretaries of the Company with
effect from 15 June 2022. Mr. Huen Felix Ting Cheung remained in office
and act as the sole company secretary of the Company.

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023, Mr. Huen Felix Ting
Cheung have duly complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules. The biographical
details of Mr. Huen Felix Ting Cheung are set out under the section
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company, any
one or more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM") to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for the Shareholders to put their enquiries to the board

The Company endeavors to maintain two way communications with the
Shareholders through various channels. The Shareholders are encouraged
to send their enquiries about the Group to the Company’s email at
info@orientsec.com.hk or by mail to the principal place of business of the
Company at 8/F., Hip Shing Hong Centre, 55 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong. All the enquiries are dealt with in a timely manner. The
Shareholders are also encouraged to attend annual general meeting and
EGM of the Company and to put their enquiries to the Board directly.
Notices are duly being circulated to the Shareholders in order to ensure
each Shareholder is informed to attend the AGM and the EGM. The
Directors, chairmen of each of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee and the senior management attend the
aforesaid meetings and respond proactively to the Shareholders’ enquiries.
The detailed procedures for conducting a poll are set out in the proxy
forms and will be explained by the chairmen of the annual general meeting
and EGM orally in the beginning of the aforesaid meetings.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company will only declare and/or recommend the payment of
dividends to Shareholders after considering the Company’s ability to pay
dividends. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Directors intend to strike a balance between
maintaining sufficient capital to grow our business and rewarding our
Shareholders. The declaration of dividends will be subject to the Directors’
decision and will depend on, among other things, our earnings, financial
condition, cash requirements and availability, and any other factors the
Directors may consider relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with applicable laws
and regulations including the law of Cayman Islands and the Company’s
Articles of Association.

The Board will continually review this policy from time to time and there

can be no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any
given year.
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BOARD INDEPENDENCE EVALUATION
MECHANISM

The Company has adopted the board independence evaluation
mechanism during the Period. The details are as follows:

Obijective

Continuing improvement and development of the Board and its committee
processes and procedures through Board independence evaluation
provides a powerful and valuable feedback mechanism for improving
Board effectiveness, maximising strengths, and identifying the areas that
need improvement or further development.

The evaluation process also clarifies what actions of the Company need to
be taken to maintain and improve the Board performance, for instance,
addressing individual training and development needs of each Director.

This mechanism is designed to ensure a strong independent element on
the Board, which allows the Board to effectively exercise independent
judgment to better safeguard Shareholders’ interests.

Mechanism

o Nomination Committee is established with clear terms of reference
to identify suitable candidates, including independent non-executive
Directors, for appointment as Directors.

o Nomination policy is in place with details of the process and criteria
of identifying, selecting, recommending, cultivating and integrating
new directorship.

. For independent non-executive Directors (“INED(s)"):

»  Every INED is required to confirm in writing to the Company
his/her independence upon his/her appointment as Director
with reference to such criteria as stipulated in the nomination
policy as well as the GEM Listing Rules;
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Each INED has to declare his/her past or present financial or
other interests in the Group’s business as soon as practicable,
or his/her connection with any of the Company’s connected
persons (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules), if any; and

»  Each INED is required to inform the Company as soon as
practicable if there is any change in his/her own personal
particulars that may affect his/her independence.

The Nomination Committee will assess annually the independence
of all INEDs and to affirm if each of them still satisfies the criteria
of independence as set out in the GEM Listing Rules and is free
from any relationships and circumstances which are likely to affect,
or could appear to affect, their independent judgement. Every
Nomination Committee member should abstain from assessing his/
her own independence.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an INED at the general meeting, it will set out in the circular to
Shareholders the reasons it believes he/she should be elected and the
reasons it considers him/her to be independent.

A mechanism is in place for Directors to seek independent
professional advice in performing their duties at the Company’s
expense.

Directors are encouraged to access and consult with the Company’s
senior management independently, if necessary.

An annual review on Board independence (the “Board
Independence Evaluation”) will be conducted, with an
intention to ensure that it remains independent in judgement, and
continues to present an objective and constructive challenge to the
assumptions and viewpoints presented by the management.

The Board Independence Evaluation may take in the form of a
guestionnaire to all Directors individually and may be supplemented
by individual interview with each Director, if necessary, and/or in any
other manners which the Board considers fit and necessary.
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o The Board Independence Evaluation report will be presented to the
Board which will collectively discuss the results and the action plan
for improvement, if appropriate.

o The results of the Board Independence Evaluation or a summary of
the findings of the said evaluation will be disclosed in the CG Report
contained in the annual report of the Company or on the Company’s
website for accountability and transparency purposes.

o The aforesaid Board Independence Evaluation will be regarded as
an ongoing exercise of the Company while the Company may seek
assistance from external consultant if an external evaluation on the
same subject is needed.

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 and as at the date of this
report, the Board Independence Evaluation had been conducted by way
of completing a questionnaire by all Directors. The results of the Board
Independence Evaluation are summarised as follows:

1. The Board as a whole possessed the skills and range of experience
needed to adequately fulfill its fiduciary responsibilities, more reliably
hold management to account, and better safeguard Shareholders’
interests.

2. Board meetings were conducted in a manner that allowed open
communication, meaningful participation (including in-depth
discussion and resolutions of issues).

3. Al INEDs brought independent judgement to bear on the Board’s
deliberations.

4. Al INEDs have actively participated in all Board meetings and Board
Committees’ meetings; and raised governance and ethical issues to
the Board.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

In compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the Board
adopted a whistleblowing policy during the Period. It provides employees
and the relevant third parties who deal with the Group (e.g. customers,
contractors and suppliers) with guidance and reporting channels on
reporting any suspected improprieties in any matters related to the Group
directly addressed to the designated person.

An email account (wb@orientsec.com.hk) has been set up for this
purpose. All reported matters will be investigated independently and, in
the meantime, all information received from a whistleblower and his/her
identity will be kept confidential.

The Audit Committee will regularly review the whistleblowing policy to
improve its effectiveness and employee confidence in the process and to
encourage a “speak up” culture across the Company.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

In compliance with the code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code, the
Board adopted an anti-corruption policy during the Period. It outlines
guidelines and the minimum standards of conducts, all applicable laws
and regulations in relation to anti-corruption and anti-bribery, the
responsibilities of employees to resist fraud, to help the Group defend
against corrupt practices and to report any reasonably suspected case
of fraud and corruption or any attempts thereof to the management or
through an appropriate reporting channel. The Group would not tolerate
any forms of fraud and corruption among all employees and those acting
in an agency or fiduciary capacity on behalf of the Group, and in its
business dealing with third parties.

The Board will review the anti-corruption policy to ensure its effectiveness

and enforce the commitment of the Group to the prevention, deterrence,
detection and investigation of all forms of fraud and corruption.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is
a key to enhance investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open
and timely disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and
investment public.

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023, the Company has
adopted a shareholders’ communication policy. The Company’s policy
on shareholders’ communication is to strengthen its communications
with shareholders and investors through various channels including
publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports, press releases and
announcements regarding the latest developments of the Company in
its corporate website at www.orientsec.com.hk at a timely manner. The
Company is also welcome the shareholders to express their view on the
Company by email to sh@orientsec.com.hk.

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023, the Company is of
the view that the implementation of shareholders’ communication policy
conducted are successful and the shareholders’ communication policy is
effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 17.102 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company its memorandum and articles of association. During the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2023, there had not been any changes in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

Corporate Governance Report
TrERERRE

REEBE

ARBRE #BRERETRTREEBR
2R YHNERRERREARKREER
BB R AR B 2R -

BE-_Z-_=F=-A=+—HI+AHEA &
ANAIE MR BBEE - AR RMREER
PR RERZEREMRERRRIREENE
B BRI R R R A R4 3 www.orientsec.com.
hk FIEEZEE - FHIRFERE  #hsac R
REERAIEREAS - RARMECIR RS
BEEH = sh@orientsec.com.hk A A RIEEERE
8.

HE_ZT-_=F=ZA=+—HILT+RHMEA &
REARBBREBBRRRTERR T LEAAK

>>g|;

BEEXMH
BIEGEM EHRBIE 1710216 KRR ER

R R ARF R B 2 BT HEABERR
MEERMA -BE-_T-_=F=A=+—H

RTEH EHFBEERAR AT / FR 2022

43



44

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR - e kEamE

INTRODUCTION

Orient Securities International Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “we") is pleased to present
this Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") report (the “Report”).
The financial year end date of the Company has changed from 31
December to 31 March. The Report covers the ESG activities, challenges,
and measures being taken by the Group during the 15 months from 1
January 2022 to 31 March 2023 (the “Reporting Period”).

The Group is an integrated financial service provider licensed to (i) conduct
Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities), and Type 9
(asset management) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO") (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) and (i) money
lending business, through its subsidiaries. Over the years, the Group aims
to establish an integrated platform for providing a wide range of financial
services to its clients. During the Reporting Period, the principal activities
of the Group mainly include (a) brokerage services; (b) underwriting and
placing services; (c) securities, initial public offering financing services; and
(d) money lending services.

As the Group’s business nature is the provision of financial services in
Hong Kong and is primarily office-based with relatively low energy and
resources consumption, its direct environmental impact is not significant
in the process of the Group’s daily operation and business development.
We adhere closely to principles of sustainable development, and seek
to achieve required standards in the areas of environmental protection,
employment and labour practices, operations practices and community
service. While acknowledging our responsibility to our stakeholders, we
encourage our staff to recognise those responsibilities and behave in a
responsible manner toward the society of the Group’s operating location.
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Environmental,

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
has the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting,
as well as overseeing and managing its ESG-related issues, in achieving
green operations for sustainable development. The Board reviews and
confirms the Group’s ESG-related risks and opportunities, performance,
goals and targets, progress made against ESG-related goals and targets,
management approaches, strategies, priorities of the Group’s material
ESG-related issues, and policies at least once annually with the assistance
of the Group’s senior management and independent ESG consultant. The
Board is diverse in its composition and is considered to have a balance of
skills and experience in overseeing the ESG-related issues of the Group.

The senior management of the Group facilitate the Board’s oversight of
ESG-related issues. They examine and address the ESG-related risks and
opportunities of the Group. They are responsible for the implementation
of the approved ESG policies and strategies; collecting, compiling
and formulating ESG-related data and statistics; and reviewing and
monitoring the legal compliance of ESG-related laws and regulations. The
senior management monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of the ESG
management system at least once annually and report to the Board on
their findings and recommendations on the Group’s ESG-related strategies,
priorities, goals and targets at least once annually.

The Group’s approach to corporate responsibility ensures that ESG risks
and opportunities are identified, evaluated and controlled in line with
the industry’s best practice. The Group has set the direction of balancing
economic success with environmental and social responsibility, in line
with the expectations of stakeholders. The Group also seeks to promote
sustainable business practices, increase transparency and ensure that the
Group risk management processes help to avoid negative environmental
and social impacts arising from its businesses. With the aim to align
with the Group’s commitment to sustainable development, it has set
targets on greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions, energy efficiency, water
consumption and waste management. Different measures and initiatives
are implemented with the aim of achieving these targets. The targets
and the progress made against the targets are reviewed by the senior
management of the Group and the result is reported to the Board at least
once annually.
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REPORTING STANDARDS AND BOUNDARY

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) as
set out in Appendix 20 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM (the "GEM Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Information relating to the corporate
governance practices of the Group has been set out in the Corporate
Governance Report in the Company’s annual report 2022/23.

During the preparation of this Report, the Group has applied the reporting
principles in the ESG Reporting Guide as follows:

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to identify material
ESG issues during the Reporting Period, thereby adopting the confirmed
material ESG issues as the focus for the preparation of the Report. The
materiality of ESG issues was reviewed and confirmed by the Board and the
senior management of the Group. For further details, please refer to the
sections headed “Stakeholders Engagement and Materiality”.

Quantitative: The standards, methodologies and applicable assumptions
used in the calculation of key performance indicators (“KPIs”) data were
supplemented by explanatory notes.

Consistency: The preparation approach of this Report was substantially
consistent with the ESG report of the previous reporting year and
explanations were provided regarding data with changes in the scope of
disclosure and calculation methodologies. The financial year end date of
the Company has changed from 31 December to 31 March. Therefore, the
Report covered the ESG activities, challenges, and measures being taken by
the Group for a period of 15 months, compared to 12 months for the ESG
report of the financial year from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
("2021").

The senior management of the Group discuss and identify the reporting
scope based on the materiality principle and by considering the core
business and main revenue source. This Report covers all of the Group’s
business operations, namely the Group's integrated financial service
business in Hong Kong, which is in line with the Company’s annual
report 2022/23. The reporting scope of this Report is consistent with the
reporting scope of 2021 ESG report.

This Report has undergone the internal review process of the Group’s
senior management and has been approved by the Board.
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY

Our stakeholder engagement approach is designed to ensure that our
stakeholders’ concerns and expectations are fully understood to help us
to decide our current and future business strategies for development with
sustainability.

We believe that the interests of our stakeholders must be taken into
account in order to strengthen our relationship with them. We engage
with internal and external stakeholders including shareholders and
investors, employees, government, customers and community through
communication channels listed below.
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Employees o Remuneration packages o Face-to-face meetings

o Training and development

o Healthy and safe working
environment

ETALIESS <

. = R B R

s RBEHEZEPTIFRE

7
]
[ ]

Government ° Compliance operation
. Environmental protection
° Employee protection
o Tax compliance
B F e  AREIE
o  IRRRE
e [EERE
o TBAER

Customers o Personal data privacy
o Customer satisfaction

NS s  BAAERLRE
s TFEMEE

° Training
o Complaints system

. EYERS
.

o  KIFES

° Written or electronic
correspondences
° Consultation and enquiry

e EHXETAEE
s WHNEW

J Company website

o Feedback from frontline
employees

o Company hotline

e NEHBUA

e JFIREIREE

] NS B

Community o Contribution to the community o Charitable and volunteering
activity
b . & E R . BENMERED
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To ensure that the ESG issues in this Report are critical and significant to
both the Group and its stakeholders, we have conducted a materiality
assessment during the Reporting Period. The Group identified material ESG
issues based on the existing operations and future development strategies
of the Group and taking into the consideration of industry standard. The
Group comprehensively assessed the importance of each issue based
on the level of influence on stakeholders’ assessments and decisions as
well as the level of significance of economic, environmental, and social
impacts by conducting the survey and collecting the feedback from the
stakeholders. The materiality assessment result is used to determine the
focus of disclosure in the Report and formulate the Group’s ESG strategies.
The Group will continue to conduct the materiality assessment in order to
analyse its business risks, enhance the relevance of the ESG reports and
respond to stakeholders’ expectations. The following matrix is a summary
of the Group’s material ESG issues.

Materiality Matrix
h EEMER

g

Environment and Natural Resources
BRERRAER

LEVEL OF INFLUENCE OF STAKEHOLDERS' ASSESSMENTS & DECISIONS
YR HE MR RR MR BI2E

RERANREMFIEARE LB REAER
HAKERESHEBRRIEE  RREY
W RADETEZ MG - AREREBEARS
ERARGEELRREBERRE Wt RITE
BRE CEHIEERE HENERHEE A
SEFERETREHERRERFNENRE -
RIBHFNETELRROZEREIALEE
B RELUHEFENEZRELHNGEE
BNERM BEUFAERANEEARE
MRBEEHLGIEAEBNERE HERER
KA - AEBRBELETEEMNNMG U
HEBRR - #IRE e REAmENA
R EEFHENDRE - AT EE AR EE

EERE HEREAREAME -

Anti-corruption

RES
[ ]
Health and Safety
e

[}
Use of Resources Empl t
Labour Standards fyan mpoymen

T | HIRFMA (=274
° [}

Product Responsibilities
EmEf

Development and Training Supply Chain Management Emissions
R RS (8 B 1R e
L [ ] [ ]
Community Services
)
[ ]
Climate Change
Faity Jid
[ ]
Low LEVEL OF SIGNIFICANCE OF ECONOMIC, ENVIROMENTAL & SOCIAL IMPACTS High
1€ HIOH Rk earENERRY =

During the Reporting Period, the Group confirmed that it has established
appropriate and effective management policies and internal control
systems for ESG issues and confirmed that the information disclosed in
the Report complies with the “comply or explain” provision of the ESG
Reporting Guide.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BOARD STATEMENT

The Board strongly believes that a sound governance structure is critical
to the effective management and implementation of ESG-related issues.
The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s corporate governance
and the overall ESG management approach, and supervising the data
collection, preparation and review of the Report. The details of ESG
governance structure of the Group are stated in the previous section of
the Report headed “Governance Structure”. The Group understands
the importance of environmental sustainability and protection. We are
mindful of the environment and are committed to preserving it. The Group
operates its business with relatively low energy and resource consumption,
and its direct environmental impact is not significant in the process of the
Group’s daily operation and business development.

To the best knowledge of the Board, the Group was in compliance with
applicable environmental laws and regulations in all material respects
during the Reporting Period.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Emissions

The Group is committed to providing quality financial services to its
clients in @ manner that minimises its potential adverse impact on
the environment. The Group has implemented policies to manage its
environmental impact, including air and GHG emissions and waste
disposal. Due to the nature of our business, there is minimal direct impact
on the environment and we do not generate material hazardous waste
or consume material amount of water, and the main GHG emissions of
the Group is the energy indirect GHG emissions. Our commitment to the
environment is focused on energy conservation, minimising the use of
paper and the reduction of waste by recycling.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not identified any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating to air and GHG
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste that would have a significant impact on the
Group. The relevant laws and regulations include, but are not limited to Air
Pollution Control Ordinance of Hong Kong, and Waste Disposal Ordinance
of Hong Kong.
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Air and GHG Emissions

Due to its business nature, the Group does not consume a material
amount of fuel, hence the Group does not generate a significant amount
of exhaust gas emissions nor direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) during its
operations. The major source of the Group’s GHG emissions was energy
indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2), which is from purchased electricity and
other indirect GHG emissions (Scope 3), which is mainly from disposal of
paper waste. During the Reporting Period, the Group has set a target to
echo with Hong Kong government’s “Hong Kong's Climate Action Plan
2050", actively responding to the government’s emission reduction plan,
and striving to achieve carbon neutrality and emissions target within the
target period. With the aim to achieve this target, the Group has actively
adopted energy conservation measures and initiatives which are described
in the section headed "Uses of Resources”, in order to reduce GHG
emissions during its operations.

The GHG emissions emitted by the Group’s business operation in the
Reporting Period was approximately 40,162.5 kgCO,e (2021: 51,110.0
kg CO,e). As the Group’s Hong Kong office has moved to new operation
location in October 2022, the electricity fee of the new office is included
in the property management fee. Therefore, the electricity consumption
of the Group from October 2022 is not available for calculating GHG
emissions, and the energy indirect GHG emissions of the Reporting Period
covered only the data of 9 months. Therefore, the Group’s GHG emissions
of the Reporting Period decreased significantly compared with 2021.
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Analysis of the major GHG emissions of the Group is set out below.

RIE - g REARE

AEBNETZREREBHMONEINAT -

1 January 2022 -

Sources of GHG emissions’ Unit 31 March 2023 2021
—E-—
—HA—HB=Z®
—E=
BEREHEBRIER B =A=+—H —ET-—F
Energy indirect emissions (Scope 2) kgCO,e 36,857.4 49,190.0
BERMEE A (FE2) TrR-_ALHREE
e Purchased electricity
« SNBEE S
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) kgCO,e 3,305.1 1,920.0
H 2 BERR (8818 3) TrR_ALREE
¢ Disposal of paper waste
o FRIBREA
Total GHG emissions kgCO,e 40,162.5 51,110.0
BERBHNAE TrR-_GALREE
Total GHG emissions intensity? kgCO,e/m? 104.8 88.6

BERBHEREERE?

Notes:

GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent and are based on,
including but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources Institute and the World
Business Council for Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange,
“Global Warming Potential Values” from the Fifth Assessment Report (AR5) of the
United Nation Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, and the 2022 Sustainability
Report published by the HK Electric Investment.

As the Group’s Hong Kong office has moved to new operation location in October 2022,
the weighted floor area of the 2 operation locations for the Reporting Period is used.
The Group’s weighted floor area during the Reporting Period was approximately 383.4
(2021: 577.1) m?. The data is also used for calculating the total non-hazardous waste
intensity.

TrR-ALREE/

MaE

1.
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B (BEETRR) R BRI 7T R R0
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Reduction of Hazardous Waste and Non-hazardous Waste

In view of the Group’s business nature, the Group did not generate a
material amount of hazardous waste during the Reporting Period. The
Group only generated a small amount of used toner cartridges and the
Group has collected the used toner cartridges and passed them to the
printer company for handling. In addition, we will donate our old desktop
computers and monitors to non-profit organisations for distribution to
those in need. In case there is any hazardous waste produced, the Group
must engage a qualified chemical waste collector to handle such waste
and comply with relevant environmental rules and regulations.

The type of waste produced by the Group is mainly waste paper from
daily business operations. With the growing awareness of reduction of
waste, other than formal documents that require the use of papers, each
department is advised to handle documents electronically. When the use
of paper is required, double-sided printing or using recycled paper is highly
recommended except for formal and confidential documents. During the
Reporting Period, the Group has set a target to organise at least one waste
reduction related activity in the financial year from 1 April 2023 to 31
March 2024 (“2024").

The amount of non-hazardous waste generated by the Group in the
Reporting Period was approximately 688.6 kg (2021: 400.0 kg). Due to the
change in the financial year end date, the amount of non-hazardous waste
of the Reporting Period covered data of 15 months. Therefore, the amount
of non-hazardous waste generated by the Group of the Reporting Period
increased significantly compared with 2021.

Analysis of the non-hazardous waste of the Group is set out below:

MOBERRYREBEZTREREY

ERARENERMLE  REERR - AEHE
VWAREEXEREERY AKBEELLE
EERNENE  AAKERRECEMRMNE
W& WHERGTERRREE o - 3,
IR IE A BRI E B B R R s -
NEDBEEEFTEAL - MEELEMNAEE
BY AREVEREAER(CEERYIE
BREZFERERYNETHBARERIER
o o

AEBEEANBERYELIERAEERE
BHEANER RRESHIBEZWHER -
B 4B AR SR A IE USRS - BAPIEEE & 1
FIANE FFRAEITEIX M - EF 2T
B FAPIRI 98 R AR B 1E =\ e 2 S M
EHITERERBFRA - RIBERR - AEE
BFVER RZT-_=FNA—HAE=Z
“HEZA=T-RALEFBRFE(=2=0
FDELAB—ORBERBRTE -

RIERN  AEBELENEZEENEN A
688.6 T2 (ZZ = —4 : 400.0 T 52) o ARG
BREEFHEAETE BEHANESEEYE
HE 158 AREIE - At - AEBERFESHR
EENBEEEEVEE T - —FRBEM -

AEENBEEERZYOMEIIMT

1 January 2022 -

Type of non-hazardous waste Unit 31 March 2023 2021
B F
—B—HZ
—E-=
mERBRZWER B =A=+—AH —EZ—F
Office paper Kg 688.6 400.0
NS TR
Total non-hazardous waste Kg 688.6 400.0
BERRVAE TR
Total non-hazardous waste intensity Kg/m? 1.8 0.7
BEERVEETE Fr FHK
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Uses of Resources

(a) Energy

The Group has implemented related policy to govern its uses of
resources. Due to its business nature, the Group does not consume
a material amount of fuel, hence the Group does not have any
direct energy consumption. The energy consumed by the Group
was mainly indirect energy consumption which is purchased
electricity consumption for operation. The major source of electricity
consumption of the Group was the use of lighting system, air-
conditioning and office equipment. During the Reporting Period, the
Group has set a target to promote electricity conservation methods
on Earth Hour in 2024 and a target to change all lighting in the office
to light emitting diode (“LED") by the year from 1 April 2024 to
31 March 2025 (“2025"). In addition, we have been implementing
measures to achieve higher energy saving performance and reduce
energy consumption.

As a supporter of environmental protection, the Group strives for
efficient and effective use of energy and resources in the Group’s
operation. Energy conservation is a priority under the Group’s
environmental protection strategy and energy-saving devices are
used when applicable to reduce power consumption. To enhance
environmental awareness and encourage daily participation among
the staff, there are recommendations to them to reduce energy
wastage including, but not limited to:

o Turn off lights and electronic appliances in office premises
when not in use; and

o Turn off the power for computers, photocopy machines,
printers and facsimile machines when not in use.

The amount of energy consumed by the Group in the Reporting
Period was approximately 54,202.0 kWh (2021: 69,281.0 kWh).
As the Group's Hong Kong office has moved to new operation
location in October 2022, the electricity fee of the new office is
included in the property management fee. Therefore, the electricity
consumption of the Group from October 2022 is not available and
the energy consumption of the Reporting Period covered only the
data of 9 months. Therefore, the Group’s energy consumption of the
Reporting Period decreased significantly compared with 2021.
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Analysis of the energy consumption of the Group is set out below:

REBHBEREROMEINAT -

1 January 2022 -

Indicator® Unit 31 March 2023 2021
—E=-C
—A—HB%
—E-=
EiE3 By =A=+-—H T
Indirect energy consumption kWh 54,202.0 69,281.0
A2 BB #E FEBF
e Purchased electricity
o JNEE ]
Total energy consumption kWh 54,202.0 69,281.0
R H R E FEE
Total energy consumption intensity* kWh/m? 93.9 120.1
R EEEERE FEREFHK
Notes: B3
3. The unit conversion method of energy consumption data is formulated based on 3. BERBREEUR M B E 5 E T IR R B BR B

the Energy Statistics Manual issued by International Energy Agency.

4. As the electricity consumption of the Group’s new operation location of Hong
Kong office is not available, the energy consumption of the Group during
the Reporting Period covered only the electricity consumption in the previous
operation location. Therefore the floor area of the previous operation location is
used to calculate the total energy consumption intensity, which is 577.1 (2021:
577.1) m2,

(b) Water (b)

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, the Group does not
consume material amount of water. The water consumption of the
Group was minimal and was included in the property management
fee and therefore the figures for the Group’s water consumption
were not available. Despite the minimal water consumption, the
Group still set a target to conduct a water conservation activity in
2024 during the Reporting Period. Given the geographical location
of the Group’s operation, the Group does not encounter any
significant issues in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.
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(c) Packaging material

Since the Group is principally engaged in the provision of financial
services, packaging is not involved in the daily operation of the
Group’s business, and therefore the Group considers the use of
packaging materials during the Reporting Period as not material.

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group seeks to work toward environmental best practices. This
involves giving careful consideration to various operational aspects and
activities to minimise any environmental impact and implement policy to
govern its impacts on the environment.

Despite the fact that the Group’s daily operations and business
development do not cause material and adverse direct impact on the
environment and natural resources, the Group has also taken steps to
reduce its impact on the environment by adopting energy and resources
saving measures as mentioned above in response to the potential adverse
impacts on the environment and natural resources. Green messages
and practical tips for green living will be circulated amongst employees
to achieve environmental sustainability. The Group is also committed
to raising the awareness of environmental protection of its employees
by educating its employees about environmental protection. During
the Reporting Period, the Group shared a series of videos related to
environmental protections and green operations with its employees,
covering topics including reducing GHG emissions, saving paper, saving
electricity, saving water and waste recycling.

Climate Change

Climate change is the one of the severest challenges around the world
in the century. Climate change poses escalating risks and challenges to
the global economy, and such risks may negatively impact the Group’s
financial performance and business. As a result, the Group has established
a policy to manage any major impacts caused by climate change. The
management of the Group holds meetings regularly to identify and
evaluate the impact of climate-related risks on the Group’s business and
corresponding opportunities. With reference to the risk categorisation
by recommendations from the Taskforce on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosures established by the Financial Stability Board, the identified
climate-related risks of the Group and corresponding actions taken to
manage them are as follows:
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For physical risk, climate change leads to the increase in extreme weather
events, such as typhoons, storms and heavy rains, which can disrupt the
daily operations of the Group by causing damage to power grid and
communication infrastructure and hindering and injuring the Group’s
employees during their work, or on the way going to work. These could
result in temporary or partial halt of the Group’s business operations,
which exposes the Group to risks associated with reduced revenue and
higher operational costs.

To better manage the above physical risks, the Group has formulated an
emergency plan which is reviewed regularly to respond to such events,
including procedures to approach typhoons and black rainstorms. The
relevant procedures and measures are outlined in the Employment
Handbook. When extreme weather events occurred or will possibly
happen, the senior management will react according to the plan and
timely communicate with the employees about the work arrangements to
ensure staff safety and operational continuity.

Considering the transition risk, the Group expects that there will be more
stringent climate legislations, regulations and policies. For example, the
Stock Exchange has required listed companies to enhance climate-related
disclosures in their ESG reports. In addition, the Hong Kong government
has set its own carbon neutrality targets, therefore, policy actions related
to climate change and environmental protection will continue to develop.
Under more stringent and aggressive policies and regulations, the Group
may face higher operating and compliance cost to comply with relevant
laws and regulations. Failure to meet the climate change compliance
requirements may expose the Group to risks of claims and lawsuits. The
Group’s reputation may also decline consequently.

In response to the policy and legal risks as well as the reputation risks,
the Group regularly monitors existing and emerging trends, policies
and regulations relevant to climate and be prepared to alert the top
management where necessary to avoid cost increments, non-compliance
fines or reputational risks due to delayed response.

To minimise the risks from climate change, the Group is committed to
reducing its GHG emission by adopting various environmental policies and
measures, such as reducing the use of electricity. The Group also focuses
on reducing GHG emissions in its supply chains, such as encouraging its
supplier to consider and actively mitigate their impacts on climate change.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Employment, Health and Safety

The Group has established the Employment Handbook which builds a
holistic system for employment practice, covering compensation and
dismissal, promotion, working hours, rest periods, and other benefits
and welfare. The Group not only rewards and recognises employees with
competitive remuneration package and promotes career development and
progression by providing opportunities for career advancement, but also
provides support in different areas for its employees. In addition to other
staff welfare, such as paid annual leave, paid sick leave, compassionate
leave and Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF") schemes, the Group’s
medical insurance packages are also provided to its staff at no expense to
them.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not identified any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations including but not
limited to Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong, Minimum Wage
Ordinance of Hong Kong, Bill of Rights Ordinance of Hong Kong,
Sex Discrimination Ordinance of Hong Kong, Disability Discrimination
Ordinance of Hong Kong, Family Status Discrimination Ordinance and Race
Discrimination Ordinance of Hong Kong, Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance of Hong Kong, and Employees’ Compensation Ordinance of
Hong Kong, that would have a significant impact on the Group.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 17 employees (excluding
independent non-executive Directors), all of them are in Hong Kong. All
of our employees have employment contracts that cover matters such as
wages, benefits and grounds for termination. The Group’s remuneration
policies and packages are reviewed by the management on a regular basis.

RIE - g REARE

EBREREIER

BR REEZE

AEECHERBTM TE—EAZmANER
FRALG HPREFHMLRE BT TF
RFEL - BREIA R B A8 R AR A  AERERR T
BREHARFONFHTBEBDRKREGE
B RHUEARSREREBRELERRI
NeETRBERSREERMEE R THME
TR flImEFHFER - SHER - RMmRR
wEEAES (RRE]) 8 AEETFRE
TRERHBERRTE -

RBEMA - AEBE W REREMNRERRA
AR MERAL AT E AR EERENTZENIT
N REBEARIERBBETRREE(RERE
&) ~ EE(RELE GG - EBCAREZX
&P - BB CERIEAREDD - BEEK
IR ARG ~ BBCKE A AR GD) REE
(EREBRGD) - FE(RELT 2 REREED)
KEB(REMEGRN) -

RZZEZ=F=A=+—RH AEEHF174
BE (TREBIENTES)  2HHIURE
& 2EMEBMBRINEBEH  FIREEHE
BREIE BAMSEREAZERS - A%KH
ZHMNECR KB R EIRE E R o

RTEH EHFBEERAR AT / FR 2022

57



58

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Breakdown of workforce of the Group is set out below:

AEBEE N 2 BARHINAT

As at 31 March

2023
R-ZZEZ=fF
Categories Al =A=+-—H
Workforce by gender RERIE DN E D
Male Bt 12
Female g 5
Workforce by age group RERARESNEE N
18-25 18-25 -
26-35 26-35 2
36-45 36-45 4
46-55 46-55 7
56 and above 56 &A= 4
Workforce by employment type REBEREINELE D
Full-time £ 15
Part-time B 2

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s overall employee turnover rate AR EHA - NEEB 2 BEREE RAE

was approximately 29.2%?°.

29.2%" °
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Environmental,

Breakdown of the employee turnover rate is set out below:

Social and Governance Report
BRI e REamE

BEMKEZA@ESIMT

1 January 2022 -
31 March 2023

—-A—RE
—E-=
Categories EHl =A=+-—H
Employee turnover by gender® REREDHNEER K=
Male Bt 25.0%
Female g 37.5%
Employee turnover by age group® RERARNEIHNES R K ZES
18-25 18-25 -
26-35 26-35 33.3%
36-45 36-45 20.0%
46-55 46-55 30.0%
56 and above 56 KA+ 33.3%
Note(s): PR EE -
5. The calculation method is dividing the number of employees leaving employment during 5. ZETE T ERRM BT E N B E B 8 E R IARY

the financial year by the sum of the number of employees at the end of the financial year
and the number of employees leaving employment during the financial year, multiplying
by 100%.

6. The calculation method is dividing the number of employees leaving employment in the
specific category during the financial year by the sum of the number of employees at
the end of the financial year and the number of employees leaving employment during
the financial year in the specific category, multiplying by 100%. Relevant data using the
abovementioned calculation method is disclosed starting from the Reporting Period.

Human resources are the most valuable asset of the Group. Developing
and retaining talents are vital to our success and maintaining good labour
relationships is essential for sustainable development of our business.

The Group considers its employees as vital assets and is committed to
providing them with a safe, pleasant and healthy working environment.
During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with health and safety-related laws and regulations,
including but not limited to Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
of Hong Kong, and Employees Compensation Ordinance of Hong Kong
that would have a significant impact on the Group. In the past three years
(including the Reporting Period), the Group did not record any cases of
work-related fatalities. In addition, the Group did not record any work-
related injuries nor losses in working days due to work-related injuries
during the Reporting Period.

BREEANEEEERNVRFEANERESHE
2 KB F’LA100% ©

6. ZETE R AR BFE N TR BB E 8 8
SRV EERIR T B EE RN E S S E RN
FERNNBERESHE 28 FTA100% - A L
METE AR ARMEUR B RS BRI -

ANERRAGEZABEEE - BELEBE
ATHBEMNKDERER - MEF RIFNS
BRRHEMEREOAIBERRL A D -

AEEKREREA/REHRERZEERBIN
BAA R L2 GFE R BENTHERE - R
BERAR  AREY AR EAERERREE
RZ2HEERIOEREMBAKSEREREKR
FENEN  ZFERLERBRETERE
BCREL 2 RBERDD) RFE(EBMERK
) RBE=F (BERBEH)  AEELE
BREEAETTHRER - HH - REEHA
REEY BFEEMN TESFH  HEETEM
BARTHERE -
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The following occupational health and safety measures have been
implemented by the Group to protect the health and safety of all
employees:

o Continuously provide and maintain a safe working environment that
poses no threat to the health and safety of our employees;

o Regularly carry out inspections at the workplace to identify any
unsafe working conditions and correct any potential hazards once
they are identified;

o Perform regular checking and maintenance of office machines,
equipment and fire extinguishers;

o Maintain and check first-aid kits regularly to ensure necessary items
are in place;

o Attend the fire drills organised by the property management
company to help employees, especially new joiners, get familiar with
the escaping routes in case of fire; and

° Report the work injury (if any) in accordance with the work injury
reporting guideline as required by the Labour Department of Hong
Kong government.

The Group has listed the guideline for reporting work injury in its
Employment Handbook to ensure the procedure is well-recognised by its
employees.

To maintain a safe and comfortable work environment, the professional
cleaning company will clean and sanitise office areas and equipment
regularly. The Group also designs and plans office layouts based on
relevant safety provisions, and ensures that fire escapes are not blocked.
The Group also reviews its office environment and its safety policies
regularly to make sure that daily operations comply with all applicable laws
and regulations.
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Development and Training

The Group is subject to various ordinances, rules and guidelines such as,
but not limited to, the SFO, Money Lenders Ordinance of Hong Kong,
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong, the GEM Listing Rules
and the Guideline on Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing by Securities & Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC"”). The
Group is aware of the continuous development and updates of relevant
laws and regulations and the needs for its employees to receive regular
training in order to practise their duties in compliance with the latest
laws and regulations. Each department of the Group is responsible for
determining its training needs for employees in its department and any
suggested applicable training courses either arranged internally or by
external service providers shall be submitted to the senior management of
the Group for approval. Knowledge, skills and capacities of employees are
vital to continuous business growth and success of the Group. The Group
strives to ensure that all employees can fulfil the relevant job requirements
in terms of education, training, technical and work experience.

The percentage the employees trained during the Reporting Period was
approximately 100.0%’.

Percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category is set

RIE - g REARE

R R

AEBZZIAGH - RARIESIPIEE - fltn
(BERRR) &7 RE G - FEEARK
5y ~ BECEAEFR (L) RH1) - GEM L
MA URBFBEFMMEEHEREZE S
((REG)HHOHGTEARNZHD FES
‘R 2ESD - AEE THARADER ZF
BEREREMEL URAEEBTIRETHER
Bl MERBEIERERBITRENR
B - AEEXIHFIEERERMBPIEERIFE
K RERZBE SN AR SR S B i e O (£ R 4R
FEIREARAAEBSREREE B
BRAE - BBE R N BN AR B XTS5 AT
RERWEHER - AEEHNERAEEER
EHE il Bk TEER T ESNE A
FATEZEK -

RB|BERAZIEIEE B LLHR100.0%

R MEEBRAE D ZZIBIRE B

out below: IR -
Breakdown of

trained employee®
Categories Hhl ZEIES P
Breakdown by gender & B &8 2 19 B 4
Male S 70.6%
Female 2z 29.4%
Breakdown by employee category REBEREWHA
Senior management BRERRE 29.4%
Middle management PRERERE 23.5%
General employee LEES 47 1%

The average training hours completed per employee during the Reporting
Period was approximately 3.6 hours®.

RS NS 4R B RIS B F R8RS
.6

3.6/ \EFo o
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The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category is set out below:

IR R B BIERIEID 2 54 R B2
FHEHNT

Average training

hours?® (hours)
FEYR B
Categories Hhl (/NBF)
Training hours by gender 1R B & 2 19 15 31 B B
Male S 35
Female 2z 4.0
Training hours by employee category RESEFE 5 HIEIRE
Senior management BRERRE 4.0
Middle management FREEE 35
General employee LiEES 35
Notes: FfsE -
7. The calculation method is dividing the total number of employees who took part in 7. FTEFERNMEEERN2ME IR ES BRI
training during the financial year by the number of employees as at the end of the HEMRFERNESHE © FLA100% °
financial year, multiplying by 100%.
8. The breakdown of trained employees by category is calculated by dividing the number of 8. RERE SR EIESRMBERRIBFEEALM

employees in the specified category who took part in training during the financial year
by the total number of employees who took part in training during the financial year,
multiplying by 100%. Relevant data is disclosed starting from the Reporting Period.

9. The average training hours completed per employee (by category) is calculated by
dividing the total number of training hours for employees (in the specified category)
during the financial year by the total number of employees as at the end of the financial
year (in the specified category). Relevant data is disclosed starting from the Reporting
Period.

Labour Standards

The Group establishes recruitment policies according to applicable
laws and regulations of Hong Kong. The Group makes certain that
its employees are all above the minimum legal working age and have
been fully protected in terms of labour standards, and that all laws and
regulations prohibiting child labour and forced labour are complied with.

The Group requires verifying the age of applicants during the recruitment
process to prohibit hiring any child labour. Also, the labour standard of
the Group, including working hour, has been listed clearly in Employment
Handbook to ensure the employees are well-informed about their rights.
Employees of the Group work overtime on a voluntary basis to prevent any
breaches of labour standards.
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If there is any suspected violation case regarding child and forced labour,
the Group will conduct an investigation. When the violation case of child
labour is confirmed, the Group would terminate the employment contract
of the child labour in real-time and might take disciplinary actions against
any staff members who are responsible for the cause of the incident. For
forced labour case, the Group would terminate the employment contract
of and might take disciplinary actions against staff members who are
responsible for the case.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating to child and
forced labour, including but not limited to Employment Ordinance of Hong
Kong that would have a significant impact on the Group.

All recruitment, remuneration, training, and promotion mechanisms are
carried out impartially, and individuals are assessed solely on the basis of
professional experience and/or work performance. No one is subject to
discrimination due to age, gender, race or skin colour. The management of
the Group regularly reviews its internal management system, and revises its
remuneration and welfare policies according to changes in labour laws, to
ensure that its employees enjoy all statutory rights.

OPERATIONS PRACTICES

As a professional financial services provider, the Group sets up a
comprehensive and effective compliance procedure to ensure its full
compliance in daily operations with all applicable laws, rules and
regulations. It also keeps a close eye on changes to laws and regulations
in its operating location, and makes appropriate and timely adjustments
in its internal control policies. To ensure its overall operations are in line
with all legal compliance requirements, the management of the Group also
disseminates information on related changes by email or other means to
update employees on new developments. The Group reviews its internal
and external operations practices from time to time, and takes the initiative
to revise management policies when necessary to adjust its corporate
governance practices. In addition, the Group has obtained all the licences
required by all relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, including those
for carrying out dealing in securities and advising on securities under the
SFO and money lending business under the Money Lenders Ordinance of
Hong Kong. Management of the Group will ensure employees comply
with all relevant laws and regulations whenever they provide professional
financial and investment services to the Group’s clients.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group recognises the importance of its suppliers of office supplies.
The Group adopts supplier management policy in accordance with its
internal guidance. Our suppliers are subjected to screening and evaluation
procedures, based on the quality, price and if they are environmentally
friendly. We compare our suppliers based on their quotations and other
information that we can search publicly or provided by the suppliers. We
also focus on whether the products from the suppliers are environmentally
friendly and will give priorities to suppliers who provide or promote
environmental products or services in the selection process, for example,
we will compare the electrical applicants and which use the least electricity
will be chosen.

The Group also carries out regular assessment of its suppliers on their
quality, price, environmental performance, reputations and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations. In case the Group discovers any major
non-performance of the supplier, the Group will review their suitability to
remain on its approved list.

The Group also pays attention to the environmental awareness of
its suppliers and promotes sound environmental performance and
governance practices amongst its suppliers. The Group encourages its
suppliers to consider the risks posed to their operations from climate
change and to actively mitigate their environmental impacts.

Moreover, we perform close monitoring of the business practices of
suppliers through news or social media. Any observations of non-
compliance will be reported immediately to the Group’s management and
corrective action plan will be carried out to remediate the identified risks in
a timely manner. The Group will review its supplier management measures
regularly to ensure their effectiveness.

Number of major suppliers cooperated with the Group during the
Reporting Period was 13, all of which were from Hong Kong and complied
with the Group’s supplier management policy. The Group was not aware
of any suppliers that has any significant negative impact on the business
ethics, environmental protection and labour practices.
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Product Responsibilities

As a professional financial services provider, the Group aspires to provide
its customer with the best services quality. In relation to financial services
business, to avoid any loss suffered by clients due to systems failures or
delays in transactions, the Group has established an emergency plan to
ensure that proper measures are taken should system errors occur to
reduce any potential client losses to a minimum. Our management will
also review our transaction system regularly and make improvement to our
transaction system, including the internal control and management system
or facilities, where necessary, to avoid occurrence of system failure.

Since we only provide financial services to our clients, due to the nature of
our services, we are not applicable to disclose the product recall procedure
or the percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.

We provide customer-oriented services according to the needs of our
customers and also encourage them to make suggestions, so as to improve
our service quality and enhance our competitiveness. We have established
predetermined complaint-handling procedures which are listed in our
Operational Manual. Should the Group receive any client complaint, it
will be handled by Responsible Officer for investigation and management
decisions. During the Reporting Period, the Group has not received any
material complaint.

The Group recognises the importance of the protection over intellectual
property rights and consumer privacy. The Group only use the software
and information with proper licenses in its business operation. Apart from
its product and service quality, the Group emphasises the importance of
the confidentiality of personal data and the privacy of its clients and we
adhere to the provisions of Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong
Kong when collecting, processing and using clients’ personal data. The
procedure for handling personal data is listed in the Group’s Credit Policy
and Operational Manual. The Group will review the related measures
regularly to ensure their effectiveness.

As a professional financial services provider, the Group does not consider
advertising and labelling as material ESG issues for it. Nevertheless, the
Group requires the information provided in the Group’s dealings with its
clients to be complete, true, accurate and clear.
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Anti-corruption

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with any laws and regulations relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud, and money laundering in Hong Kong including but not
limited to Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong, that has a
significant impact on the Group. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not have any concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the Group or its employees.

The Group has worked to establish a corporate culture of integrity and
justice, and treats integrity as one of its core business principles. To raise
anti-corruption awareness among its employees, the Group lays out Codes
of Conduct concerning the conflict of interest and business conduct in its
Employment Handbook.

We also encourage employees to report their interests and make good
use of the whistleblowing mechanism to eliminate illegal activities such
as money laundering, bribery and fraud. The Group has whistleblowing
procedures in effect. The employees can report directly to the Group for
any misconduct and dishonest behaviours, such as bribery, fraud and
other offences. The Group will handle the report it received seriously
and investigations will be performed with the approach as stipulated in
the Whistleblowing Policy. Disciplinary actions would be adopted once
the guilty or misconduct is proven. Also, we promise to ensure that
whistleblowers are not treated unfairly and that their identity is kept
confidential. To ensure the effectiveness of this mechanism, the Group will
conduct regular reviews.

Moreover, the Group emphasises in its Employment Handbook that the
Group does not tolerate any corruption, and the Group will terminate
the employment contract with any employee who is bribed and reserve
the right to take further actions against such person. The Group promises
to provide training to all Directors and employees in regards to anti-
corruption policies and procedures at least once annually, so as to
maintain employees’ awareness of anti-corruption best practices. During
the Reporting Period, the Group has provided anti-corruption training to
its Directors and employees, which covers content of relevant laws and
regulations and case studies.
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COMMUNITY SERVICES

Charity and Community Work

The Group regards contributions to society as part of its mission. Our
business development strategy also pays close attention to community
welfare. The Group has been devoted to promoting community
development by taking the lead and encouraging employees to care for
the community. Relevant policy is adopted by the Group to govern its
community contribution.

The Group focuses on helping charitable, cultural, medical, educational
and other needs of society through donations and sponsorships by
supporting non-profit making organisation. The Group wishes to raise
fund as caring for people in need and supporting charity activities.

Charity Donations

During the Reporting Period, the Group has devoted significant resources
to maintain its business operations in the pandemic and has not made any
charitable donation. The Group will consider from time to time to donate
to charitable organisations when the Group identifies a suitable non-
profit-marking organisation and has sufficient financial resources.
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ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE BXRE @ RkE8HEiES

STOCK EXCHANGE AEE =]
Mandatory Disclosure Requirements Section/Declaration
BEIRERE 5589
Governance Structure Governance Structure
A 4\7.'”:1 1% L\?JD *ﬁ
Reporting Principles Reportlng Standards and Boundary
HERA HEERA R EHE
Reporting Boundary Reporting Standards and Boundary
HEEE HwEEAREE
Aspects, General Description Section/Declaration
Disclosures and KPIs
—BRIREREE P 4-0 g1

Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT: BB
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
—MRIRER BHBERMAEREHENR MKk HEES A BN

ENEEREVNELFHN

(@  the policies; and

BER - &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BTHETABEATENRBEZ AR

B o

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. ~ Air and GHG Emissions
RRE BT AL BERU IR IR S ARRA B - BERSOR = R BB HE
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) Air and GHG Emissions

greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
BB RIEIRA1.2 BE(EE) RpREZE (HE2) AERBYENE BREREERBHN
(RS E) R (@R BE (WASESEA - 818
MR E
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Aspects, General Description Section/Declaration

Disclosures and KPIs

BE —RESERER HH =8 1

BRER

KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Reduction of Hazardous Waste and
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of Non-hazardous Waste
production volume, per facility).

BASEAERIEIRA13 PEAREEEDEAE CAMAZE) M(ER)BE RLAERENMNEZERY
(WABESBN - FHERBAE

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) Reduction of Hazardous Waste and
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of Non-hazardous Waste
production volume, per facility).

RS RIEIRAL.4 EAEBREEEYESE ETE) R(WER)BE RIBESEEVMLESZERY
(WMABESEN BHERBAE

KPI'A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to  Air and GHG Emissions

RSB MUIEIRALS

KPI'A1.6

RSB BUIEIRA1.6

achieve them.
AT Y MEE B E R AERE LR
1 2B o

1R AT EREX

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
Ml EREZTEREYN L MM PTET
BVREE B IR R ARETIE L BRI P8R -

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BHEA2: ERER

General Disclosure

—RIWE

KPI'A2.1

B IEIEA2.1

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BERERER (BIEER KREMERME) EEK

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).
RREEIH MER R/ LR (10 - Rak) @
§%E (L/\:F{.:Fﬁﬁj.{l‘ ) )SZTZJ“‘ (ZZDJ//\tF = u.:.1¢

FIERGEE) -

BE R NUR = R B HE X

Reduction of Hazardous Waste and
Non-hazardous Waste

Uses of Resources

BEREM

Uses of Resources

BREH

RTEH EHFBEERAR AT / FR 2022
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - g LERWE

Aspects, General Description Section/Declaration
Disclosures and KPIs

BE  —RIEEREAE HA =8 1
BRER

KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit  Uses of Resources

RS AE IR IR A2.2

KPI'A2.3

R AEMUIEIRA2.3

KPIA2.4

AR EBUIEIZEA2.4

KPI A2.5

RASR B BIBIZA2.5

of production volume, per facility).
BRKERTE (MAGEEBN  SREKREAE
Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them

WA Mg RERAMEEERAEDELER
PRTERER ) 25 5

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

A SREGERAOR R BERIERE - RTS8
FAK& S B IR R AER S L B R PTERERE) P 5K o

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

B mAABRREM e EE (A E
BEEBMGE -

2) & (wiE )

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHA3:
General Disclosure

— R

KPI'A3.1

RIR 4B BUIETZ A3

BRERRKRER

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts
on the environment and natural resources.

WIEBETABRRERRARERERERNT ENBOR

Description of the significant impacts of activities on
the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.

ML EBEHHRIBRRAERNEATERERK
NERFBAZENTH -
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BIREH
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BREH

Environment and Natural Resources
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Environment and Natural Resources
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Aspects, General Description
Disclosures and KPIs
BE  —RIEEREAE HA

RIE - g REARE

Section/Declaration

-0 1)

Aspect A4: Climate Change

EEAL : RIZEL

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.

—RRWE BRI EERTERARETERTANERR
< AR A P REL BV IBOK ©

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

RS2 AE IR 1R A4 MlER LA ETAEEZENEARIZE
R UAREBABRERRKEITE -

Aspect B1: Employment

EEB1 : EfE
General Disclosure Information on:
—RRWEE EAFH R RE HBEREA  TERH - BREH - F

EHE  Ziolb REBBUREAMSEREND :

(@  the policies; and
BUR &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
BFHBETAREAZENEBERELRAIN

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type

(for example, full- or part-time), age group and
geographical region.

RS E 1R B1.1 RIER - EEEE (NS BEGRR) - FiEn Mt
BB OB THER -

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

A 52 45 IR 1R B1.2 BRI FeR MitEBIDWEERKLE -

Climate Change

FIRRIL

Climate Change

FIRRIE

Employment, Health and Safety
BE - EEREZE

Employment, Health and Safety

BiR - REEZE

Employment, Health and Safety

BR- -BEEZE

RTEH EHFBEERAR AT / FR 2022
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR - e kEamE

Aspects, General Description

Disclosures and KPIs
EBE- - —RFERBAE HH

Section/Declaration

-0 1)

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EmEB2: @EHEZE

General Disclosure
— M=

KPI B2.1

RS W IEIEB2.1

KPI B2.2
BB EMIERB2.2

KPI B2.3

A 5 45 IR 1R B2.3

Information on:

FRRHLZ2TEREMREEE#H2BELRE

)

(@)  the policies; and
BR M

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.
BTHETARERZENHBEZLRID

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in
each of the past three years including the Reporting
Period.

BEZF (RERSH) FERT UMM ABRILE -

Lost days due to work injury.

HIBEEAIERR-

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

R PR ER O B SRR R BB 2 245 bt DA B A TT
NEERTTE -

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[BHEB3 : &R &IZI

General Disclosure

—MRIXEE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.

FHRRTEERT TIFRENANE R RENEE -
Fa B FEE
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Employment, Health and Safety

BR - -BEEZE

Employment, Health and Safety
EiE REEZE

Employment, Health and Safety
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Development and Training
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI - A RERmE

Aspects, General Description Section/Declaration
Disclosures and KPIs

BE  —RIEEREAE HA =8 1

BRER

KPIB3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and  Development and Training

employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).

RAR B B 1R B3 REMREEBEN (e REEE +REEE) S
DHEINEEB DL -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.

RS2 AR MR 1R B3.2 wrMupIREEERNE S  §REETHKEIIN T
&K -

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EmE B4 : &5 T XA

General Disclosure Information on:
— MR EE BREBILEETREFSTH
(@  the policies; and
Bk K&

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BTHETABEAZENRBEE AR

AR o

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.

RA 52 B 1R B4 MR BEEMMEEAREET RBHIST -

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices

when discovered.

A 5 45 WUIE 1R B4.2 W R IRE R BN ERE RIS AT IREA 88 -

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
fEEBS : HtEHEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.

— M H R EIRHEEA IR IR AL g R ECR -

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

A # 48 IE1R B5.1 minE s oW EREAE -

TR RE

Development and Training

BRRE

Labour Standards
5 TAR

Labour Standards

4 TR

Labour Standards

B TAR

Supply Chain Management

HEEE R

Supply Chain Management
e R
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR - e kEamE

Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
BE —RESERER
BRER

Description

eL:

Section/Declaration

-0 1)

KPI B5.2

RAdR4E AN FE15B5.2

KPI'B5.3

B9 5245 IR 1R B5.3

KPI B5.4

FA S4B MIE1RB5.4

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored

Mt E AR HtEREES - mERTERENN
HEBMBE  URBBARITRERERE -

Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

G BRI H R ARG RE R R R
BH - ARMEERITRERE -

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services when
selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

M EREHERRSRESZBRRERMRENE
Bl ARAERIIT R BB TT0% ©

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EEB6 : EREE
General Disclosure
— M=

KPI B6.1

A 1 A48 W15 B6.1

Information on:
FRAMEHERMRBHNERERZS  BE 2K
NIBEEARER AR

(@  the policies; and
BUR - &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of redress.
BIFHBETABEAZENEBERZLRIIN
BH o

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.
EERCERERAHTELBEFIEHAMAD
WHEB DL
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
BE —RESERER

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRI e REamE

Description

eL:

Section/Declaration

-0 1)

KPI B6.2

7 #1845 IR 15 B6.2

KPI B6.3

7 5 45 WIE 15 B6.3

KPI B6.4

RS A WIE1EB6.4

KPI' B6.5

RE SR 45 B 12 B6.5

Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

EERANEm ARG B AR EEITX -

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.
fi B A T IR R RN EERE R V1B A

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
HilEEHTERERERBYREF

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

AU B EERRERILBBE - U RBERTR

BERITA-

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

BHEB7: RESS
General Disclosure
— M=

KPI B7.1

A B 4B 1R BT 1

Information on:

BRI BR - HGEFRERERN

(@  the policies; and
BUR - &

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
BIFHETABEARENHEBERZLRIIN

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
RBERANHETAXHESRE TV EEENES
FARMEE B RFRER -

Product Responsibilities

it

it

mBE

Product Responsibilities

t

& I

Product Responsibilities

EmE T

Product Responsibilities

EmEE

Anti-corruption
R&ES

Anti-corruption

k&R
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR - e kEamE

Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
BE —RESERER

Description

eL:

Section/Declaration

-0 1)

KPI B7.2

RESR 4B IE1ERT7 .2

KPI'B7.3

A # 45 WIR 1R B7 .3

Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing
procedures, how they are implemented and
monitored.

AR R R WIET - ARBABRITRERT
& e

Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.

Wi RMES KRB TRHEMNRESE -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EEBS : #tERE

General Disclosure

— R E

KPI B8.1

AR 4B AR 515 B8

KPI B8.2

RESR 45 5 1EB8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
BRANUMEZ2ERTRBETAECEMELEFTEM
WREZEK GBS E BT R MBI BUR

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture,
sport).

BT EREE (B BEEE
it - 85) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus
area.

EEIHREBEAHAER(MEERER) -
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lee Nga Ching (Ms. Lee), aged 46, was appointed as an executive
Director on 8 June 2015. She obtained a bachelor's degree in Business
Administration in Accounting from City University of Hong Kong in
2004. She also obtained certificates of the Insolvency Preparatory | and
Il courses in 2005 and 2007 respectively. Ms. Lee possesses over 17
years of experience in corporate management, finance, financial due
diligence, fraud and bribery investigations, internal control and insolvency
administrations.

Ms. Lee has been appointed as an executive director of Golden Century
International Holdings Group Limited on 17 January 2023, whose shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 91). Ms.
Lee was employed by different institution, such as Baker Tilly Hong Kong,
BDO McCabe Lo Limited, John Lees & Associates Limited, Kroll Associates
(Asia) Limited and The Red Flag Group. The roles and responsibility of Ms.
Lee are (i) to participate in the formation of corporate strategy and policy of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”); (ii) to oversee
business operation and financial performance of the Group; and (iii) to
ensure adequate internal control and risk management procedures and
compliance with relevant legislation, rules and guidelines of the Group.

Mr. Shiu Shu Ming (Mr. Shiu), aged 53, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 10 June 2022 and redesignated as an executive
Director on 5 July 2022. Mr. Shiu obtained a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong (formerly known as
City Polytechnic of Hong Kong) in 1993 and is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Shiu has more than 20 years’
experience in corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, initial public
offerings and fundraising exercises in various ventures and projects with a
deal portfolio covering private entities, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") state-owned enterprises and publicly listed companies in Hong
Kong, the PRC, Malaysia, Singapore and Indonesia.

Mr. Shiu has been appointed as (i) a non-executive director of Oriental
Payment Group Holdings Limited (whose shares are listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8613)) since December 2021; (ii) an
independent non-executive director of Tianyun International Holdings
Limited (whose shares are listed on main board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 6836)) since April 2022; (iii) an executive director of Town
Health International Medical Group Limited (whose shares are listed on
main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3886)) since November
2022; (iv) a non-executive director of Kingkey Intelligence Culture Holdings
Limited (whose shares are listed on main board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 550)) since January 2023; and (v) a joint company secretary of
China Smartpay Group Holdings Limited (whose shares are listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8325)) since October 2020.

EELSREEERE

HITES

THERT (Trt) 465 R_T—AHF
NANBEZAERNTES - FR_TTMF
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REEEE - £/ MBERELD - MEFRT
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EELkSREEERE

From March 2020 to September 2021, Mr. Shiu was appointed as a
non-executive director of Golden Century International Holdings Group
Limited, whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 91).

Ms. Suen Tin Yan (Ms. Suen), aged 39, was appointed as an executive
Director on 18 November 2022. Ms. Suen obtained a bachelor of science
in chemistry from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
2005 and a bachelor of laws from The Manchester Metropolitan University
in 2012. She is also a licensed person registered under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO") to
carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and
Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities. Ms. Suen has more than
10 years' experience in corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, and
fund raising exercises in various ventures and projects.

Ms. Suen is currently the responsible officer of Orient Securities Limited
(indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), a licensed corporation
registered under the SFO to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4
(advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
since 13 January 2023.

Ms. Suen was a responsible officer of Gransing Securities Co., Limited
("Gransing”) to carry out (i) Type 9 (asset management) regulated activity
from March 2022 to July 2022; and (ii) Type 1 (dealing in securities) and
Type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activities from August 2021 to
July 2022. She was also a licensed representative of Gransing to carry
out (i) Type 9 (asset management) regulated activity from June 2020 to
March 2022; and (ii) Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 4 (advising on
securities) regulated activities from June 2020 to August 2021.

Mr. Chung Kar Ho Carol (Mr. Chung), aged 39, was appointed as an
executive Director on 17 May 2023. Mr. Chung obtained a Degree of
Bachelor of Science from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2005.
Mr. Chung has over 10 years' experience in providing financial services and
solutions to clients in the field of insurance and investment.

From August 2008 to March 2023, Mr. Chung was a division director of
Convoy Financial Services Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Convoy
Global Holdings Limited (formerly listed on main board of the Stock
Exchange and stock code: 1019).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Siu Kin Wai (Mr. Siu), aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 29 September 2017. Mr. Siu obtained a
bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong
(formerly known as City Polytechnic of Hong Kong) and is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Siu has
extensive experience in corporate management.

Mr. Siu has been appointed as (i) an executive director of Beijing Properties
(Holdings) Limited (“Beijing Properties”), whose shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 925), in July 2009 and
the chief executive officer of Beijing Properties in July 2017. Following
the reform of the internal management structure of Beijing Properties,
Mr. Siu’s title was changed from the chief executive officer to the general
manager of Beijing Properties in February 2023 without substantial
alteration in duties and responsibilities; (ii) a director of Brilliant Bright
Holdings Limited, which is a controlling shareholder of Beijing Properties.
Mr. Siu is the non-executive director of CAQ Holdings Limited, whose
shares are listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (stock code: CAQ)
since April 2015; (iii) an executive director of Beijing Health (Holdings)
Limited (stock Code: 2389) since May 2017; (iv) a director of MillenMin
Ventures Inc., a company listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (TSXV
stock code: MVM) since July 2017; and (v) an independent non-executive
director, chairman of audit committee and member of each of nomination
committee and remuneration committee of Golden Century International
Holdings Group Limited on 22 March 2023, whose shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 91).

From 24 August 2010 to 9 June 2021, Mr. Siu served as an independent
non-executive director of Agritrade Resources Limited (formerly listed on
main board of the Stock Exchange (stock Code: 1131)).

Ms. Chan Man Yi (Ms. Chan), aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 28 April 2016. Ms. Chan
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Master’s
degree in professional accounting and has extensive experience in pension
and provident fund industry. Ms. Chan is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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EELkSREEERE

Ms. Chan has been appointed as an independent non-executive director,
chairman of the audit committee and member of each of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of Cocoon Holdings Limited
(stock code: 428) since 21 August 2018.

From 1 February 2013 to 29 April 2015, Ms. Chan was an independent
non-executive director, a member of each of the nomination Committee
and the audit Committee of China Financial Leasing Group Limited, a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2312).

Ms. Luk Huen Ling Claire (Ms. Luk), aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 17 February 2023. Ms. Luk
obtained a bachelor’s degree in fine arts from the Hong Kong Academy
for Performing Arts in July 2003 and a master’s degree of business in
marketing from the University of Technology, Sydney, Australia in March
2010. Ms. Luk has over 10 years’ experience in corporate communications
and marketing.

Prior to joining the Company, in November 2014, Ms. Luk founded
ST8GE Group Limited, a company specialising in corporate training and
team building, and is primarily responsible for the overall corporate
management. Ms. Luk has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Cool Link (Holdings) Limited, whose shares are listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8491) since February
2019.

From 22 September 2015 to 30 September 2020, Ms. Luk served as an
independent non-executive director of Season Pacific Holdings Limited
(currently known as DL Holdings Group Limited), whose shares are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1709). From
30 November 2019 to 11 May 2022, Ms. Luk was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Hon Corporation Limited, whose
shares were formerly listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
8259).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lau Wai Man (Mr. Lau), aged 58, joined the Group in 2008 and is
currently a Responsible Officer of Orient Securities Limited. He is a licensed
person since August 1995. Mr. Lau is responsible for supervising in-house
account executives in carrying out regulated activities. Mr. Lau possesses
over 23 years of experience in the securities brokerage industry and his
work experience includes acting as a sales representative, floor trader and
account executive in various securities brokerage companies since 1995.

Mr. Huen, Felix Ting Cheung (Mr. Huen), aged 37, was appointed
as joint company secretary of the Company on 30 November 2021 and
redesignated as the sole company secretary on 15 June 2022 following the
resignation of another joint company secretary of the Company, Mr. Yip
Yat Sing. Mr. Huen obtained a bachelor’s degree in arts (Accounting) from
Edinburgh Napier University in United Kingdom in January 2010 and is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Huen is a licensed person registered under the SFO to carry out Type 6
(advising on corporate finance) regulated activity. Mr. Huen has extensive
experience in the areas of accounting and corporate finance. Mr. Huen is
currently the director and responsible officer of Diligent Capital Limited, a
licensed corporation registered under the SFO to carry out Type 6 (advising
on corporate finance) regulated activity.

Mr. Huen has been appointed as (i) an independent non-executive
director, the chairman of audit committee and a member of remuneration
committee of 1957 & Co. (Hospitality) Limited since 19 August 2022,
whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
8495); and (ii) a joint company secretary of Oriental Payment Group
Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8613) since March 2022.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023
(“Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted company
with limited liability on 5 January 2009 under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. The principal activities of the Group are the provision of
its (i) brokerage services; (i) underwriting and placing services; (iii) margin
financing services and (iv) money lending services.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the Period and a discussion on the
Group’s future development are set out in the section “Executive Director’s
Statement”. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Period
and a description of possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may
be facing can be found under section of “Management Discussion and
Analysis”. Also, the financial risk factors and capital management of the
Group can be found in note 37 and note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively. Discussions on the Group’s key relationships
with its customers and suppliers are contained under the section “Major
customers and suppliers” in the Report of Directors. Discussions on the
Group’s policies and compliance with laws and regulations in respect
of environmental and social aspects which have a significant impact on
the Group are contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report. In addition, the Group’s principal corporate governance practices
adopted which have a significant impact on the Group are contained in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the Period, as far as the Directors are aware, there was no material
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group that
has a significant impact on the Group’s business and operations.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 and the
financial position of the Group at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements from pages 101 to 187 of this annual report. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2023.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five years is set out in the section headed “Financial Summary”
on page 188 of this annual report. The summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment during
the Period are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association (the “Articles of Association”) or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Period are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2023, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to the Shareholders amounted to approximately HK$106,800,000 (2021:
HK$100,184,000).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Period, the Group did not make any charitable donation.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the fifteen months ended 31 March
2023 and up to the date of the report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Lee Nga Ching

Mr. Shiu Shu Ming (appointed as a non-executive director with effect from
10 June 2022 and redesignated to an executive director with effect from
5 July 2022)

Ms. Suen Tin Yan (appointed with effective from 18 November 2022)

Mr. Chung Kar Ho Carol (appointed with effective from 17 May 2023)
Mr. Lam Shu Chung (resigned with effect from 19 August 2022)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Chan Man Yi
Mr. Siu Kin Wai
Ms. Luk Huen Ling Claire
(appointed with effect from 17 February 2023)
Mr. Tang Chung Wai (resigned with effect from 17 February 2023)

In accordance with articles 84(1) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Siu Kin
Wai will retire as Director and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM").

Pursuant to articles 83(3) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Shiu Shu Ming,
Ms. Suen Tin Yan, Mr. Chung Kar Ho Carol and Ms. Luk Huen Ling Claire
will retire as Directors and, being eligible, Mr. Shiu Shu Ming, Ms. Suen Tin
Yan and Mr. Chung Kar Ho Carol offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM. Ms. Luk Huen Ling Claire will not offer herself for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.

As at 31 March 2023, Ms. Lee Nga Ching and Mr. Shiu Shu Ming were also
directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Suen Tin Yan was the
responsible officer of an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Orient Securities Limited, a licensed corporation registered under the SFO
to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities)
and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities. Other directors of the
Company’s subsidiaries included Mr. Fong Man Him and Mr. Cheng Shu
Yuen.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical information of Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out from pages 77 to 81 of this annual report.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Upon specific enquiry by the Company, save as disclosed in the sections
headed “Corporate Information” and “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report, since the Company’s last
published second interim report and up to the date of this annual report,
there was no change in the information of the Directors required to be
disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 17.50(2) of the
GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All the Directors do not have service contracts with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering Director’s
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the laws of Hong
Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”) and was in force throughout the
Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above and in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, no Director had material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the Period and up to the date of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Period and up to the date of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing and
determining the remuneration and compensation packages of the
Directors with reference to their responsibilities, workload, the time
devoted to the Group and the performance of the Group. The Directors
may also receive options to be granted under a share option scheme. The
Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme. The details
of the share option scheme are set out in the paragraph headed “Share
Option Scheme” below.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the ordinary shares of the
Company (the “Shares”), underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which had been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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Long positions in Shares: RRGZHR
Approximate
Number of Shares percentage of
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interest held/Interested shareholding™
BE HBEEEZ
EEpE B REEHE ROEA BREBAES O
Mr. Shiu Shu Ming Interest of a controlled corporation®@ 10,280,000 8.26%
BB A XPEEEER
Beneficial owner® 1,036,800 0.83%
EnEEA®
Ms. Lee Nga Ching Beneficial owner® 518,400 0.42%
FiEaLL EnEEA®
1. There were 124,416,000 Shares in issue as at 31 March 2023. 1. RZTZ=F=A=+—H BEZFTRHA
124,416,000 f%
2. Mr. Shiu Shu Ming (“Mr. Shiu”) legally and beneficially owns the entire issued shares of 2. AR ([MEE]) A7 R E % %A Wealthbase

Wealthbase Global Limited and is its sole director. Accordingly, Mr. Shiu is deemed to be
interested in the 10,280,000 Shares held by Wealthbase Global Limited by virtue of the
SFO.

3. Mr. Shiu is interested in the 1,036,800 underlying Shares which may be allotted and
issued to him upon full exercise of all the options granted to him under the share option
scheme of the Company (as defined below).

4. Ms. Lee Nga Ching is interested in the 518,400 underlying Shares which may be allotted
and issued to her upon full exercise of all the options granted to her under the share
option scheme of the Company (as defined below).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the Directors or
the chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Global Limited 2 5 B 21T R AEH —FE -
Hit REZFHFRBERN  BLEEHE AR
Wealthbase Global Limited ¥4 2 10,280,000 & % {7
R o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2023, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons/entities (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which would be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERFERROREERG 2 E:
_Y,/ﬁ)a

RZZEZ=F=A=+—H  BEEMFHN "
UWTAL/ ER(EESIARARSTRAE
BN RN A BIRR () AR (D R HE B IR IR &
HFREEGRBEXVEE 2 3D EMEX AT
BIERIAR  IBRBEFHLRBEGROE

36 KEHNAFE 2 B Mo mIAR

Approximate

Number of Shares percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of interest held/Interested shareholding™
BE BEEEZ

=1 54 EntE BB E FREBAES O

Wealthbase Global Limited Beneficial owner® 10,280,000 8.26%

Wealthbase Global Limited Ez#EHB A

1. There were 124,416,000 Shares in issue as at 31 March 2023.

2. Mr. Shiu Shu Ming (“Mr. Shiu”) legally and beneficially owns the entire issued shares of
Wealthbase Global Limited and is its sole director. Accordingly, Mr. Shiu is deemed to be
interested in the 10,280,000 Shares held by Wealthbase Global Limited by virtue of the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, the Directors were not
aware of any other persons (other than a Director or chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which would be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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OTHER INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Directors, there
was no other person who had interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares that is discloseable under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
Period, the Directors and the chief executive of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) had any interest in, or
had been granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe for Shares (or
warrants or debentures, if applicable) of the Company and/or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO).

Save for the share option scheme of the Company which was adopted
by way of Shareholder’s written resolution passed on 19 December 2013,
at no time during the Period was the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its
associated companies, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company to hold any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares, or debentures of the Company and/or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme")
has been adopted by way of Shareholder’s written resolution passed on 19
December 2013.

On 23 June 2022, the Company had granted share options to certain
eligible participants to subscribe for a total of 21,144,000 Shares under
the Share Option Scheme at the exercise price of HK$0.094 per Share for a
validity period from 23 June 2022 to 22 June 2032 pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme.
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Details of the above grant of share options are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 23 June 2022.

Following the share consolidation of the Company became effective on
11 October 2022, pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme,
the exercise price of the outstanding share options and the number of
shares to be allotted and issued upon full exercise of the subscription rights
attaching to, will be adjusted to HK$0.47 per share and 4,228,800 shares.
Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 24 October 2022 for
details of the adjustment to the exercise price of the outstanding share
options.

As at 31 March 2023, the total number of shares available for issue under
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme was 3,192,000.
Movement of share options during the Reporting Period are as below:

FREHBRR FERAAATRBAE
——GAACZZEZAL-

BARNTRODEHNR_ZTE__F+A+—HB4E
Rig - IRIEEARRERT B 2 3 MARITERER
W2 AT E RBEATEE M 2 REER S
TR METZIRMDE B BEARAER0.47
57T 1% 4,228,8000% - BRAAE M ARITEER
EZITEENFE  F2HAARAHACE
ZZHFETAZTIEHEMAE -

MR-ZE_=F=A=+—0 " BREBRE:T
BBz B AIRBTZEROA8A
,192,000 % - BEEENHEHRAN 2 B80T :

E
3

Lapsed/ Outstanding
Name of Director/ Outstanding Granted  Exercised Forfeited Adjusted at
category of Date of Exercise Vesting at1January duringthe  duringthe duringthe duringthe  31March
participant grant price Exercise period period 2022 period period period period 2023
R-F=zf R=ZB=Zf
By -B-H RAR RAR  REREN ZA=t-A
SAEER RHAH ke Eix:d 5EA ESH:d R Eix:d /R REREE MRTE
Shiu Shu Ming 23 June 2022 HK$0.47 From 23 June 2022 to 22 June 2032 No - 5,184,000 - - (41472000 1,036,800
L 2 0478  AZE-ZFRXA-TZAEE &
~NAZTZH “E=-FXAZTZH
Lam Shu Chung (Note) 23 June 2022 HK$0.47 From 23 June 2022 to 22 June 2032 No - 5,184,000 - (5,184,000 - -
AR (B &) k- Sk 04781  AZEZZERAZTZHE &
~AZtTZH “EZ-EXAZ1ZA
Lee Nga Ching 23 June 2022 HK$0.47 From 23 June 2022 to 22 June 2032 No - 2,592,000 - - (2,073,600) 518,400
Fha “ECCF 0478 AZECERACZTZHE &
~AZtZHE i k-7 s e
Employees 23 June 2022 HK$0.47 From 23 June 2022 to 22 June 2032 No - 8,184,000 - - (65472000 1,636,800
E& ZZ3CCF 0478  AZE--FRA-TZAEE &
~NAZTZH “E=-FXAZTZH
- 21,144,000 - (5,184,0000 (12,768,000) 3,192,000

Note: Mr. Lam has resigned as an executive Director with effective from 19 August 2022.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, senior management and
five individuals with highest emoluments are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Period, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules) had engaged in or had any interest
in any business which compete or may compete, directly or indirectly, with
the Group’s business.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023, the Group carried out
the following related party transactions with the following connected
persons (within the meaning of GEM Listing Rules):

(1) Mr. Shiu Shu Ming (“Mr. Shiu"”), executive Director;
(2)  Ms. Lee Nga Ching (“Ms. Lee"), executive Director; and

(3)  Mr. Lam Shu Chung (“Mr. Lam”), former executive Director (Mr.
Lam has resigned as an executive Director with effective from 19
August 2022).

The Group conducted the following related party transactions during the
Period:

(a) Sale and Purchase Agreement

On 22 December 2022, Blazing Success Group Limited (“Blazing
Success”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Shiu, pursuant
to which Blazing Success purchase a motor vehicle from Mr.
Shiu at a total consideration of HK$200,000 for management
daily operation needs. The Company have already compared
the relevant cost to the market price with the same model and
considered that the relevant consideration is fair and reasonable.
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(b) Loan Agreement

On 3 January 2023, the Company entered into a loan agreement
with Ms. Lee, pursuant to which the Company grant a loan in the
amount of HK$420,660.59 to Ms. Lee for a term of three years.
Annual interest rate is 16.99%.

() Brokerage and margin financing transactions

Orient Securities Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company provides, from time to time, securities brokerage services
and margin financing services to Mr. Lam during the Period.

All the applicable ratios and the aggregated annual caps of the above
connected transactions are less than 5% and less than HK$3,000,000.
Thus, they are fall within the exemption under Rule 20.74(1) of the
GEM Listing Rules and no reporting, announcement and independent
shareholder’s approval are required.

Further information for income generated from brokerage and financing
services for an executive director is set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023, the largest customer
of the Group contributes approximately 5% of the revenue of the Group.
The total revenue of the 5 largest customers accounted for 21% of the
revenue of the Group.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Director nor their
associates nor any shareholder (which to the knowledge of Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
these 5 largest customers of the Group.

Due to the nature of the Group’s business activities, the Group has no
suppliers.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent during the Period and remain so as of the date
of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the view that the Company has met the code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. A report on the
principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set
out from pages 22 to 43 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public at all times during the Period
and as of the date of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND KEY
RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and key relationship with
employees is contained in the section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 44 to 76 of this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group has over 617 active securities accounts and money borrowers
as at 31 Mach 2023.

In order to maintain relationships with customers, various means
have been established to strengthen the communications between
the customers including direct conservation to promote investment
opportunities and invitation to casual business development events. In
addition, the Group will continue to develop the customer base by utilising
the network we have and referrals from existing customers.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS

The Group does not have any supplier during the fifteen months ended 31
March 2023 and up to the date of this report.

AUDITORS

BDO Limited (“BDO"), who was the auditor of the Group from 2015
to 2021, has resigned as the auditor of the Group with effect from 16
December 2022. BDO, in their letter of resignation, confirmed that there
were no matters in connection with their resignation that needed to be
brought to the attention of holders of securities of the Company. The
Board also confirmed that there was no disagreement or unresolved
matter between the Company and BDO, and that they were not aware of
any matters in relation to the resignation of BDO as auditor of the Group
that needed to be brought to the attention of holders of securities of the
Company.

The Company has appointed CL Partners CPA Limited (“CL Partners”) as
the auditors of the Company for the Period with effect from 16 December
2022. The consolidated financial statements for the fifteen months ended
31 March 2023 have been audited by the CL Partners, who shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the AGM.
A resolution for the re-appointment of CL Partners as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the board

Lee Nga Ching
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 June 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ORIENT SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL

HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Orient Securities
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 101 to 187, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the fifteen months from 1 January 2022 to 31
March 2023, and notes to the consolidated financial statements including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the fifteen months from 1 January 2022 to 31 March 2023
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of margin loan receivables and loan and
interest receivables

(Refer to notes 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies as set out in note 4.9 to the consolidated financial
statements)

Under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, impairment assessment of margin
loan receivables and loan and interest receivables is estimated based on
an expected credit loss model. As at 31 March 2023, the Group had
net margin loan receivables of HK$16,217,000 arising from brokerage
and margin financing business and net loan and interest receivables
of HK$222,624,000 arising from money lending business. Impairment
provision of HK$28,474,000 and HK$145,407,000 had been made over
margin loan receivables and loan and interest receivables respectively as at
31 March 2023.

Assessing impairment of margin loan receivables and loan and interest
receivables is a subjective area as it requires application of significant
judgement and uses of estimates. At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
for exposures since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting date and the date
of initial recognition. The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort
for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative information
and also, forward-looking analysis. Judgement is applied in assessing
customers that may default and identifying evidence of impairment which
include assessment on creditworthiness of customers, their repayment
history, and application of collateral ratio, that is the level of securities
collateral in proportion to the outstanding receivables balance. Estimates
are used in assessing the recoverable amount of the securities collateral.

We focused on this area as a key audit matter. Assessing the assessment of
recoverability performed by management involved critical judgement and

estimation as mentioned in the aforementioned paragraph.
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Our response
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment on
margin loan receivables and loan and interest receivables included:

- testing the appropriateness of the Group’s determination of
significant increase in credit risk and the basis for classification of
exposures into the 3 stages. Our testing included the checking
to loan overdue information, collateral ratio and other factors
determining the stage classification as determined by the Group;

- challenging management in applying the collateral ratio and
considering other factors in identifying the expected credit loss;

- reviewing debtors’ historical repayments and subsequent
settlements after year end date and the market value of pledged
collateral; and

- evaluating the Group’s estimation methodology of expected credit
losses, and checking the parameters to external data sources where
available.

OTHER MATTERS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements on 29 April
2022.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financing reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional  1RIEE BT ERIETELE - BFERAEE
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We — #&f - REBEEZBREF BB EXEREE -
also: AN

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AR R sy

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

CL Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

LEE Wai Chi

Practising Certificate Number P07830

Hong Kong, 23 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Are 1B M E M R W

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

For the fifteen
months ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 December 2021

BE-ZE-=Ff HE-T_—F
=HA=+—H +=—RA=+—8H
LE+FEM@A HFE
Notes HK$’'000 HK$’000
B = FBT FHET

Revenue Uy &5 49,125 46,704
Other income A 7 125 4
Employee costs B B A 9 (10,175) (9,340)
Administrative expenses T EH (11,486) (10,444)
Impairment for trade receivables, net [EUE 5FKIBRE @ 558 (6,456) (4,099)
(Impairment)/reversal of impairment  fEUE X & F 8 CRE),/

for loan and interest receivables, net  JR{ER[E - JHEE (143,107) 575
Impairment for other receivables, net — E fth JE U FRIB R (E - F5E (3,563) =
Finance costs s EH 10 (165) (155)
(Loss)/profit before income tax MRETSH AT (E]), 5 R 11 (125,702) 23,245
Income tax expense TS5 X 12 = (5,270)
(Loss)/profit and total AAREEAEGYB, £E

comprehensive (expense)/ (BR) HFRE2M|E

income for the period/year (BAR) WL

attributable to owners of the

Company (125,702) 17,975

(Restated)
(&&=5)

(Loss)/earnings per share AKRREEAEMLZ

attributable to owners of the HE EESK

Company for the period/year (E518) BT 14

— Basic and diluted (HK cent) —H AR MESE (GBI (120.48) 20.80

RTEFEHBEERAR AT / FR 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

wraMBIR

As at 31 March 2023 A=ZE-_=%=HA=+—H

At 31 March At 31 December
2023 2021
R-ZBEZ=F RZTZ—%F
=B=+—H +—-_A=+—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTHT THET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENER
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WRRFE 16 1,466 4,721
Other assets HEMm&E 17 430 430
Loan and interest receivables U E R F B 20 15,404 18,637
Rental and other deposits HekEmiEze 21 = 2,043
Deferred tax assets REIRE E 28 334 334
17,634 26,165
Current assets RBEE
Trade receivables U E 5518 19 18,716 28,110
Loan and interest receivables U E R B 20 207,220 307,466
Prepayments, deposits and other FENFIE - Ze &
receivables H b fE W R IE 21 1,015 2,827
Trust bank balances held REFFEEZ
on behalf of clients SFLIRTT 48R 22 8,903 15,535
Cash and cash equivalents HERBEEBY 23 5,769 1,803
241,623 355,741
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FERE 558 24 9,660 15,598
Accruals and other payables FEET B A K& H A FE S 5RIB 25 3,091 1,223
Lease liabilities HEARE 26 732 3,147
Debentures E5 27 = 1,000
Tax payables P HHIE 9,736 10,685
23,219 31,653
Net current assets REBEEZFE 218,404 324,088
Total assets less current liabilities & ERABEE 236,038 350,253

ORIENT SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2022




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

=
#raf

PIEARILZR

Asat 31 March 2023 A =ZE=-=F=A=+—H

At 31 March At 31 December
2023 2021
R-E=-= RZEBE-_—4F
=RA=+—H +=—A=+—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FBT
Non-current liability FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEARE 26 233 1,597
Net assets EEFE 235,805 348,656
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners ARREEA
of the Company PEfL R
Share capital A% AR 29 6,221 4,320
Reserves L] 31 229,584 344,336
Total equity BER 235,805 348,656
On behalf of the Board BEEREX
Lee Nga Ching Shiu Shu Ming
=] =
Director Director
EZE EZE

RTEFEHBEERAR AT / FR 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

melemER

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

For the fifteen
months ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 December 2021

BE-2-=Ff ®HE_T_—F
=HA=+-—H +=—A=+—H
I+ H{EA IEFE
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT FHTT
Cash flows from operating RERETH2RERE
activities
(Loss)/profit before income tax BT SR AT (1), S5 (125,702) 23,245
Adjustments for: ELA T AE -
Depreciation of property, M B RBETE
plant and equipment 11 126 -
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {f FAEEEITE 11 2,721 3,886
Reversal of provision for unused RAFREERE
annual leave 9 - (383)
Impairment for trade FEWE 5 FRIERE - F5E
receivables, net 11 6,456 4,099
Impairment for (reversal of JE W & 3 R R BOR B
impairment) loan and ORE#RE) 55
interest receivables, net 11 143,107 (575)
Impairment for of other H W IE R E - F R
receivables, net 11 3,563 -
Finance costs &R 10 165 155
Gain on derecognition of RIFTERERAEEEL
right-of-use assets I %5 7 (30) =
Share options expenses REAR 7 X 1,987 =
Operating profit before working BIEE S E BRI E R T
capital changes 32,393 30,427
Decrease in trade receivables U E 5 5RIE R 2,938 666
Increase in loan and interest FEWE kR F B AE AN
receivables (39,628) (28,351)
Decrease in prepayments, FERFIE - ke Rk
deposits and other receivables H fth & Y FRIE R 292 737
Decrease/(Increase) in trust bank REFFEE ZELRITEH
balances held on behalf of clients  JE 4 (3&40) 6,632 (2,560)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables & E 5 78 (Rl 4), 1 hn (5.938) 2,668
Increase in accruals and FERTE AR EAM
other payables JE 1 SRIEHE AN 1,668 162
Cash (used in)/generated from KT (FTA), B zBEE
operations (1,643) 3,749
Hong Kong profits tax paid EERNEE TR (949) =
Net cash (used in)/generated from AR &ZE) (BT ), Fiig
operating activities 2T HEE (2,592) 3,749

ORIENT SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2022




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

43

NI\

\iKE
ﬁwm;ﬁ%

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z - - =F=F=+—HIt+H@A

For the fifteen
months ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 December 2021

BE-ZT_=%F HE-_T=-—%
=A=+-A8 tTZH=+—H
I+ HEA IEFE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FTET FHETT

Cash flows from investing RERETBHZ2RERE

activities
Purchases of property, plant and BEWHE  WRRZE

equipments (431) -
Net cash used in investing activities & & Z B HT/H.2 B % F58 (431) =
Cash flows from financing REMETHZ2RERE

activities
Interest paid BEARHLE (165) (75)
Repayment of principal amount of ~EEFEBEAREE

lease liabilities (2,710) (4,089)
Proceeds from issue of shares BT AD Zﬁﬁ?% SRIE 11,474 -
Share issue cost paid ERMDEITER (610) =
Repayment of debentures BEEH (1,000) =
Net cash fromAused in) financing BE B (BTH)

activities LR HEE 6,989 (4,164)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BRERBESEEYRM,(GED)

and cash equivalents HEE 3,966 (415)
Cash and cash equivalents at the B,/ FYzBe RREEEY

beginning of the period/year 1,803 2,218
Cash and cash equivalents HR FR2ESRBASEEY

at the end of the period/year 23 5,769 1,803
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GARRBDE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FAREEAELER
Share
Share Share Merger option Retained
capital premium* reserve* reserve* profits* Total
47 L BRE RE
[N wE* filifE it * R * et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TERT FTET TER TET
(note 29) (note 31(b)) (note 31(a)) (note 30)
(Mf5£29) (MEE31(b)) (PH&E31@)  (KIEE30)
At 1 January 2021 R=B=-—-%—-H—H 4,320 138,016 8 = 188,337 330,681
Profit and total FREMNR2E RS
comprehensive income  #%8
for the year - - - - 17,975 17,975
At31December2021 R=-T=-—F
and 1 January 2022 +-A=+—-8K
—E-"f-H-—H 4,320 138,016 8 - 206,312 348,656
Loss and total HABEREERY
comprehensive expense 48 %A
for the period - - - - (125,702) (125,702)
Issue of shares BITHR G 1,901 9,573 - - - 11,474
Transaction costs BITRIDFE(S
attributable to issue LR G KA
of shares - (610) - - - (610)
Recognition of share e 50 B R e 2
option expenses - - - 1,987 - 1,987
Share options lapsed B R U A - = = (487) 487 =
At 31 March 2023 R-B=-=%F
=A=+—H 6,221 146,979 8 1,500 81,097 235,805
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$229,584,000 (31 * Z S EBREK AR A AR KA Z 229,584,000 7%

December 2021: HK$344,336,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

GENERAL INFORMATION

Orient Securities International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated and registered as an exempted company with
limited liability on 5 January 2009 under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands and acts as an investment holding company. The
shares of the Company have been listed on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 15
January 2014. The address of its registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and 8th Floor,
Hip Shing Hong Centre, 55 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong, respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the provision of:

- brokerage services

- underwriting and placing services

- securities, initial public offering financing services

money lending services

There were no significant changes in operations during the period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M EE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

2.1 New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatory
effective for the current period

The Group has adopted the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that are relevant to its
operations and effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
2021

Amendments to HKAS 16  Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37  Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

None of these new or amended HKFRSs has a material impact
on the Group’s results and financial position for the current or
prior period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but are not yet
effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply those
changes on the date they become effective.

HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts'
October 2020 and February
2022 Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)'

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSN N e

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 & Z -~ - =F=/F=+—HIt+hf@

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the amendments clarify that:

(i)  the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle
the liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are
met at the end of the reporting period, even if the
lender does not test compliance until a later date;
and

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its classification as current
or noncurrent only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (Continued)

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 March
2023, and the related terms and conditions stipulated in the
agreements between the Group and the relevant lenders, the
application of the amendments will not result in reclassification
of the Group’s liabilities.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information is
material if, when considered together with other information
included in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSN N e

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but are not yet

effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Continued)

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate
how an entity applies the “four-step materiality process”
to accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to the
Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s
significant accounting policies. The impacts of application,
if any, will be disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require
items in financial statements to be measured in a way that
involves measurement uncertainty — that is, the accounting
policy may require such items to be measured at monetary
amounts that cannot be observed directly and must instead
be estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an accounting
estimate to achieve the objective set out by the accounting
policy. Developing accounting estimates involves the use of
judgements or assumptions based on the latest available,
reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates
in HKAS 8 is retained with additional clarifications. The
application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1

3.2

3.3

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRS"”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which
concern the preparation of consolidated financial statements.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new and amended HKFRSs and the impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed
in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost convention. The measurement bases are
fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

3.4 Change of financial year end date

On 13 January 2023, the Board announced that the financial
year end date of the Company has been changed from 31
December to 31 March commencing from the financial period
ended 31 March 2023 in order to remove the uncertainty
arose from (i) a legal review of the existing loan arrangements,
which involves certain cross-border guarantee or security
provided by borrowers to guarantee or secure his/her/its
debt owed to the Group, by independent legal adviser; and
(i) an assessment on the practicability of the enforcement
procedures to take and cost in case of a debt recovery.

Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements for the current financial period covers a fifteen
months period from 1 January 2022 to 31 March 2023. The
comparative figures, however, are for twelve months from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021, and hence are not
directly comparable.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

4.1

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the effective
dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.2

4.3

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable at the
reporting date.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group'’s
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.

POLICIES (Continued)

4.3 Revenue recognition (Continued)

If control of goods or services transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or service.

(a) Commission income
Brokerage commission income is recognised on a trade
date basis when the relevant performance obligation is
executed.

(b) Interest income
- Interest income from bank deposit is accrued

using effective interest method by reference to the
principal deposited and at the rate applicable.

- Interest income from client is accrued using
effective interest method by reference to the
outstanding balance and at the rate applicable.

(c) Underwriting and placing income

Underwriting and placing income are recognised at a
point in time when the obligation is completed.

(d) Service income

Service income is recognised at the time when the
services are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.4

4.5

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction or
production of any qualifying asset are capitalised as part of
the cost of that asset during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. A
qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets represent trading rights of the Stock
Exchange, with which the holders have the right to trade on
the Stock Exchange. Intangible assets acquired separately
are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of trading rights is provided on straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives which are five years.

Amortisation commence when the intangible assets
are available for use. The asset’s amortisation method
and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment
when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
Intangible assets are tested for impairment by comparing their
carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts (see note
4.7).

4, FEETHEHE (&)

4.4

4.5

BEKA

HEEXAEBA BERLEES
R — BB AT AT TREIE A 2
BEERAR MENMCEREE
ZEDRA - REREBETI—HEA
VEL—BR R EEET AIETEH
ERRHMEZEE - R EERA
AIRELERIIERX

BILEE (BREE U

BAWEREE

BIVEERBIARXHE  BUIH
BABRRBRFTETRS - 1)
FHRAR  BEBREIEBTEEN
PRAFER - RYIFHER 2R - BR
ERMERFERZ B EETIARA
R 5 S AT AR E B R SRR o

R EETIANBERERESE R
F A ERFY T ARR

B EEE R HERRFRAEH -
BESHDEREA A ERFHR
2GR HEIT IR AR (W
) e

BHEEEZBE

EERREPEEN L LERE
ERTEAFEAFH B EEES
SRTRER - BEEETEB
11 355 B T B L ) Wit [ < REAB EL i
BERE (RHEE4.7) -

RTEFEHBEERAR AT / FR 2022

117



118

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= A
oNe

B H5 Rk B et

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided to
write off the cost less their estimated residual value, if any, over
their estimated useful lives, using straight-line method. The
depreciation rates per annum are as follow:

Over the lease term
33.33%
20%-50%
20%-33.33%
30%-33.33%
33.33%

Right-of-use assets
Leasehold improvements
Computer equipment
Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

The assets’ estimated residual value, depreciation method
and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are charged to profit or loss of the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.7

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of the following assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment; and

- intangible assets

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.8

Leases

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or finance
leases) are required to be capitalised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an entity to
choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term. The
Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for which at the commencement date have a
lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at cost and comprise: (i)
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;
(i) any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial direct
costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to
be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories. The Group measures right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the Group
measures the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Lease liabilities

These are recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of
the lease. Lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

ORIENT SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2022

4, FEETHEHE (&)

48 FHE

PIEHE (THmAKEHEXRE
HE) ARZEEMBRARERL
REMBEERMEERE  HERE
SRTBRER - EEAKO) B
RHHENHEHEETERNE - A%
BEEE TN FABBEHEER D
R1I2EANHERREREEER
HEAE BXFHEHRBNEE
NHREREERNIREREH °

EHEEE

EREEERN AR L BLE : ()

& B Higk 2 BIYE L 0 (E( & 5K
HMEREFRERBESER : (i)&EHR
ANEEBNFRTBERERA : K (v)
A ARIRTE E R A48 TE 8
BERTDBERBRIBEEERE
ERMEFTRA - BRIEZER AT R
SEGFEMES - AL BERAKRAE
B EERAEEE - BRIBEKAE
- AEERK AR R E
REMEEEETEFEREEE -
WS s ENERNEFTE2EL
P o

HERRE

TR (AR SR AR B 5
%2 BENRORERR - 0E
MR RARERE OF LGS
(R AT HHE) P
mARSEE  ARBBRALE
= RS -



4,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 Leases (Continued)

4.9

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The following payments for right-to-use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement
date of the lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable: (i) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (i) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option and (v)
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liabilities by: (i) increasing the carrying amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and (iii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in substance fixed lease payments or a
change in assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Financial instruments

(i)  Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially measured at
the transaction price.
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4,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
is one measurement category into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on trade
receivables and financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from possible default events within the 12 months after
the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs
that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 HiZ -~ =

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables arising from cash clients and clearing
house using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables arising from margin clients, loan and
interest receivables by using HKFRS 9 general approach.
ECLs are based on the 12-months ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime
ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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4,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due or there is a significant delay in fulfilling
contractual payments or significant change in the value
of collateral or credit enhancement.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired under the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer of the
borrower; or

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event; or

- securities, initial public offering financing services;
or

— the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

- the purchase or origination of a financial asset at
a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit
losses.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value and financial liabilities at
amortised costs are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables and borrowings issued by the Group are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability,
the equity instruments issued are the consideration
paid and are recognised initially and measured at their
fair value on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the equity
instruments issued cannot be reliably measured, the
equity instruments are measured to reflect the fair value
of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or
part thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

4.10 Accounting for income taxes

Income taxes comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non- assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., FESHHEBE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

410 ISR ETER (8)

4.10 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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4,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if, (a) the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and (b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either (i) the same taxable entity; or (ii) different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances and cash
on hand.

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have been
issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on the issue of
share capital. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium to the extent that
they are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other
than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the related service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 HiZ -~ =

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.13

4.14

Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the Group and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the services are
rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will
result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., FESHHEBE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.15 Hhis

4.15 Foreign currency

130

4.16

Transactions entered into by the Company and the Group in
currencies other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it/they operate(s) (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, in
which case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control of the Company;

(i) has significant influence over the Company; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of the Company’s parent.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.16 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

the entity, of any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Company or to the Company
parent.
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4,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.16

4.17

4.18

Related parties (Continued)

Close family members of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity and include (a)
that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; (b)
children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and (c)
dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic
partner.

Government grant

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Grants
are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that the grants are
intended to compensate, whilst those relating to the purchase
of property, plant and equipment are included as deferred
income liability in the statement of financial position and are
recognised in profit or loss on straight-line method over the
expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross
under “Other income” in profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of clients, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segment which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., FESHHEBE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.19 Share-based payments 419 URHHEFENNAR

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payments
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve. For share options that
vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the
share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or
loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Impairment allowance on financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 across all
categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular,
the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
and collateral or credit enhancement values when determining
impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors,
changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the
expected life between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition. The Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward-looking analysis.

Income tax

The Group is mainly subjected to income tax in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of the
provision and the timing of payment. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax expense is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises taxes
based on estimates of the likely outcome with reference to current
tax laws and practices. Where the final outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were originally estimated, such
differences will impact the provision for income tax and deferred tax
in the period in which such determination is made.

ORIENT SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M EE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

REVENUE 6. W=
The Group’s revenue represents: AEEZ WIS :
For the For the
fifteen months year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2023 2021
BE-2-=Ff #HzE_T—_—F
=A=+-—H +=-—B=+—H
IE+HBEA IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Revenue recognised under HKFRS 9 RIRE BV R E LR E 5%
TR W
— Interest income from margin —HFERE RS < F WA
financing services 3,905 7,786
— Interest income from money —BERB 2 F WA
lending services 43,237 34,116
Revenue recognised at a point in time RIR A S 5 2R B 155
under HKFRS 15 PR — By B R R 2 W
— Commission income from —EERB 2 A BA
brokerage services 1,119 1,672
— Underwriting and placement income —BiEREERA 714 3,130
— Service income — BRI A 150 =
49,125 46,704
OTHER INCOME 7. HfpgA
For the For the
fifteen months year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2023 2021
BE-T=-= BE_T_—F
=A=+-8 +=B=+—H
t+EMEA IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Gain on derecognition of RIEEREAEEE 2
right-of-use assets 30 —
Interest income from a director KE—BEFZFEHA 17 -
Sundry income HIBIWA 78 4
125 4
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136

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group manages its businesses by business lines. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management, being the chief
operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following four reportable segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form any of the following reportable segments.

T A
SETR

AEEEXBGERNEEER - AKER
25T mER AR OE - EE DR
HAAEEZESTREEAR (X2
RRERFE) NBERER AR RS I
RFmERR T~ X ESHEL
D RRAMEK TIER AT BRI AR -

Brokerage - Provision of brokerage services e - R4 AR
Underwriting and  — Provision of underwriting and placing BIEREE — TRt E 8 I Bt & AR 7S
placing services
Margin financing - Provision of securities and initial public fREE - RMEE SR E R AR
offering financing services BEMERD
Money lending - Provision of money lending services BE = REEERS

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s most senior executive
management monitors the revenue, results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all non-current and current assets with
the exception of deferred tax assets. Segment liabilities include all
current liabilities and non-current liabilities with the exception of tax
payables and debentures.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise from
the depreciation and amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4.18. Segment
profit/(loss) represents the profit earned and loss incurred by each
segment without allocation of sundry income and income tax
expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 HZ2—ZE = =A=+—HIt+tHEA

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment revenue, results and capital expenditure for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2023 and the segment assets and liabilities

as at 31 March 2023 are as follows:

BE_T_=—F=-A=+—HIL+a@E
Azl  FEREARFAX &R
—E_=F=-A=+t—HOBEERS&

(ECUNNE
Underwriting Margin Money
Brokerage  and placing financing lending Total
gR AHRRE FREE &E @5t

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-Z-=F=ZA=t-HLTHMEAR TR TR TER TR TR
Reportable segment revenue ~ REIMPEFE 2 UHHEIE

from external clients I 1,269 714 3,905 43,237 49,125
Reportable segment loss TRED EER (3.181) (2.278) (18,114)  (102,258)  (125,827)
Depreciation of property, plantand  #7% - 3 KR ENE

equipment 63 13 50 - 126
Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ FRIEEEHTE 1,360 272 1,089 - 2,721
Impairment for trade receivables, — [EME ZFEHRE - FH

net 2,494 1,001 2,961 - 6,456
Impairment for loan and interest RIS Z R FI BRI (E - F 58

receivables, net - - - 143,107 143,107
Impairment for other receivables  E- At EUFBR(E 1,232 985 246 1,100 3,563
Reportable segment assets TERTEEE 17,465 147 16,804 224,507 258,923
Additions to non-current segment R EIFERE D EEE

assets 976 195 781 - 1,952
Reportable segment liabilities ~ TTERHHEEE 9,727 97 3,622 270 13,716
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M EE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 8. KWEHE (&)

Segment revenue, results and capital expenditure for the year ended BHE-_Z-_—F+_RA=+—HILFE

31 December 2021 and the segment assets and liabilities as at 31 ZOHWE  FEREARAX - RRZ
December 2021 were as follows: T+ A=+—HBHBEEKSE

(ECUNNE
Underwriting Margin Money

Brokerage  and placing financing lending Total

e BHEEELE FREE BE et

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-S--F+-A=1+-ALEE TEL TEL TET TEL TET

Reportable segment revenue ~ REIMPEFE 2 UHHEIE
from external clients W 1,672 3,130 7,786 34,116 46,704

Reportable segment (loss)/profit o B 355 % (E1#8) /B A (2,781) 93 (7,032) 32,961 23,241

Depreciation of property, plantand  #7% - 3 KR ENE
equipment = = - - -

Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {f & EHTE (1,845) (369) (1,475) (197) (3,886)

Impairment for trade receivables, — [EME ZFERE - 58
net (513) - (3,586) - (4,099)

Reversal of impairment for loan and  JEUE 3 & FIl SR ERE -
interest receivables, net FE = - = 575 575

Reportable segment assets THRLEEE 25,832 1,267 27,109 327,364 381,572

Additions to non-current segment  REFRB D EEE
assets 3,147 630 2,518 - 6,295

Reportable segment liabilities ~ THRPEEE 3,587 475 17,496 7 21,565
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 8.

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments are

reconciled to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

REeEsE(E)

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

AEBFA2FREN B 2 B EHEA R
BHREFA2INAEREETBM KR

consolidated financial statements as follows: HARIN R ¢
For the For the
fifteen months year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2023 2021
BHE—-ZE-= BE-_T-—F
=HA=+—H +=-—RA=+—~H
LE+FEM@A HFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Reportable segment (loss)/profit AR E (E18), & F (125,827) 23,241
Other income R ON 125 4

Consolidated (loss)/profit before BRETSRAT4R S (E518), S5

income tax (125,702) 23,245
Reportable segment assets AR OEEE 258,923 381,572
Deferred tax assets EIERIHE B 334 334
Consolidated total assets MEBERE 259,257 381,906
Reportable segment liabilities ARK{HEEE 13,716 21,565
Tax payables FEIBEIE 9,736 10,685
Debentures (EC2 - 1,000
Consolidated total liabilities LEBERE 23,452 33,250

All activities of the Group are carried out in Hong Kong and all its

revenue for the period ended 31 March 2023 and the year ended

31 December 2021 are derived from Hong Kong. Accordingly, no

analysis of geographical information is presented.

AEBAAEEBHERBET A
EEREE_E-_=F=A=+—H1F
HEEHEE-_ZT-_—F+-_HA=+—8H
EFEZABRETREES - AL -
WA 2 5 BB DT o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSN N e

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

9. EMPLOYEE COSTS

For the

fifteen months
ended 31 March

For the
year ended
31 December

2023 2021
BE_-_ZT-=% BE—_T-——F
=A=+—B81k +=-—A=+—81t
+HEA FE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Directors’ emoluments (note 15) ZEEZWE (FE15)
— Fees, salaries, allowances and bonuses —#& * #1422 NES 2,091 1,731
— Equity-settled share based expense — AR E ARG BERER
E3 1,218 -
— Retirement benefits scheme — R RAEFIET B
contributions a4 43
3,353 1,774
Other staff HEMET
— Commissions paid —BEfAe 227 260
— Salaries, allowances and bonuses —He R EES 5,248 7,099
— Equity-settled share based expense — AR B ARG R AT
< 769 -
— Mandatory provident fund contributions —5& #l1£ A F& & 3K 212 260
— Medical and insurance —BE kIR 359 325
— Staff welfare and recruitment —BIEMNKEE 7 5
— Reversal of provision for unused annual — — 7k FB 4 {BR 48 s 85 B
leave - (383)
Total employee costs BB XA 4E5 10,175 9,340
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10. FINANCE COSTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4= A

Iy e

2N =

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

10. MK EH

For the
fifteen months
ended 31 March

For the
year ended
31 December

2023 2021
BE-2-=F E-_T-—F
=A=+-—H —RA=+—H
t+HMEA IEFE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBEMERX 76 80
Interest expenses on debentures &5 BRI X2 89 75
165 155
11. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 1. BRETEB B AT (B518), %57
For the For the
fifteen months year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2023 2021
Bz-—=== BHE_ZT_—F
=H=+-—H +=—A=+—H
t+EMEA IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Loss)/profit before income tax is arrived at BRFT{SHELAT (E518) S5 FIE Hk
after charging (crediting): (Bt A) :
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN & 540 600
Depreciation charge: TERX
— property, plant and equipment — W - W REE 126 =
— right-of-use assets —(FREEE 2,721 3,886
Impairment for trade receivables, net EWE 5 IERME  F5R 6,456 4,099
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) for  FEUE & F EORE, OB
loan and interest receivables, net ) - &8 143,107 (575)
Impairment for other receivables, net H A W RIER(E 5 3,563 -

RTEFEHBEERAR AT / FR 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSN N e

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 HZ—ZE = =A=+—HIt+ 1@

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (year
ended 31 December 2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the period, except for one
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime effective from the year of assessment
2018/2019. The first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of this
subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are
taxed at 16.5%.

A

12.

FriE®iB

ERFEHIBIBEHANTE BRI E
TR R AIR165% (BE-—T——%
TZA=F+—HIFE : 16.5%) B X:T
REE  EASEN BB AFRRIN -
ZARABEE—N\/—E—LEHEF
ERAEMZMBHFESTHREHET 2
EEBEE - ZMB AR E%£2,000,000
VB TT 2 I ER T i ) 12 8.25 % it R A
E AR 5 FI RIHZ 16.5% Bl R F o

For the For the
fifteen months year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2023 2021
BE-2—-= HE_T_—%F
=A=+-—H +Z—H=+—H
t+EHMEA LFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNEAR IR — BB NS
— Current year —AKFE - 5,175
Deferred tax charge (note 28) RIEH AR 2 (M5 28) - 95
Total income tax expense FrisBiF X 485 = 5,270
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting (loss)/

profit at applicable tax rate is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

FR8® B < (&)
FTSBiM e st (B18), &l 2 HiR
BRAREEL ZHERMT
For the For the
fifteen months year ended

ended 31 March

31 December

2023 2021
BE-R_-=%Ff BHE=-FT=-—F
=A=+-8B +=-A=+-H
t+HMEA IEFE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET FHETT
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRET1S R AT (E518) % 7 (125,702) 23,245
Tax calculated at Hong Kong Profits REBNEHE16.5%
Tax rate of 16.5% (year ended 31 (Bz—_2-—%F+—-HA
December 2021: 16.5%) =t—BHLEFE : 165%)
AEZBIE (20,741) 3,835
Tax effect on application of two-tiered FERA RS TR RS 2 BTS2
profit tax regime (165) (165)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses PNAMBRZ 2B E 2,020 1,470
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERTIAEE 2 B & 20,879 138
Utilisation of tax loss previously not B AR R A E 1B
recognised (1,993) -
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary RAERELREZB o NBETE
differences - (8)
Income tax expense PSR X2 = 5,270

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has not recognised deferred tax

assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of HK$141,122,000 (31
December 2021: HK$26,661,000), as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be

available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do

not expire under current tax legislation.

The Group had no significant unprovided deferred tax assets or

liabilities during the period and at the end of the reporting period

(year ended 31 December 2021: Nil).

R_E-_ZFZA=+—H AR HEHE
Hsa AR RERBAEB TR R ER
T s A AT A DA SE 518 - BN SR B I 4
MR FIEEE 141,122,000 7T (= F
——F+ZA=+—H:26,661,000%
T0) ERIBELERIEE E - RIBIRBHE -
TRIEE B TR ER o

RERRABESRR  AEELHER
Bk R M BB 2 BB A A E A
(BE-T-—F+=A=+—AIF
B ) o
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

13. DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of
any dividend for the period ended 31 March 2023 and the year

ended 31 December 2021.

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

period ended 31 March 2023 is based on the following data:

13! Hﬁ/%\

ARREFIEBRNEE_T-_=F
A=+ HUEHREBEE—T——F

+=B=t+—BEE RS
14. 8K (B#8) BF

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the BHE_ZT-_="F=-"A=+—HILH#EZ

TARE :

FREAAREE (BR) B TREN

For the For the
fifteen months year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2023 2021
BE-—E=-= BHE_ZT_-_—F
=B=+—H +=—A=+—H
IE+HEA IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners NAEVEEA AFEM (B1R),%F
of the Company (125,702) 17,975

Weighted average number
of ordinary shares

ZRERZMETLHE
For the For the
fifteen months year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2023 2021
BE-ZT_-=F HE_Z_—F
EEET=E +=—RA=+—H
IE+EM@EA IEFE
(restated)
(5&E5)

For purpose of basic and diluted ARG EBRER LS

(loss)/earnings per share (E18),/ &7 104,333,222 86,400,000

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
basic (loss)/profit per share has been adjusted for the consolidation

of shares on 11 October 2022.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the period ended
31 March 2023 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
options because the exercise price of those options was higher than
the average market price for shares for the period ended 31 March

2023.

Diluted earnings per share equals to basic earnings per share for the
year ended 31 December 2021 as there were no dilutive potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the year ended 31 December

2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

15. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, FIVE 15. EE T EBSHALIRER
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR EEEzHME
MANAGEMENT
Directors’ emoluments EEM2
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to the ENMRENTARARESEZB& &8
directors of the Company are as follows: T

Salaries, Retirement Equity-
allowances benefits settled
and benefits Discretionary scheme  share based
Fees in kind* bonuses contributions expense Total
s - NREEE
B BIRER R B
we  EUEA  BERA O FEAR  ERRX @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TRL TAL TAL TAL

For the fifteen months

BE-2--%=A=1-H

ended 31 March 2023 IL+EEA
Executive Directors BITES
Lam Shu Chung' AL - 303 - - 487 790
Lee Nga Ching kg 225 525 - PE] 244 1,017
Shiu Shu Ming? a2 8 380 - 14 487 889
Suen Tin Yan® SN - 200 - 7 - 207
Independent Non-Executive ~ BYFHTES

Directors
Chan Man Yi Bz 150 - - - - 150
Tang Chung Wait BrE 136 - - - - 136
Siu Kin Wai 22 150 - - - - 150
Luk Huen Ling? BT 14 - - - - 14

683 1,408 - a4 1,218 3,353

For the year ended HE-ZT-—-%

31 December 2021 TZA=1-HILFE
Executive Directors BITES
Lam Shu Chung' AT = 480 = 10 = 490
Lee Nga Ching FHE8 180 420 - 18 - 618
Cheung Yu Xuan eIk = 291 = 15 = 306
Independent Non-Executive ~ BUFHTES

Directors
Chan Man Yi REE 120 - - - - 120
Tang Chung Wait HrE 120 = = = - 120
Siu Kin Wai L4 120 - - - - 120

540 1,191 - 43 - 1,774
g Resigned on 19 August 2022. RZEB__FNATIBRE-
2 Appointed on 10 June 2022 as a non-executive Director and redesignated to an RZE - —FRNATEEZERIRITES
executive Director on 5 July 2022. FRZZ-__FLARBEATHRITES -

3 Appointed on 18 November 2022. RZZE-_—F+—A+N\BEZE-
4 Resigned on 17 February 2023. RZZE_=F_A+tHEE-
5 Appointed on 17 February 2023. RZFE_=F_A++tAEZRE-

Resigned on 22 October 2021.

Being “salaries, allowances and benefits in kind” paid or payable to executive
directors in connection with the management of affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

RZZEZ—F+AZ+=HEHE -

RAREEARRREMBARZ EHC NN
ENRTEEZ [Ho RUEEYRERN] -

RTEFEHBEERAR AT / FR 2022
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RSN N e

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 & Z -~ - =F=/F=+—HIt+hf@

15. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, FIVE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments in respect of the period ended 31 March
2023 and the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the period ended 31 March 2023 and the year ended 31
December 2021, no emolument was paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

Emoluments of five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the period included three (year ended 31 December
2021: one) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments payable to the remaining two
(year ended 31 December 2021: four) individuals during the period
are as follows:

15.

EE -OIERSHFAIRER
EEEZHE (&)

EEME (8

BE_FT_=—F=-A=+t—HLEHAEK
BE_ZT-_—F+_A=T—HLFE"
BMESERRARERETOHE 2R
B o

BHE_Z-_=F=A=+—HIHHAX
HE—_ZT-—F+-_fA=+—HILEE
AEBWERMESTE NG - UFER
EMASAERINARE B 2 LRk 1E
BRI (S o

EEBREHFATZHE

AEEHALEESHFAL BE=%
BE_ZT-_—F+T_-_A=1+—HBL*F
B —R)EF HMEERREN LS
o BNENESME (B2 ——F
ToAZ=+—RLFE: mR) AL M
ST

For the For the
fifteen months year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2023 2021
BE-®=-= HE_T_—F
=H=+-—H +—A=+—8
IE+FHM@EA LEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Salaries, commission, allowances and e He EMNMEYWEAF
benefits in kind 1,015 2,749
Equity-settled share based expense VARG 4 & DARR (0 A EERER R 2 487 -
Retirement benefits scheme contributions &4 Fll 51 &l 1t 7% 36 66
1,538 2,815
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RA SRR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

15. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, FIVE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Emoluments of five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments of these remaining two (year ended 31 December
2021: four) highest paid individuals fell within the following bands:

15. EE - ABBREHFALTRER

EEEzME (&)

AEBEHFATZHME (&)
BTITRR(BE_E-—F+=-_A=+—
BIEFE : NB)BRaHFATZHMEN T
AT EE :

Number of individuals

EE®E
For the For the
fifteen months year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2023 2021
BE-®=-= HE_T_—F
=A=t+-A +=A=+-A
It+HEA IEFE
Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 =% 1,000,0007%8 7T 2 4

During the period ended 31 March 2023 and the year ended 31
December 2021, no emolument was paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

Emoluments of senior management

Senior management of the Group included one (year ended 31
December 2021: three) individual whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid or payable to
senior management fell within the following bands:

BE_T_=F=-"A=+—HILHHAK
BE_T-_—F+-_A=+—BLFE
N AEEYERAAERSHEA LN
e UFERFMASIESMAKRSE
BB 7 SRR SR S BERAR (E

SHREEEHS

AEBESRERERE—®% BEZST
——F+-A=+—HILEE: =8) A
T EES B RREN ESHT - EfFEL
ENEREEBOIEN TIATEE :

Number of individuals

EBE®E
For the For the
fifteen months year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2023 2021
BE-ZF=-= BHE_ZT-—F
=H=+-—H +=—A=+—H
IE+H@EB IEFE
Below HK$ 1,000,000 181,000,000 % 7T 1 3
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RSN N e

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. Y% - B RRE

Leasehold ~ Computer Office Furniture Motor Right-of-
improvements  equipment  equipment  and fixtures vehicles use assets Total
RENFEE ElRE BOZTRE  BARZE hE  RRREEE af
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T ThL T T T
At 1 January 2021 R=B=-%-A-8
Cost KA 1,740 5211 793 1,800 3N 12,348 2263
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (1,740) (5.211) (793) (1,800) (371) (10,036) (19.951)
Net carrying amount REFE - - - - - 2312 231
For the year ended HE-R--£t125
31 December 2021 St-BLEE
Opening net carying amount BOREFE - - - - - 2312 2312
Addition WE = = = = = 6,295 6,295
Depreciation ik - - - - - (3,3%6) (3,386)
Closing net carrying amount BRREFE - - - - = 471 471
At 31 December 2021 R-8=-Ft2A
=t-A
Cost Ak 1,740 5211 793 1,800 3N 6,295 16,210
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (1,740 (5,211) (793) (1,800) (371) (1574) (11,489)
Net carrying amount REFE - - = = = 471 471
For the fifteen months ended BE-B-=%=f
31 March 2023 =t-ALE+EER
Opening net carrying amount HNREFE - - - - - 41 4m
Addition WE - 310 - 121 200 1321 1,952
Derecognition B\ - - - - - (2,360) (2,360)
Depreciation it = (90) = (19) (1 @m) (2.847)
Closing net carrying amount BREEEE - 20 - 102 183 91 1,466
At 31 March 2023 R-8-ZF=f
Sr=f
Cost KA 1,740 5,521 793 1,921 571 1321 11,867
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (1,740) (5301) (793) (1,819) (388) (360) (10,401)
Net carrying amount FHYE - 20 - 102 183 91 1,466
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The analysis of the net carrying amount of right-of-use assets by class

16. 13 - #BERRME (F)

HIHMEERRE D < ERAEEERE

of underlying asset is as follows: FEDTT
Lease contract
HEEW
HK$'000
T
As at 1 January 2021 R-_E-_—F—A—H 2,312
Addition NE 6,295
Depreciation e (3,886)
As at 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZE-_—F+_A=+T—HBK
—E-=F—H—H 4,721
Addition NE 1,321
Derecognition iR ETER (2,360)
Depreciation e (2,721)
As at 31 March 2023 R-_Z_=%=A=+—H 961
For the For the
fifteen months year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2023 2021
BE-®—-= HE—_T—_—F
=A=+—H1k +=ZA=+—H81t
TEHEA FE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Interest on lease liabilities (note 10) HEa&H B (FsE10) 76 80

Details of total cash outflow for leases, the maturity analysis of lease
liabilities and the future cash outflows arising from leases that are
not yet commenced are set out in notes 26 and 37.3 respectively.

OTHER ASSETS

The balances represent statutory and other deposits which are
placed with various exchanges and clearing houses at the end of the
reporting period. These balances do not bear interest.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets represent trading rights on the Stock Exchange. The
cost of intangible assets is HK$3,680,000 and the said amount had
been fully amortised in prior years.

MEeEzRent@asE HEAGIHA
SR AFARZHAEEENRKIRS
M FED RIS M 26 %37.3 °

17. HtbEE
RIBEHF  RELEBEERTAR S

PRREEMZEEREMIESR - ZFR
ERRE -

18. B EE
BIABEIMIFAR D - EEAER

7N7% 3,680,000 7 7T M -3l & 58 2 FE DA AT
FEDRREH -

RTEFEHBEERAR AT / FR 2022
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

19. BWE 5 RKE

At 31 March At 31 December
2023 2021
R=-E=-= R-ZE_-_—4F
=BA=+—H +—_A=+—H
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FETT
Trade receivables arising from the BERERBEBMES
business of placing services ZEWE I8 (@) 1,001 1,001
Trade receivables arising from the BEERHFEBESL
business of dealing in securities: 2 B 5008
— Cash clients —REEP (a),(b) 4,241 4,040
— Margin finance loans —FFERBMEER (a),(d) 44,691 48,186
— Clearing house —4EEFT (a).(b) 480 124
Trade receivables, gross JEUE S FIE - AA%E 50,413 53,351
Less: provision on trade receivables & : [EUN & 5 B B & (0),(e) (31,697) (25,241)
Trade receivables, net JEUE SFIE - FEE 18,716 28,110

Notes:

(a)

These balances are required to be settled on the settlement dates of their
respective transactions (normally one or two business days after the respective
trade dates). The trade receivables from cash clients bear interest at commercial
rates (normally at HK$ Prime Rate plus a spread).

These are secured by clients’ pledged securities, repayable on demand and bear
interest at variable commercial rates. No ageing analysis is disclosed, as in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, this analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of business of securities margin financing. As at 31
March 2023, total market value of securities pledged as collaterals in respect
of the margin finance loans were approximately HK$9,268,000 (31 December
2021: HK$37,137,000). The collaterals held can be repledged and can be sold
at the Group’s discretion to settle any outstanding amounts due from margin
clients. The amount of credit facilities granted to them is determined based on a
discount on the market value of securities accepted by the Group. Any excess in
the lending ratio will trigger a margin call which the clients have to make good
the shortfall.

Trade receivables arising from cash clients and clearing house, if any, with
the following ageing analysis, presented based on the trade date which is the
revenue recognition date, as at the end of the reporting period:

GEE

REGHRRBEESAZRGRBHEBAGE (—
RABZRZ ARG —EXMEEXA)
KERE TP Z W E 5 IRIZ R E M K5t
B CRABTREBRNEMER)

BRRBEURPZEEREBELERER RE
SKEF(EE - WIRFBEEFRAE - ARA
RRAIBEERE ENBLHFAEMEEL M
g RE DT REEIMEE - R
BRIRDIT - RZT=_=F=A=+—A8 #EFF
EREERERAzOEBEREAFZMELED
79,268,000 L (T -—F+=-A=+—
H : 37,137,000/ 7)) ° FifsA 2 BB @E AT A
BHEMH - MAKE A WER 2 HEAEEF
REF BN 2 ERREERE - BTN
EERESEEASECERMNELFZME
PRETE - EE L HIEBEE - FE3 BBl
R BEFEERAERISTEHE -

RBERR BREFPREEMELZE
WE 55IA(NE) 1R 5 A 8 (B s iR
BH) 27 2 REBEDHTOT -

At 31 March At 31 December

2023 2021

R-ZBZ=F R-ZE-—F

=A=+-—H +=A=+—AH

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Current BN & 4,721 4,164
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©

The following table provide information about the Group’s exposure to credit
risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables arising from cash clients and
clearing house and trade receivables arising from placing services:

19. B E 5 FE (&)

BeE - ()

(0 TERBIERAKEEE 2 EERRIRE
ReBFPREEMEKESRARKERE
R EKRE ZFIRZTAHEEBRNER

Gross carrying amount

Loss allowance

AR E EiERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHExT
As at 31 March 2023 R-B-_=%=H=+—8

Current BNER 589 17)
Past due not more than 6 months BETZIBNEA 735 (237)

Past due more than 6 months but not more B HiZBNE A BT Z B —F
than a year 1,584 (622)
Past due more than a year BEZE—F 2,814 (2,347)
5,722 (3.223)

Gross carrying amount

Loss allowance

BEREE BEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
As at 31 December 2021 RZE=Z—F+=A=+—8
Current BNHA 552 -
Past due not more than 6 months BEAT % BN E A 361 (72)
Past due more than 6 months but not more B HiZE/NE A B Z B —F
than a year 1,753 (92)
Past due more than a year BHZE—F 2,499 (1,329)
5,165 (1,493)

Movement of ECLs allowance of trade receivables arising from cash clients and
clearing house and trade receivables arising from placing services is as follows:

KEREEP RGEHEMERESFIRNRE
RERBELE S XA RAEEEREE

FEWT
For the For the
fifteen months year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2023 2021
BE-=2-=F HE-ZT=—%
=A=t+—-ALt +=-—A=+—H~H
+EHMEA IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Balance at the beginning of the period/year — FER¥I, 4 ¥ & 4 1,493 980
Impairment losses recognised, net BRERREEEFHE 1,730 513
Balance at the end of the period/year REIR FE RS 3,223 1,493
RATEMFHFBERERBER AR / F3] 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e Rk MR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 HZ—-Z —

(d)

=F=A=+—RHIThfE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. BN E 5 FE (&)
Notes: (Continued) BisE - (48)
Analysis of the gross carrying amount of margin loan receivables is as follows: (d) BRFRERZLEEESTWT
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
R ERER HEWER Ast
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHBT FET
Gross carrying amount as at RZZEZ—F—A—RH2
1 January 2021 BEREE 7,530 26,320 15,636 49,486
New assets originated or purchased B E4SEEERFEE 35 5,278 - 5,313
Assets derecognised or repaid BRIEERKEEENEE (6,006) - (607) (6,613)
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 M —PEEEBEE —EE (630) 630 - -
Gross carrying amount as at R=ZT=—F
31 December 2021 and +ZA=+—HBHK
1 January 2022 —_E-_—_#—F—HA2
HBARE(E 929 32,228 15,029 48,186
New assets originated or purchased B E4SEEERFHEE 21 755 - 776
Assets derecognised or repaid BERIIERARCEHENEE (929) (613) (2,729) (4,271)
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 R —REEBEE =R - (32,370) 32,370 -
Gross carrying amount as at R-ZT-_=%=A8
31 March 2023 =+—BZEKREE 21 - 44,670 44,691
Analysis of ECLs of margin loan receivables is as follows: () BRHARERZEHEEEBEINHOT :
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—RR FoRER =R et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET FAET
ECLs allowances as at RZTE-_—F—A—H2
1 January 2021 EHEEEBREE 49 5,625 14,488 20,162
Increase in credit risk EE®RE T = 3,075 511 3,586
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 2] %-ﬁ%ﬁx@?@i%:ﬂ%ﬁﬁ (22) 22 = =
ECLs allowances as at RZT=—F
31 December 2021 and +=ZA=+—HKk
1 January 2022 - —_HF#—F—H2
ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁaﬁé% 27 8,722 14,999 23,748
Increase in credit risk =ERK EF - 7,641 - 7,641
Assets repaid a;&aﬁéﬁ 27) (152) (2.736) (2,915)
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 HE —REEBEE =R - (16,211) 16,211 =
ECLs allowances as at R-F_=F=H
31 March 2023 =t+—BzEHEE
R - - 28,474 28,474
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

20. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

20. BWERRFE

At 31 March At 31 December
2023 2021
R=-E=-= R-ZE-—F
=B=+t-B +=A=+-A
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT T T
Money lending services BE R
Loan receivables JE W & 3R 248,099 247,330
Interest receivables JiE U 1] 8. 119,932 81,073
Total loan and interest receivables, gross 42 E X Al & - 4458 368,031 328,403
Less: provision on loan and interest W W E R R B
receivables (145,407) (2,300)
222,624 326,103
Less: Portion due within one year included & : BIEE RS EE 2
under current assets —FREE D (207,220) (307,466)
Non-current portion included under non- B EEIERENEE 2
current assets FEBNEREL 15,404 18,637

Notes:

The balances of the loan and interest receivables are secured with collateral
or with custodies of credit enhancement by customers as at both period ends,
except for balances of HK$18,841,000 (31 December 2021: HK$220,000)
which were not secured by any collaterals and any credit enhancement. Due
to significant deterioration of the financial position, repayment ability and
quality of related collaterals of the Group’s debtors, following the COVID-19
outbreak, social unrest in Hong Kong and the trade war between China and
the United States of America, ECL allowance of HK$145,407,000 (31 December
2021: HK$2,300,000) was made against the gross amount of loan and interest
receivables as at 31 March 2023.

All loan receivables are interest bearing at effective interest rates ranging from
7.34% to 41.28% (31 December 2021: 7.34% to 41.28%) per annum and with
repayment periods ranging from one year to seven years (31 December 2021:
one year to seven years).

Mo

P EEART A 2R B - PR E R R R B 48R T A
REZEARSTE M AR RIERR -
ME#E£418,841,0008 T (=T =—F+=A
=+—H :220,00077T) Ty EFERER DK
A A AYER - B COVID-195%& 15
BT ERIARTEEZFES REZMEH
B 581%  AEEEBAVBARR  EREE

REBEEREENANERS{ RZT==
F=ZA=1+—8 REKERERFSBEE
B B BB 1R B 48 145,407,000 8 T (=%
——®%+=-A=+—H :2,300,000&7T) °

FERKREILT34% E41.28% (= =—
FE+—A=+—H :734% £4128%) 2 &
BRERERFE  BRHA—EELF (=T
——49+=ZA=+—H8: —&FELF) -
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e Rk MR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 & Z -~ - =F=/F=+—HIt+hf@

A= —
20. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 20. EWERKAE (&)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) MizE : ()
(b)  Analysis of the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECLs allowance of (b) R E R RF Sz AR E R E 2 BHE
loan and interest receivables is as follows: BEEBABESTOT
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E-RR B HEWER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHBT FHET
Gross carrying amount as at RZZEZ—F—A—RH2
1 January 2021 1B AR A 296,440 3,337 275 300,052
New assets originated or purchased B E4SEEERFEE 34,354 194 - 34,548
Assets repaid BEENEE (4,997) (1,200) - (6,197)
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 M —PEEEBEE —EE (325,797) 325,797 -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 RE _REEBREE =R (1,142) 1,142 =
Gross carrying amount as at RZT=—F
31 December 2021 and +=ZA=+—HK
1 January 2022 —E-—#—F—Hz
BEREE - 326,986 1,417 328,403
New assets originated or purchased BEE4XCHEENTEE - 43,237 - 43,237
Assets repaid BEENEE - (3.609) - (3.609)
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 AE_BEEBREE =R - (366,614) 366,614 =
Gross carrying amount as at RZZEZ=%F=A
31 March 2023 =t+—HZBERAEE - - 368,031 368,031
(©) Analysis of ECLs allowance of loan and interest receivables is as follows: (c) ERERKFEZEREEBHBREI T
"F :
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Rl 12 FRER R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FHET FET
ECLs allowances as at RZZE=Z—F—A—H2Z
1 January 2021 EHEEEREE - 2,600 275 2,875
Increase in credit risk FEERR A = 211 229 440
Assets repaid BEENEE - (1,015) - (1,015)
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 HE—RBREBREE=[EE - (913) 913
ECLs allowances as at R-ZEBE-_—%+-A8
31 December 2021 and =t+—HRZZE==F
1 January 2022 —A—BZHEHSEE
EIEEE - 883 1,417 2,300
Increase in credit risk EFERR LA - - 143,107 143,107
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 HE_BEEBREE =[EER - (883) 883 =
ECLs allowances as at RZZEZ=%=A
31 March 2023 =t+—BZEHEE
R - - 145,407 145,407
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21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

21. A FIE -

B

SR8 TEN

RECEIVABLES 15
At 31 March At 31 December
2023 2021
R=-E=-= RZTEZ—%F
=B=+—H +—_A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT THET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Rental and other deposits HeMEMEZES - 2,043
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H {th & Y skIE 119 28
Prepayments T FRIE 404 2,784
Rental and other deposits HekHMEe 69 15
Amount due from a director (note 34) el — B E=7IE (MIsE34) 423 =
1,015 2,827

TRUST BANK BALANCES HELD ON BEHALF OF  22.

REFERZERRITER

CLIENTS

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with authorised
institutions to hold clients’ monies in accordance with the Securities
and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. These clients’” monies are maintained in three trust bank
accounts, bear interest at commercial rate with original maturity
of three months or less. In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the Group has classified the clients’ monies as bank
balances held on behalf of clients in current assets and recognised
the corresponding trade payables (note 24) to the respective clients
and other institutions as current liabilities as it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients’” monies. The Group is not allowed to use
the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations.

AEBRBEEFLHERITZE SR
HE (RP3R) RAINFRRITHRS
VEFRRPUARBEREFPRE - ZEEF
REFER=EERRITEFA KA
EREFRILN =8 A KRG HHEAZ
HIRE - R MBI ERA - BEZA
HBEPZBAIERETPZEREE
BARBKEFFADBRRBDEERD
DZRBEPREZRITER  LNRE
BESNOEAERNEBTS REMEE
ZHEEE HIE (MiwE24) - REETEF
REPREANEEEARNGER -
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24,

23. BERREEEY

At 31 March At 31 December

2023 2021

N-E=-= RZEZ—4F

=B=+—H +=—A=+—8

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

B 7 FExT FBT

Cash at bank RITHEE (a) 5,768 1,800
Cash on hand FHEES 1 3
Cash and bank balances R RIRTTA 5,769 1,803

Note:

(a)

During the period, interest rates on the cash at bank and deposits with banks of
the Group ranged from Nil to 0.001% (year ended 31 December 2021: Nil to
0.001%) per annum.

TRADE PAYABLES

Bt &
(a)

A - AEBEZRITRERERAFRNERTE
0.001%:t B8 (BE-_T=-—F+-A=1+—
HIEFE : £%0.001%) °

24. BENEZFE

At 31 March At 31 December
2023 2021

N-—E== A
=H=+-—H +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FH&T

Trade payables arising from the business H B B#EH¥BFTESE 2
of dealing in securities: FEfE S FRIE -

— Cash clients - REEP 6,324 9,382
— Margin clients —-HFREP 3,236 6,118
— Clients’ deposits —RBP%ES 100 98
9,660 15,598

Notes:

The settlement terms of trade payables arising from the business of dealing in
securities are two days after trade date. Trade payables to clients bear variable
interest at commercial rates.

Trade payables included payable to clients and other institutions in respect of the
trust and segregated bank balances received and held for clients in the course of
conducting the regulated activities. However, the Group currently does not have
an enforceable right to offset these payables with the deposits placed. Included
in above as at 31 December 2021 were an amount due to a director of the
Company of HK$1,656,000 (31 March 2023: nil).

No ageing analysis in respect of trade payables attributable to dealings in
securities transactions is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, this analysis
does not give additional value in view of the nature of business of dealing in
securities.
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25. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

26.

2N =

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A

Iy e

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

25. BEtERAREMEN IR

At 31 March At 31 December
2023 2021
R=-E=-= R-ZE-—F
=B=+t-B +=A=+-A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Accruals fEstEH 2,668 1,198
Other payables A JE < R IR 223 25
Amount due to a director (note 34) JEN —ZEEFHUA (MI5E34) 200 =
3,091 1,223
LEASES 26. HE

The Group leases office premises. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

The present value of future lease payments of the Group’s leases are

BE &R RGN
e AN AE AT 2256 -
AR B m e

AEEHERLEDE HEANAER
BEIE SR - HERSIRE R E 2R -
K fgtt - HEHZEIL
HEHEEETSRAE

AEEBEE 2 RRBERBRES TN

analysed as: Ik

At 31 March At 31 December
2023 2021

N-ZZE_-= N_E——
=RA=+—H +=—A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FABT
Current BIEA 732 3,147
Non-current FEBNHR 233 1,597
965 4,744
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26. LEASES (Continued) 26. HE (&)
Movement of the Group’s leases liabilities is analysed as follows: REBHEAGEHHMEOT
HK$'000
FHT
As at 1 January 2021 R-ZE-_—F—H—H 2,458
Addition NE 6,295
Interest expenses MEFZ 80
Lease payments HERE (4,089)
As at 31 December 2021 and R-Z-_—F+-_A=+—8K
1 January 2022 —E-F—HA—H 4,744
Addition =T 1,321
Derecognition 4 RERR (2,390)
Interest expenses MEFX 76
Lease payments MEFIE (2,786)
As at 31 March 2023 R-BE_=Ff=RA=+—H 965
The future lease payments of the Group’s leases were scheduled to REERSE 2 ARRBERBERRAT
repay as follows:
Minimum
lease payments Interest  Present value
REHERE FE RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FE&T
As at 31 March 2023 R=-F=-=
=HA=+-—H
Not later than one year —FR 754 (22) 732
Later than one year and not later ~ —F & {B/R 4 A
than two years 234 (1) 233
988 (23) 965
As at 31 December 2021 R-B-—F
+=A=+—H
Not later than one year —FR 3,213 (66) 3,147
Later than one year and not later ~—F & ERFERN
than two years 1,606 9) 1,597
4,819 (75) 4,744
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27. DEBENTURES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

27. &%

At 31 March At 31 December
2023 2021
R=2== R=-F_—F
=ZA=+-—H +=—A=+—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
L THERT T
Interest bearing debenture at BERMEI%TEZ (a
7% per annum (62 - 500
Interest bearing debenture at REFE8NFEZ (b)
8% per annum &% = 500
- 1,000
Notes: BT
(a) This debenture bears interest at 7% per annum and is unsecured and repayable (a) ZEFREMET% S EEAR  WERZ
on 1 December 2022. The debenture has been fully settled during the period. T_F+-A—HEE BHFERBERE
A o
(b)  This debenture bears interest at 8% per annum and is unsecured and repayable (b) EEFEFNES%E EEM  WAR=
on 28 April 2022. The debenture has been fully settled during the period. T__FHOA-+TNRAEE - BFERER
BELEE -
28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 28. BEBIEEE

The movement of deferred tax assets are as follows:

BEXERBEEZEBANT ¢

Provision
for receivables

WA RS

HK$'000

T

As at 1 January 2021 RZE=_—F—HA—H 429

Charge for the year (note 12) FARX (FizE12) (95)
As at 31 December 2021 and R—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8Bxk

1 January 2022 —E-—F—H—H 334

Charge for the period (note 12) BRAR S (FF5E12) -

As at 31 March 2023 R-ZB_=F=RA=+—H 334

RTEFEHBEERAR AT / FR 2022
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29. SHARE CAPITAL

29. A

At 31 March 2023
R-E-=£=ZA=1+-H

At 31 December 2021
WZEZ—F+ZA=1+—H

Number HK$ Number HK$
#8 BT #8 BT
Authorised share capital ZEERAL
At the beginning of the period/year R/ E4 20,000,000,000 200,000,000 20,000,000,000 200,000,000
Share consolidation (Note a) BiAE 5 (HisEa) (16,000,000,000) = = =
At the end of the period/year WER /R 400,000,000 200,000,000 20,000,000,000 200,000,000
Issued and fully paid BEZ#TREE
At beginning of the period/year R/ E4 432,000,000 4,320,000 432,000,000 4,320,000
New shares issued (HK$0.01 each) (Note b) ~ Z1T# Ik 3 (BREE
0.01% ) (kD) 86,400,000 864,000 - =
New shares issued (HK$0.05 each) (Note ¢) 47 #1 %7 (B EE
0.0557T) (FizEc) 20,736,000 1,036,800 - =
Share consolidation (Note a) Rir a6 (Fizta) (414,720,000) = = =
At the end of the period/year IR/ ER 124,416,000 6,220,800 432,000,000 4,320,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets and in all other respects.

EBRRBEARRERTEE RS
T HEERARNRARRE LSRR —RET
TR FIAEBBRRARRFGBKEEM
s REZEAM T mALREF o

Note a:  Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed on 7 October 2022, the Company

Note b:

implemented the share consolidation whereby every five issued and unissued
ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company were consolidated into one consolidated ordinary share of par value
of HK$0.05 each of the Company effective on 11 October 2022.

On 13 May 2022, the Company entered into shares subscription agreements
with Instant Idea Limited and Wealthbase Global Limited for the subscription
of 86,400,000 new ordinary shares of the Company of nominal value of
HK$0.01 each (“Subscription Share(s)”) at a subscription price of HK$0.08
per Subscription Share (“Shares Subscription”).

The Shares Subscription completed on 27 May 2022 with net proceeds of
approximately HK$6,612,000 raised.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note c: On 1 November 2022, the Company entered into the placing agreement with
Gransing Securities Co., Limited (“Placing Agent”), pursuant to which the
Company agreed to place through the Placing Agent up to a maximum of
20,736,000 placing shares (“Placing Shares”) to not less than six placees
at the placing price of HK$0.22 per Placing Share on a best effort basis
(“Placing”).

The Placing completed on 16 November 2022 with net proceeds of
approximately HK$4,250,000 raised.

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) by an ordinary resolution duly passed by the
shareholders of the Company on 19 December 2013 for a period
of 10 years commencing on the adoption date. At 31 March 2023,
the number of shares in respect of which options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the Scheme was 3,192,000
representing 2.6% of the shares of the Company in issue at that
date.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of
all options to be granted under the share option scheme must not,
in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
as at the Listing Date (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) provided
that options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the share
option scheme will not be counted for the purpose of calculating
the Scheme Mandate Limit. The Company may seek approval by its
shareholders in general meeting for refreshing the Scheme Mandate
Limit. However, the total number of shares which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company under the limit as refreshed must not exceed 10% of the
total number of ordinary shares in issue as at the date of passing the
relevant resolution to refresh such limit.

29. BRA (1)

fidEc: R=T=—F+—A—H ARAERKE
FERAR ((RERE ) TIRE RS &
It ARRRERBRERIE RENEE
[ AR 7N LA B & £ % 20,736,000
REERN ((RERS]  SRESRH
ZEEER02EBT((WMESBHE]) -

BEEEBEER=-ZE-__F+— A+ HE
K - Fr & & K FT1S FRIE)$ 58 R 49 4,250,000
T °

30. LRGP B/BERHNTRRZ

KRB EBRBARBIRRERRAZET —=

TZATABIERBBEO L BRZEREK
M—IEERERE ((BERESTE]) -
BRMB R ARATF RZT =
F=ZRA=1T—H BEZFTEHEIELAE
TMARITENBREMSRNBROEE B
3,192,000/% : HERARRRZ B E %
TR HI2.6% °

HEREASIE T TRENTEBR
LT M Al gE TR R D R 8 & =1
SEBARANETHBAEEITROL
10% ([ETEIRFEPREE]) - BT B2
KEREM S - RIBERETZGERE
KBHBREKDTEEERN - XA F
ASRERRNIRRAS EIOER
SR REMREE - AT - EARAERE - B
GBI RARBEMEMETEIIA T AT
R R DB TS HBRE B BERE
WA ZRERBABE RITEAR
BEHI10% ©
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Eligible persons under the Share Option Scheme include any
employee (whether full-time or part-time employee, including
any director) of the Company and any of its subsidiaries and any
account executive of the Group, and any person or entity acting in
their capacities as advisers or consultants that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option Scheme
may be accepted within a period of 21 days from the date of which
the option is granted, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 by the grantee.

The subscription price for the shares subject to the options will be
a price determined by the Board and shall be the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the options, which must be
a trading date; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

On 23 June 2022, options comprising 21,144,000 shares were
granted under the Share Option Scheme. All of the share options
were fully vested on the respective date of grant.
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The following table shows the movement of the outstanding number

of the share option during the period:

30. LR AERNERRS ()

FRESIR BRI EERERE 22
& :

At Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Adjusted
beginning during the during the during the during the At end
of period period period period period  of period
R BARE  BRTE  BRx¥  HRER RER

(Note)

(P %E)

Executive directors #{TEE

—Lam Shu Chung  —#I#A - 5,184,000 - (5,184,000) = =
— Lee Nga Ching —ZHE - 2,592,000 - - (2,073,600) 518,400
— Shiu Shu Ming — R - 5,184,000 - - (4,147,200) 1,036,800
Subtotal /NEt - 12,960,000 - (5,184,000) (6,220,800) 1,555,200
Employees == - 8,184,000 - - (6,547,200) 1,636,800
Total et - 21,144,000 - (5,184,000) (12,768,000) 3,192,000

Note: The exercise price and the number of the outstanding share options granted
under Share Option Scheme have been adjusted for the Share Consolidation and
the Change in Board Lot Size on 11 October 2022.

All of the Company’s share options are exercisable as at 31 March
2023. The weighted-average remaining contractual life of the
options outstanding at the end of reporting period is 9.23 years. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would result in the
issue of 3,192,000 additional shares of the Company and additional
share capital and share premium of approximately HK$159,600 and
HK$1,340,640 (before issuance expense), respectively.

BMieE - BERRIERTEIE TR A RITEBRETEE
RBEER-_ZT_—F+AT—HANKRNHE
HEEREGFEBEEMETAE -

RARBERERZZTE_=F=HA=+—
B2 TLATTEE - RIE IR - K176
R 2 METF I FIBEHNFHA9.23
F o BEATRARITRIERIE G EZEEIN
173,192,000 IR AR R IR {7 - M RESNIZ
R R Wt s (8 9 Bl 49 74 159,600 7% 7T K
1,340,640 8 7T (RIIBRBEITER) ©
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

31.

(Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted was estimated as at the
respective date of grant, using the Binomial Option Pricing Model.
The following key inputs were used in the valuations:

Risk-free rate 3.08%
Contractual life 10 years
Expected volatility 171.31%
Dividend yield 0%
Number of options 21,144,000

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$1,987,000 for the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 in relation to share options
granted by the Company.

RESERVES

Group

Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Notes:

(a) Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal
value of the share capital of Capital Business International Limited acquired
pursuant to the group reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the
Company and the nominal value of share capital of the Company issued in
exchange thereof.

(b) Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, share premium of the
Company is distributable to the owners of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.
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31. RESERVES (Continued) 31. f#%& (&)
Company AT
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components of EBARNRRIERSKORFEVNEFRL
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set out BEFFIBERIAT
below:
Share
Share option Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
BRGEE BRERE R E#E fgt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAET TAT TR FTAT

At 1 January 2021 R-Z2-—-%—-8A—H 138,016 - (32,524) 105,492
Loss for the year FHEE - = (5,308) (5,308)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2wl - - - -
Total comprehensive income FREEKRESE
for the year - — (5,308) (5,308)
At 31 December 2021 and R=ZE=-—-F
1 January 2022 +t=ZA=t—-HK
—E--f%—-HF—H 138,016 - (37,832) 100,184
Loss for the period HAEE - - (2,834) (2,834)
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 E Yz - - - -
Total comprehensive income HreEk=e8
for the period - - (2,834) (2,834)
Issue of new shares FATEIR D 9,573 - - 9,573
Shares issue cost BinE1T &R (610) = = (610)
Recognition of share option expenses i =2 i A% 1 7 3% - 1,987 - 1,987
Share options lapsed EESE i = (487) 487 =
At 31 March 2023 R-E_=F
=A=+—H 146,979 1,500 (40,179) 108,300
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

32. AR F B AR R &

COMPANY
At 31 March At 31 December
2023 2021
R-E-=F RZTEZ—%F
ZA=+-8 +=A=+-~
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT THET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT ZIRE - =
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables  F& 1 5k I8 K2 H 1 fig U
KIA 609 117
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UL B B A Rl Zk IR 125,426 119,080
Cash and cash equivalents RERBFELFEY 2,006 5
128,041 119,202
Current liabilities RBAE
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R EMER
B 1,825 1,119
Amount due to a subsidiary S — RSB B A Bl K38 11,695 12,579
Debentures BEH - 1,000
13,520 14,698
Net current assets REBEEFE 114,521 104,504
Total assets less current WEERRBAE
liabilities 114,521 104,504
Net assets EEFE 114,521 104,504
EQUITY R
Share capital A& A 29 6,221 4,320
Reserves i 31 108,300 100,184
Total equity A 114,521 104,504
On behalf of the Board g2xelkE
Lee Nga Ching Shiu Shu Ming
=HE B
Director Director
EFE EFE
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 HZ2—ZE = =A=+—HIt+tHEA

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023 and 31
December 2021 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
Name operation issued capital
EREL/
£ EXuE ERTREZHE

At 31 March 2023 At 31 December 2021
RZB==fF RZZZ-F
ZA=t-B  tZA=t-H

33. RIBRAB 2 RE

RZEZ=F=A=t+—RBRZFT=_—
F+-_A=1+—HXEWBRAAFBMNM

T
Principal
Percentage of issued capital activities and
held by the Company place of operations
ARRFREL
ERTRAEDL IERBREZNE

At 31 March 2023 At 31 December 2021

R-E==f e —d
ZA=t-8 +ZA=t-A

Directly Indirectly ~ Directly  Indirectly

& B B& 3

Capital Business International ~ The British Virgin -~ Ordinary shares of ~ Ordinary shares of

Limited Islands/ US$1,000 US$1,000
Hong Kong

Capital Business Intemational  XBEL#HE/ 1,000% T2 1000

Limited & EER aR

Orient Securities Holdings Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares of ~ Ordinary shares of

Limited Hong Kong HK$18,832 HK$18,832
RO ERESIRERAE BE/EA 18,8323 T2 18832872
LER LER

Orient Securities Limited Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares of ~ Ordinary shares of
Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 HK$20,000,000

RHENEFERAA BB/ 2% 20,000,000 7T 20,000,000/ 7

EER Eak

Qrient Securities Finance Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares of ~ Ordinary shares of
Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000
RAENMBERAR  BE/BR 10000872 10,000 72
EER Eak

100 - 100

Investment holding

1
—y
o
o

I
o

0 Investment holding

BRAH

1
—
o
o

|
o

0 Provision of brokerage
service, underwriting
and placing service and
securities and initial public
offering margin financing
service

RELERY BHREE

RBARES REALH
BEARBEARS

- 100 - 100 Provision of money lending
service

RIEERS
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEALIRS
In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere BRzERE B REMM T FI 2R
in these consolidated financial statements, the Group had the SREHIN AEEBBHAR FRNEES
following balances with directors and material transactions with the EATHBRREARS :
directors during the period/year:
At 31 March At 31 December
2023 2021
R-—Z=-=4f R-ZT——4F
=A=+-—H +—-A=+—8
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
K22 FET FHT
Directors £F
Lee Nga Ching — amount due from  Z=# & — JE Y78 (d) 423 =
Shiu Shu Ming — amount due to ERAORR — e RE (e) 200 =
For the For the
fifteen months year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2023 2021
BE-Z_= BE_T_—F
=HA=+-—H +=-A=+—8
IE+FH@EA LEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FE&T FHT
Directors =
Lam Shu Chung N IRV
— Brokerage commission income — Bl LA A
received (a) 14 15
— Placing income — g A (b) - 27
Shiu Shu Ming EEGLE
— Purchase of a motor vehicle —BE—#WRE (@ 200 -
Lee Nga Ching FHA
— Interest income —F) B R A (d) 17 =
Notes: Fif i
(a) The commission income was calculated at staff rates which ranged from 0.025% @ A& WA TSR E TH%0.025% £0.1% 5

t0 0.1% (subject to minimum charge of HK$100).

(b) The placing income is agreed according to the contract terms.

(a] The price is determined with reference to market transactions.

(d) The amount is unsecured, carrying interest at 17.0% and repayable in three

years.

(e) The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. BEA XX 5 ()
Compensation of key management personnel FTEEBABZHE
For the For the
fifteen months year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2023 2021
BE-E-=F HE-_T=-—%
=A=+—H +TZA=+—H
It+HEA IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Short-term employee benefits 5 E SR A 3,983 3,723
Post employment benefits BEB R R A 133 92
Equity-settled share based expense VARG 45 8 DARR (0 A EFER R X 1,705 -
5,821 3,815
35. CREDIT FACILITIES 35. EERME

As at 31 March 2023 and 31 December 2021, the Group had a
bank overdraft facility with a bank to the extent of HK$20,000,000.
Interest is charged at prime lending rate per annum as quoted by the
bank. The bank overdraft facility is subject to a repayable on demand
clause.

As at 31 March 2023 and 31 December 2021, the banking facilities
were guaranteed by a corporate guarantee to the extent of
HK$20,000,000 executed by the Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a loan facility of
HK$35,000,000 of which interest is charged at 12% per annum and
maturity date is 24 March 2023.

RZE—=F=A=+—HERZZT=—
F+-—A=+—H AEER—RHRTH
RT3 T RS 5 % /£ 20,000,000,8 7T °
ﬂgﬁﬁm%ﬁzEﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁs

CRITBE X BEX I NIZREREEK
Ko

RZEZ=F=R=+— E&qu
F+_A=+—8" RITMEUEA
%ﬁZ@E%%%%mommm%nﬁ
PR o

RZZEZ—F+=-A=+—H  £5H
B — 2B @& 35,000,000/ T HiE
FREN2%RFE  HBPERAZT_=F
=AZ+mA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M EE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

36. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 36.

LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities

RERE s cMEERARE
mE

AEERHERNERACEREERA

as recognised at the reporting dates are categorised as follows. See
note 4.9 to the consolidated financial statements for explanations

BEREEIRNT BARERTAZRE
BUARZEREBRAEZEE ARa

about how the category of financial instruments affects their Mgk MizEa.9
subsequent measurement.
At 31 March At 31 December
2023 2021
R-—'== R-ZT—_—4%F
=A=+-—H +=-—BA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets measured at BB EK AT EZ
amortised cost THEE
— Other assets —HEMEE 430 430
— Trade receivables —EINE 558 18,716 28,110
— Loan and interest receivables —ERERKEFE 222,624 326,103
— Other receivables — H b JE Y SR IA 542 28
— Trust bank balances held on behalf —REFEFHAZEARITHES
of clients 8,903 15,535
— Cash and cash equivalents —“HekBEeZEEY 5,769 1,803
256,984 372,009
Financial liabilities EHas
Financial liabilities measured at biig 3= 0 Ny =
amortised costs THEE
— Trade payables —ERNE S HIE 9,660 15,598
— Accruals and other payables —FEET B R & A e~ RRIE 3,091 1,223
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 965 4,744
— Debentures — &% - 1,000
13,716 22,565
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include statutory and other
deposits, loan and interest receivables, trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables, lease liabilities and debentures. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management manages and
monitors these risk exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

37.1 Market risk

(a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk of losses due to adverse
changes in foreign exchange rates mainly relating to
bank deposits denominated in foreign currency. The
management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arises. The policies to manage
foreign currency risk have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to be effective.

37. TRIEREERBRRBE

AEENTIECHTABEEAEMEA
Be RUREREMNE  BRES KA
R E MR WA - BB 55 A K EA
ENRE HEREARES -ZFE
MTAZHBRERS B ZME - 8%
FLRTEABZERNE B FARE
ZERRZBREN T - EEEEE
RERZERR  UBRRNEERAE
M AKEGEE B °

37.1 miGEMK

(a) srEmpbg

SN L B A R 3 22 B DA SN
FHEZRITHERA R IME
PE R A RZ B P B B R R
B o BIREERIMNER - I
1 U6 R B B B R B RS
PR - BIRINE R B 2 B
BHEFEEHRAKEG

W R R REB R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M EE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. SR EEEERBEK (E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

37.1 Market risk (Continued) 37.1 WIEER ()
(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (a) ¥R E ()

It is the Group’s policy for each subsidiary to transact
business in local currencies as far as possible to minimise
currency risk. Most of the Group’s principal business are
conducted and recorded in HK$, the functional currency
of the companies now comprising the Group, with
certain bank deposits mainly denominated in United
States Dollars (“US$"”) and Renminbi (“RMB"). As
HK$ is pegged to US$, there is no significant exposure
expected on US$ transactions and balances. For
presentation purpose, the following tables summarise
the Group’s financial assets and liabilities denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
entities to which they relate, as at 31 March 2023 and

AREEREHNERRRRZ
BRBEARENEMEEL
LR AR EE R ZE R
N ARE KRS BT RER
BT (AEEBREE TN AF]
ZIMEEEE) ETRINER B
TRITERETEUNEZT([X
T RARE (TAR®] G
8 - ARETTE R TTHNA - TR
HLETHEZR S ke
BT SHHEARR -FL25
ME TREZTR_T_=
F=A=+—BRZ-ZZT=—

31 December 2021, F+_A=+—HAEEI
FHEEEENEEENE
BAENESREENARE -

Expressed in HK$'000

BATF 7 T 51 R
RMB us$
AR ETT
As at 31 March 2023 R=-EB==
=RA=t+-—-H
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 1 1
As at 31 December 2021 N-—EE——F
+=A=+—H
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBFEFEY 1 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 B EZ —Z —

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

37.1 Market risk (Continued)

(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

# & BRI RE

=F=A=+—RHITA@EA

37. TRIAREEBRBERBE ()

37.1 miEEE (&)

(a) sEmEpz (&)

The following tables indicate the approximate changes
in the Group’s profit or loss for the period and equity in
response to reasonably possible changes in other foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure as at the reporting date. As US$ is pegged to
HK$, the Group does not expect any significant changes
in US$/HK$ exchange rates. No sensitivity analysis in
respect of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
denominated in US$ is disclosed as in the opinion of
the directors, such sensitivity analysis does not give
additional value in view of insignificant change in the
US$/HK$ exchange rates as at the reporting date.

TRINENRHE HEBAREE
AEXZEARNRR 2 HMINERE
EHIME A e E B - RN
BB AER RS 2 BLAZ
&) o RN EITEAB TTHME - K
SEBHET  ATEXRT
SEFMEREE ANES
RE ERNERERBHET
ETIE R EE T B E
AEBUETHENERE
ERBERXREDNAL BT
REIMEE - KA B UL
BRRE D ©

Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease) in Increase/(Decrease)
in foreign exchange rates loss/profit for the period/year in equity
HEEE Bh/FREE/ R Rz
t#/(TH) g/ (") g/ (")
At 31 March At 31 December At31March At 31 December At31March At 31 December
2023 2021 2023 2021 2023 2021
R-BZZf R-T--F RIBZZF RIT-F RIBIZE RCZCF
ZA=t+-B +ZA=t+-H =ZA=+-B +ZA=+-A =ZAZ+-B t-A=t-H
% % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% % TR TR TR THx
RVB ARE 5 5 - - - -

Decrease in the above foreign exchange rates at each
reporting date would have the equal but opposite effect
to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other
variables were held constant.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined by assuming
that the changes in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the reporting date and that all other variables were
held constant.

ME S BB Lt SME FE =X
ZTIB EFAEEMEER
FIENERE B ERAA
BRZeBBAEEREER
REVVER °

BURRE D AT THIE SME [E =%
BEREEHEELE UK
EREMEERFTE 2R
BTEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M EE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. SR EEEERBEK (E)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

37.1 Market risk (Continued) 37.1 miEE (&)

(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (a) SPEEfE (4
The stated changes represent management's assessment FrERBA 2 &L e EEE R
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates BEET—EFEHRERHILE
over the period until the next annual reporting date. Z EARE - HHNEELE R A g
In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is Wz EBZEEL 2T -
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign currency risk as ERERA BREDTIL
the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not TRERKER 2N R -
reflect the exposure during the period. JRE =S R 2 & kI
EE S E
(b) Interest rate risk (b) FIEEE
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk primarily rEBFEZABRIZZHA
through the impact of interest rate changes on bank K B2RITER FREK
balances, margin and cash client receivables and trade IR &R AU I & BT
payables carrying interests at variable rates. BOFRE L NEEGHZEM
AT 2 [ B o
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the TREBMEMEE1% K
profit or loss for the period to a change in interest W1% (ZE=-—F+=A
rates of +1% and -1% (31 December 2021: +1% and =+—H  #1%K&E1%)
-1%). The calculations are based on the Group’s bank B HIN BRI RE 518
balances, margin and cash client receivables held at each EAREBESERS B
reporting date. All other variables are held constant. Fiss 2 RITHER TR KRR
In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is SRR EW R IE R ELE o
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the FFEEMEBERFEE B
exposure at the end of the reporting period does not BERR BRESMALD
reflect the exposure during the period. BERKRERZINERR - R
E = RS B R 2 BB I T g
fz Bt B 7 [ B
At 31 March At 31 December
2023 2021
R-E=-= MNZEZ—F
=A=+-—H +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
If interest rates were 1% ANEEIN%
(31 December 2021: 1%) higher (ZZE=—%+— A
=+—H:1%)
Increase/(Decrease) in (loss)/profit — HAR,“E R (E518), %%
for Fgn, O )
the period/year 334 454
If interest rates were 1% A MR A 1%
(31 December 2021: 1%) lower - —F+=-H
=+—H:1%)
Increase/(Decrease) in (loss)/profit AR, FE R (E518),/
for the period/year sa A3 0GR ) (334) (454)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. SR EEEERBEK (E)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

37.2 Credit risk 37.2 EERMK

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the
terms of the financial instrument and cause a financial loss to
the Group.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables due from clients and clearing house and loan
receivables from clients. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposure to the credit risk is monitored on an
on-going basis.

In respect of trade receivables due from clients, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all clients including cash
and margin clients. Cash clients are required to place deposits
as prescribed by the Group’s credit policy before execution of
any purchase transaction. Receivables due from cash clients
are due within the settlement period commonly adopted by
the relevant market convention, which is usually within two
days from the trade date. Because of the prescribed deposit
requirements and the short settlement period involved,
credit risk arising from the trade receivables due from cash
clients is considered small. The Group normally obtains liquid
securities and/or cash deposits as collateral for providing
margin financing to its clients. Margin finance loans due from
margin clients are repayable on demand. Market conditions
and adequacy of securities collateral and margin deposits of
each margin account are monitored by management on a
daily basis. Margin calls and forced liquidation are made where
necessary.

In respect of trade receivables due from clearing house, credit
risk is considered low as the Group normally enters into
transactions with clearing house which are registered with
regulatory bodies and with sound reputation in the industry.
In respect of trade receivables due from corporate clients
associated with placing services, the credit risk is considered
low as the credit risk of these clients are clearly monitored and
there are no significant default in the past.

FEREESHIARZHFEE
BITERMTAGR T ZER  EX
AEBEHBEIZEAR -

AEENEERREZREEEE
FRERMm BB SR - AR
KEEPZEUER BEERA
FERE  URHESZEERR -

SN EP 2 RKEZRAMS
FEEF (RREAERIRER)H
ARZEREERFE - RBITER
BEXSH  BeEPARAEH
ZEEBRRREFEANTR - BYR
SEP ZEUGRAETIN AT ISE
PIERFBZEEHANEE - —&
RXZABRMBENA - HREEFK
RE RS R AEEHRE - MUEWR
ERPZERKEGFHRELZEE
[\ B 1 AR A E R - AR E — R EX
BARBUEZERR RREFK
ERRETFREFRRE ZEA
e BRITREPZARBEER
AREREERE EEESBRESR
TRAREFRES < EHFEH R
EOEREFREERA -WAEFE -
ARARBRAIRKBITEHR

BB U A B 2 BB 5 5KR M
5 HARARE - REREZERE
AMEREAZTERFEEZER
FTETR S WIEERRER K
1K - BhE W R AL & IRAF AR R 2 5
EFHNEWEZFIAME - AR
EEPHEERBRX IS EEL
BBEMEEREYN  HEERR
WA EUK o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M EE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 B EZE —ZE-_=F=A=+—HIt+AH@EA
37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. SR EEEERBEK (E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

37.2 Credit risk (Continued) 37.2 EER (&)

176

In respect of loan and interest receivables from clients, the
objective of the Group’s measures to manage credit risk is to
control potential exposure to recoverability problem. It is the
Group’s policy that all clients who wish to obtain loans from
the Group are subject to management review. Receivables
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis, management
makes periodic collective assessment as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of loans, loans receivables
based on historical payment records, the length of the overdue
period, the financial strength of the debtors and any other
qualitative factors and ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In this regard, management considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each client rather than the
industry or country in which the clients operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual clients. As at
31 March 2023, 6% (31 December 2021: 7%) and 25% (31
December 2021: 27%) of the total trade and loan receivables
due from clients were from the Group’s largest client and the
five largest clients.

Further quantitative data in respect of the collaterals and
the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
loan receivables are disclosed in notes 19 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Bank balances are placed in various authorised institutions and
the directors of the Company consider the credit risk for such
is minimal.

Impairment and provisioning policies
The Group's policy requires the review of individual

outstanding amounts at least monthly or more regularly
depending on individual circumstances or market condition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 HZ2—ZE = =A=+—HIt+tHEA

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. e EMEEBEERBEEK (8)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

37.2 Credit risk (Continued) 37.2 EERK (&)

Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

The impairment requirements under HKFRS 9 are based on
an expected credit loss model. The Group applies simplified
approach to measure ECLs on trade receivables from cash
clients and clearing house and trade receivables arising
from the business of placing services; and general approach
to measure ECLs on trade receivables from margin loans
receivables, loans and interest receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trust bank balances held on behalf of client
and other financial assets accounted for at amortised cost.
Under the simplified approach, the Group measures the
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Under
the general approach, financial assets migrate through the
following three stages based on the change in credit risk since
initial recognition: Stage 1: 12-months ECLs, Stage 2: Lifetime
ECLs — not credit-impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime ECLs — credit-
impaired.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis
based on the Group’s historical experience and internal credit
risk assessment, including forward-looking information. The
loan and advances use the number of days past due and
loan-to-collateral value or loan-to-credit enhancement value
to determine significant increase in credit risk. Credit risk is
deemed to have increased significantly if there is a significant
deterioration of the above factors at the reporting date relative
to that at the date of initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M EE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 B EZE —ZE-_=F=A=+—HIt+AH@EA
37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. SR EEEERBEK (E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

37.2 Credit risk (Continued) 37.2 EER (&)

Calculation of expected credit losses

The ECLs are assessed by the Group on regular basis. Based
on the aforesaid factors, margin loan receivables and loan and
interest receivables are classified into 3 stages.

ECLs for margin receivables, loan and interest receivables
under stage 1 is calculated on collective basis. Form margin
loan receivables and loan and interest receivables under stage
2 and stage 3, the lifetime ECLs is calculated.

The ECLs of non-standard financing Group has pre-defined
loss rate reference to the default rate for from external rating
agencies.

If there is material decrease in collaterals and credit
enhancement values and the full recovery of the loan is in
doubt, the loan will be classified into stage 3. For the loans
classified as stage 3, the Group may further calculate the
ECL based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure the
expected credit loss. Each scenario is associated with different
exposure at default and probability.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

When estimating the ECL on margin loan receivables and loans
and interest receivables, the Group has incorporated forward-
looking economic information through the experienced credit
judgement to reflect the qualitative factors.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to be effective in limiting the Group’s
exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. SR EEEERBEK (E)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

37.3 Liquidity risk 373 RBELEK

Internally generated cash flows is the source of funds to
finance the operations of the Group. The Group’s liquidity
risk management includes making available standby banking
facilities and diversifying the funding sources. The Group
regularly reviews the major funding positions to ensure
adequate financial resources are available to meet their
respective financial obligations.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has available banking and
other financing facilities of approximately HK$20,000,000 (31
December 2021: HK$20,000,000) and nil (31 December 2021:
HK$35,000,000) respectively, which were not utilised (note
35).

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to be effective in managing
liquidity risks.

NBEEZRERESBENAKE
REMBZESHIR - AEBZR
HELRRERBENEATHA
ZERBRTRERSESRES
Bl - AEEESMRTEIEESMN
o AR AR RS B RIE
NEREFZEBIHBEE -

R-E-_=ZF=ZA=+—H8 ' &%
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. SR EEEERBEK (E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

37.3 Liquidity risk (Continued) 373 RBELRAR (&)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the RBERH  AEBEZ2RAER
reporting date, based on the contractual undiscounted cash BATARBERRERE 2 B RBER

flows, is as follows: R

Total

contractual
Carrying undiscounted On demand or Within
amount cash flow  within 1 year 2-5 years

Bt

EARER EER
BREE ReRE FR1ER 2Z5%R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT THT T
As at 31 March 2023 R-B-=f
=A=t+-H
Trade payables ERE A 9,660 9,660 9,660 -
Accruals and other payables B R R E R 5IR 3,091 3,091 3,091 =
Lease liabilities HEBE 965 988 754 234
13,716 13,739 13,505 234
As at 31 December 2021 R-E-—%
+=RA=+-AH

Trade payables ERE A 15,598 15,598 15,598 =
Accruals and other payables JEFTE R R AR FUR 1,223 1,223 1,223 =
Lease liabilities HEaR 4,744 4,819 3213 1,606
Debentures &5 1,000 1,000 1,000 =
22,565 22,640 21,034 1,606
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA SRR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 E#Z=-Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost as disclosed under non-current
assets, current assets, current liabilities and non-current liabilities
respectively, approximate their fair value.

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
Continuous Net Settlement (CNS) money obligations receivables and
payables with the clearing house, Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC") and it intends to settle on a net basis
as trade receivables from or trade payables to HKSCC. For the net
amounts of CNS money obligations receivables or payables and
other receivables and payables (such as deposits included under
other assets), they do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the
consolidated financial statements since the right to set-off of the
recognised amount is only enforceable following an event of default
and the Group does not intend to settle the balance on a net basis.

(a) Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangement and similar arrangements

38.

39.

AP EIE
RBHERATEZEMIAQTE

TREERSRAE REEREHEK
A& - DRINERDEE  -RBEE
RBBEARGERSDAETRE  HE
NFERSE -

EETREERTHMAE

AREE B ATEA QAR MITREN K 35 8
BETFREEARAR(EBEED W
SRR (FFEFERU) BURIA
HEEMNFIR  WERIZFREEERER
HENEEGEERRGEE - FEFER
gt 78 W ok I 3 R A< R IR )RR S LAt R
WOk IR & P AN 08 (RS A Bt B EE 2 4%
) ARNEHEERSRIENETRE
MERENT  ATTFEREE M B R
RABHENIRE - REBETRRFEE
RESEWER -

(a) EHNEH TRFBIT2EEE
HEHFNECU LR z2EMEE

Amounts due from HKSCC

EREBEHESE
At 31 March At 31 December
2023 2021
R-ZEZ=%F NZEZ—%F
=HA=+-—H +=-—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Gross amount of recognised EERemMEEMLTE
financial assets (net of (0B mE)
impairment) 2,732 1,234
Gross amount of recognised TR a BRI REIEZ
financial liabilities offset in ERRCHEERE
the consolidated statement of
financial position (2,252) (1,110)
Net amounts of financial assets FFAGRE M AR R 2 2R
included in the consolidated BEFHE
statement of financial position 480 124
Net amounts FRE 480 124

RTEFEHBEERAR AT / FR 2022

181



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSN N e

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 &#Z—Z-=F=A=+—HIt+H@A

39. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 30. KEETRMEEREMEE ()
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)
(b) Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable (b) ZFHIRIKEE  "RHEBTZEEIR
master netting arrangement and similar arrangements HEHEMELZEz2ERMEAE

Amounts due to HKSCC

ENEREESHE
At 31 March At 31 December
2023 2021

R-BZ=F R-_T=—%F
=A=+-8B +=-A=t+-~H

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Gross amount of recognised ERemAREE
financial liabilities 2,252 1,110
Gross amount of recognised iR G M BRRFRIEE 2
financial assets offset in the EERemMEEATE
consolidated statement of
financial position (2,252) (1,110)

Net amounts of financial liabilities 5t A4R A& BRI K 2 & &l
included in the consolidated BEFRE
statement of financial position - -

Net amounts R = =
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39. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

(c) Reconciliation to trade receivables and trade payables
as presented in the consolidated statement of financial

(c)

39. HETHMEERSRME R (F)

EGREMBRRAREIZEKES
RERENESRAHKR

position
At 31 March At 31 December
2023 2021
N=-—E== R-ZT——%F
=A=+-8 +-A=+-AH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FH&T
Trade receivables EWE 5 RE
Net amounts of financial assets FFATESRE BRI E 2
included in the consolidated SREEFHE
statement of financial position 480 124
Trade receivables not within the TEREHEEERSHE
scope of offsetting disclosure FEWE 5 5k I8 18,236 27,986
Trade receivables presented in 2 EFE MBI K2
the consolidated statement of e & 5 FIA
financial position 18,716 28,110
Trade payables ENESRE
Net amounts of financial liabilities &t A4R& B ISR RE 2
included in the consolidated SRAREFE
statement of financial position - -
Trade payables not within the scope B IE fHH EEHE ~
of offsetting disclosure B2 Z I8 9,660 15,598
Trade payables presented in the 2| EFE BRI EKZ
consolidated statement of FETE 53 IE
financial position 9,660 15,598
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40. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 40. EXEE

184

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists of capital
and reserves, which include issued share capital and reserves as set
out on the consolidated statement of financial position, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and respective notes. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged.

The management reviews the capital structure by considering the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. In
view of this, the Group manages its overall capital structure through
the drawdown and repayment of bank borrowings, payment of
dividends and issuance of share capital.

A subsidiary of the Group, Orient Securities is licensed with Securities
and Futures Commission (“SFC") for the business it operates in.
Orient Securities is subject to liquid capital requirements under
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“SF(FR)R")
adopted by the SFC. Under the SF(FR)R, Orient Securities must
maintain a liquid capital (assets and liabilities adjusted as determined
by SF(FR)R) in excess of HK$3 million or 5% of its total adjusted
liabilities, whichever is higher. The required information is filed with
the SFC on a monthly basis.

Orient Securities has complied to maintain the required amount of
liquid capital throughout the period.
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41. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
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41.

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

METHELEEEZHER

TRAVNAEEREEDELRENE
B BERASKIFASE
FELRBEEERARERERAN  H
BenBWIERKRREREGHN IR
RREBEEBZRAEREZAR -

° BER B

Lease
Debentures Liabilities Total
&% HEAE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT FHET
(note 27) (note 26)
(BE27) (B zE26)
At 1 January 2021 R=ZB=—%—H—H 1,000 2,458 3,458
Financing cash outflows: RMEREME :
Repayment of principal amount of EEHEBEALEE
the lease liabilities - (4,089) (4,089)
Interest paid EAHLE (75) = (75)
Other changes: Hip# 5 :
Addition NE - 6,295 6,295
Interest expenses FERX 75 80 155
At 31 December 2021 and R-FB-—-%+=A
1 January 2022 =t+t—BAR=Z=Z=
—HB—H 1,000 4,744 5,744
Financing cash outflows: MERESME :
Repayment of principal amount of EEHEBEALHE
the lease liabilities - (2,710) (2,710)
Repayment of debentures BEES (1,000) = (1,000)
Interest paid BAFE (89) (76) (165)
Other changes: Hith s g :
Addition NE - 1,321 1,321
Derecognition R ERERR — (2,390) (2,390)
Interest expenses MEFRX 89 76 165
At 31 March 2023 R=-B=-=F
=A=+—H - 965 965
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42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

43,

On 22 September 2022, OSL, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, as a defendant (the “Defendant”) received a writ of
summons (the “Writ”) issued in the Court of First Instance of the
High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region by a
solicitor acting for Ms. Dong Yun as a plaintiff (the “Plaintiff”)
against the Defendant. As stated in the statement of claim attached
to the Writ, the Plaintiff, who was a client of the Defendant, claim
(the “Claim"”) against, the Defendant, for (i) damages for unlawful
means conspiracy; (ii) interest; (iii) costs; and (iv) further and/or other
relief in connection with a series of alleged unlawful acts carried out
by the Defendant with other defendants as stated in the Writ.

After seeking professional advice from the legal advisor engaged
by the Company (the “Legal Advisor”), and to the best of
the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, having made
all reasonable enquiries, the Board believes that the Claim for
conspiracy and/or fraud against the Defendant is weak to the
extreme and could hardly stand up to an argument for overcoming
the hurdle of time barred. By reason of the facts and analysis
conducted by the Legal Advisor, the Board is of the view that the
Claim will not have any material impact on the Group’s financial
position.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 6 April 2023, the Company entered into a joint venture
agreement (the “Joint Venture Agreement”) with Mr. Su Boping,
an independent third party, setting out the arrangements relating
to the formation of a joint venture to operate an IT consulting
services company with business portfolio including the provision of
IT infrastructure solution services, IT development solutions services,
and IT maintenance and support services.

For particulars of the Joint Venture Agreement, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 6 April 2023.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 43.

(Continued)

On 20 June 2023, Orient Securities IT Service Limited (“Orient IT"),
being the non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a master services subcontract agreement (the “Master Services
Subcontract Agreement”) with Harvest Year Developments
Limited (“Harvest Year”), an independent third party, pursuant to
which Orient IT agrees to appoint Harvest Year as its subcontractor,
and Harvest Year agrees to provide all necessary labour, tools,
software, machinery, equipment and other items and services for the
performance of the sequencing activities of IT infrastructure solution
services undertake by Orient IT under the contract(s) entered or to be
entered into between Orient IT and its client.

For particulars of the Master Services Subcontractor Agreement,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 20 June 2023.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 44,

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the fifteen months ended
31 March 2023 were approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 23 June 2023.

REHREERE(A)

RZBE-_=FXA=-1+H A2713k2
BB ARIRAEMEMBIEBRA R
((REEABME]) BFLERBRAA
(T8 ) (ABILE=ZF) I L ERED
BHE((ERELEHE]) @ Bt R
FEMBMEREZEFEAES B -
mELRBREMEVENLEE N T
BB 2R REREMYR KRR
% AARRSZEARFERBER T EM
(s S v 4 BvAE o k= N0l
AEERNEMBHEER SRR RIR
K BT &S o

ERERE,BHENFE  F2HA
AR A-—ZE-_=F,A=-1tHHA
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REMBHRR ZAE
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Financial Summary

== &hH
e =
RESULTS E 4
Fifteen
months ended
Year ended 31 December 31 March
BZ=A=1+-H
BE+-A=t+-HLEE t+EEA
2018 2019 2020 2021 2023
-\& Z—E-NF —E-%TF —T-_—F —E-=f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FEx FET FET TER
REVENUE % 29,774 34,747 59,292 46,704 49,125
Other income ElA 5 7 1,539 4 125
Employee costs EEMA (13,861) (11,606) (10,946) (9,340) (10,175)
Administrative expenses TBER (13,579) (12,305) (12,882) (10,444) (11,486)
Other operating expenses Hit 28R % (2,443) (2,546) (15,604) (3,524) (153,126)
Finance costs T E R (98) (429) (257) (155) (165)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE BRETER AR (BR)

INCOME TAX (202) 7,868 21,142 23,245 (125,702)
Income tax expense ey (1,895) (3,695) (4,282) (5,270) =
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR/ KA TEE AEEEE/

PERIOD, ATTRIBUTABLE TO HIRER,(B8)

OWNERS

OF THE COMPANY (2,097) 4,173 16,860 17,975 (125,702)
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKE

for the year - - - - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE AAREEANEEEE/

INCOME FOR THE YEAR/ HE2ANSAE

PERIOD, ATTRIBUTABLE

TO OWNERS OF

THE COMPANY (2,097) 4173 16,860 17,975 (125,702)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ~ SREF/(F#)

Basic and diluted EAREE (049 centsfll 097 centsfll  3.90 cents{ll  4.16 centsfll  (120.48) cents Al

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE

As at

As at 31 December 31 March

R=A

W+=ZA=+-H =t+-H

2018 2019 2020 2021 2023

—NE —NEF —E-TE —E-—4 —E-=&

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TELT FET FET TET

Total assets BELE 369,611 345,393 354,023 381,906 259,257
Total liabilities BELE (59,963) (31,572) (23,342) (33,250) (23,452)
Net assets BEFE 309,648 313,821 330,681 348,656 235,805
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